
 
 
 

Pensions Committee 
 
Date: Monday, 24 June 2013 
Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Pat Phillips 
Tel: 0151 691 8488 
e-mail: patphillips@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members of the Committee are asked to declare any disclosable 

pecuniary and non pecuniary interests, in connection with any item(s) 
on the agenda and state the nature of the interest. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 25 March, 2013. 

 
3. MERSEYSIDE PENSION FUND - EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2012-13. 

(Pages 7 - 26) 
 
4. LGPS UPDATE (Pages 27 - 54) 
 
5. ANNUAL INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE (Pages 55 - 58) 
 
6. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 59 - 62) 
 
7. BUDGET FINANCIAL YEAR 2013/2014, BUDGET OUT TURN 

2012/13 AND ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13. (Pages 63 - 72) 
 
8. LGC INVESTMENT SUMMIT (Pages 73 - 76) 
 
9. PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY STATEMENT (Pages 77 

- 108) 
 
10. OFFICIAL OPENING OF GWYNEDD AD PLANT. (Pages 109 - 112) 
 

Public Document Pack



11. COMPLIANCE MANUAL - SECTION 6 PERSONAL CONDUCT 
ARRANGEMENTS. (Pages 113 - 126) 

 
12. TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION  
 
 Report to follow. 

 
13. TUNSGATE SQUARE - ROOFING TENDER (Pages 127 - 130) 
 
14. IMWP MINUTES  
 
 Report to follow. 

 
15. CASTLE CHAMBERS 4TH FLOOR REFURBISHMENT. (Pages 131 - 

134) 
 
16. ESSENTIALS TRAINING FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY PENSION 

SCHEMES.  
 
 Report to follow. 

 
17. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE 

PUBLIC  
 
 The following items contain exempt information. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by 
the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A (as amended) to 
that Act. The Public Interest test has been applied and favours 
exclusion. 
 
 

18. TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION EXEMPT APPENDIX.  
 
 Appendix to follow. 

 
19. TUNSGATE SQUARE - ROOFING TENDER EXEMPT APPENDIX. 

(Pages 135 - 138) 
 
20. IMWP MINUTES 10/04/13 & 12/06/13.  
 
 Minutes to follow. 

 
21. CASTLE CHAMBERS 4TH FLOOR REFURBISHMENT. (Pages 139 - 

144) 
 
22. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR  
 
 
 



PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 25 March 2013 
 

Present: Councillor P Glasman (Chair) 
 
 Councillors G Davies 

T Harney 
S Hodrien 
M Hornby 
AER Jones 
 

AR McLachlan 
C Povall 
H Smith 
A Sykes 
G Watt 
 

 Councillors N Keats, Knowsley Council 
J Fulham, St Helens Council 
 

In attendance:  Phil Goodwin (Unison) 
 

Apologies Councillors P Tweed 
P Hurley 
 
P McCarthy 
Paul Wiggins (Unison) 

 
 

76 MEMBERS CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  
 
Members were asked whether they had any pecuniary or non pecuniary interests in 
connection with any application on the agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest. 
 
Councillor Norman Keats declared a pecuniary interest by virtue of being a member 
of Merseyside Pension Fund. 
 
Councillor Geoffrey Watt declared a pecuniary interest by virtue of a relative being a 
member of Merseyside Pension Fund. 
 

77 MINUTES  
 
The Acting Director of Law, HR and Asset Management submitted the minutes of the 
meeting held on 15 January, 2013. 
 
Resolved – That the minutes be received. 
 

78 ORDER OF BUSINESS  
 
The Chair agreed to vary the order of business. 
 

79 LGPS UPDATE  
 
A report of the Interim Director of Finance updated the Pensions Committee on the 
MPF technical response to the statutory consultation on the LGPS 2014 draft 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



membership, contributions and benefit regulations. The timetable for the remaining 
elements of the regulatory framework was outlined to enable the new Scheme to be 
assessed as fit for purpose on the grounds of affordability, governance and 
administrative ease. 
 
The report also covered the revised earning bands used to assess employee 
contribution rates from April 2013, the Government’s white paper on State Pension 
Reform and a position update on both the ‘Universal Credit’ and Auto–enrolment 
legislation. 
 
The Pension Funds submission to DCLG Consultation on Draft LGPS 2014 
Regulations, dated 5 February, 2013 was attached as an appendix to the report. 
 
Yvonne Caddock, Principal Pension Officer, outlined the report and responded to 
members questions. 
 
Resolved – That the report be noted. 
 

80 WITHHOLDING TAX CLAIMS  
 
A report of the Interim Director of Finance provided the Pensions Committee with an 
update on the progress made by the Fund in reclaiming withholding tax from the UK 
and European tax authorities and sought approval to continue the group action in 
respect of Manufactured Overseas Dividends (MODs). 
 
In January 2009, the Pensions Committee had been informed of the engagement of 
KPMG and McGrigors (now Pinsent Masons) to assist in the recovery of withholding 
taxes (WHT) suffered on EU sourced dividend income and non-recoverable under 
existing Double Tax Agreements. 
 
It was reported that in April 2009 this had been extended to the recovery of UK 
withholding tax suffered on Manufactured Overseas Dividend (MOD) income arising 
from stocklending. 
 
Updates had been brought to Committee in September 2009 and March 2011. 
 
Peter Wallach, Head of Pension Fund, outlined the report and responded to 
Members questions. 
 
Resolved – That; 
 

1. the progress of the European Withholding Tax Claims be noted. 
2. the contribution from the internal team be noted. 
3. the continuation of the MOD claim be noted. 

 
81 PRIVATE EQUITY PROGRAMME 2011-2014  

 
A report of the Interim Director of Finance updated Members on progress made on 
the Private Equity Programme 2011-14 and asked Members to approve the proposed 
Private Equity investments for 2013. 
 

Page 2



The appendix to the report, MPF Private Equity Programme 2011-14, as updated 
March 2013, contained exempt information. This was by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, i.e. Information relating to 
the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information). 
 
Paddy Dowdall, Investment Manager, Merseyside Pension Fund, outlined the report 
and responded to Members questions. 
 
Resolved – That; 
 
1  the report including the programme for 2011-14 in the Exempt Appendix 
and the proposed Private Equity investments for 2013 be approved and noted. 
 
2 the Interim Director of Finance make the individual investments under 
delegated authority and use this delegated authority to make changes as and 
when circumstances demand. 
 
3 the Pensions Committee continue to receive annual updates on the 
private equity programme and reports be continued to be made to the IMWP on 
a quarterly basis. 
 

82 INTERNAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE  
 
A report of the Interim Director of Finance informed the Pensions Committee that the 
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) had an inbuilt complaints procedure for 
dissatisfied members, called the Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP). 
 
The report sought to appoint and authorise officers who could consider appeals at 
stage 1 and stage 2 of the IDRP process in respect of MPF. 
 
Resolved – That the proposed changes to the panel of authorised officers to 
consider appeals under the Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure be agreed. 
 

83 NAPF LOCAL AUTHORITY CONFERENCE  
 
A report of the Interim Director of Finance requested nominations to attend the 
National Association of Pension Funds (NAPF) Local Authority Conference 2013 to 
be held in Gloucester from 20 May to 22 May 2013. 
 
Members discussed the possibility of the Spokespersons and Chair attending and 
suggested that there should be review of the rationale of who needs to be trained. 
.Peter Wallach, Head of Pensions, indicated that it was for members to determine 
attendance but future reports would try to provide more information to enable this. 
 
On a motion by Councillor Harry Smith and seconded by Councillor George Davies it 
was; 
 
Resolved – That the wording of future reports be amended to clarify who needs 
to attend Pensions conferences. 
 

84 PIRC ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONFERENCE 2013  

Page 3



 
A report of the Interim Director of Finance sought approval for the Chair to attend the 
PIRC Annual Corporate Governance Conference 2013 to be held in London on 26 
March, 2013. 
 
Resolved – That the attendance of the Chair at the PIRC Annual Corporate 
Governance Conference 2013 be approved. 
 

85 GOVERNANCE & RISK WORKING PARTY MINUTES  
 
A report of the Interim Director of Finance provided members with the minutes of the 
Governance & Risk Working Party (GRWP) held 30 January 2013. 
 
An exempt report on the agenda, the minutes of the GRWP on 30 January 2013, 
contained exempt information.  This was by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, i.e. Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information). 
 
Resolved – That the minutes of the Governance & Risk Working Party (GRWP) 
held on 30 January 2013 contained in the Exempt Appendix be approved. 
 

86 AUDIT PLAN  
 
Mike Thomas, Director Merseyside Pension Fund, presented the Audit Plan for 
Merseyside Pension Fund and responded to Members questions. 
 
Resolved – That the Audit Plan be noted. 
 

87 LGPS TRUSTEES CONFERENCE AND CIPFA ANNUAL CONFERENCE.  
 
A report of the Interim Director of Finance requested nominations to attend the Tenth 
Annual LGPS ‘Trustees’ Conference 2013 to be held in Sheffield from 27 to 28 June 
2013. 
 
The report sought approval for the Chair of Pensions Committee to attend the Annual 
CIPFA Conference 2013 to be held in London from 9 to 11 July 2013. 
 
Resolved – That : 
 
1. Peter Wallach, Head of MPF, contact members of the Pensions Committee 

by email to confirm those members who wish to attend the Trustees 
conference. 

 
2. attendance at the CIPFA conference by the Chair and an officer be agreed. 
 

88 ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION  GRAYSONS RESTAURANTS LTD 
LIVERPOOL CITY COUNCIL -  CATERING CONTRACT  
 
A report of the Interim Director of Finance informed members of his decision, taken 
under delegation, to approve the application received from Graysons Catering 
Services Limited for admission to Merseyside Pension Fund as a Transferee 

Page 4



Admission Body. The company had secured a catering contract with Liverpool City 
Council for a period of 3 years with effect from 1st March 2012 with an option to 
extend for a further 2 years. 
 
The appendix attached to the report contained exempt information. This was by 
virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972, i.e. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information). 
 
Resolved – That the approval of the application for admission to the 
Merseyside Pension Fund of Graysons Restaurants Ltd be noted. 
 

89 EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 
Resolved - That in accordance with section 100 (A) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following items of business, on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined by relevant paragraphs of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A (as amended) to that Act. The public interest test had been 
applied and favoured exclusion. 
 

90 PRIVATE EQUITY PROGRAMME 2011-2014 EXEMPT APPENDIX  
 
The appendix to the report on Private Equity Programme (Minute 81 refers) was 
exempt by virtue of paragraph 3. 
 

91 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOVERNANCE AND RISK WORKING 
PARTY WEDNESDAY 30 JANUARY 2013 EXEMPT APPENDICES  
 
The appendix to the report on the Minutes of the Governance and Risk Working 
Party 30 January 2013 (Minute 85 refers) was exempt by virtue of paragraph 3. 
 

92 IMWP MINUTES 20/02/13 & 12/03/13  
 
The appendix of the report on IMWP minutes 20/02/13 & 12/03/13 was exempt by 
virtue of paragraph 3. 
 
Resolved – That the IMWP minutes of 20/02/13 & 12/03/13 attached as exempt 
appendices to the report be approved. 
 

93 EXEMPT APPENDIX 2 MINUTES OF INVESTMENT MONITORING WORKING 
PARTY, 12TH MARCH 2013  
 
The appendix to the report on IMWP MINUTES (Minute 92 refers) was exempt by 
virtue of paragraph 3. 
 

94 EXEMPT APPENDIX 3 MEDIUM TERM ASSET ALLOCATION FRAMEWORK  
 
The appendix to the report on IMWP MINUTES (Minute 92 refers) was exempt by 
virtue of paragraph 3. 
 

Page 5



95 EXEMPT APPENDIX 1 MINUTES OF INVESTMENT MONITORING WORKING 
PARTY, 20TH FEBRUARY 2013  
 
The appendix to the report on IMWP MINUTES (Minute 92 refers) was exempt by 
virtue of paragraph 3. 
 

96 EXEMPT APPENDIX ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION GRAYSONS 
RESTAURANTS LTD LIVERPOOL CITY COUNCIL -   CATERING CONTRACT  
 
The appendix to the report on Graysons Restaurants (Minute 88 refers) was exempt 
by virtue of paragraph 3. 
 
 
 

Page 6



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
1

Th
e A

ud
it P

lan
for

 M
ers

eys
ide

 Pe
nsi

on
 Fu

nd

Y
ea

r 
en

d
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3

30
 M

ay
 2

01
3

M
ik

e 
T

h
o

m
as

D
ire

ct
or

T
01

61
 2

14
 6

36
8

E
m

ik
e.

th
om

as
@

uk
.g

t.c
om

H
ea

th
er

 G
re

en
M

an
ag

er
T

01
61

 2
34

 6
38

1
E

he
at

he
r.

gr
ee

n@
uk

.g
t.c

om

C
h

ri
s 

B
la

ke
m

o
re

E
xe

cu
tiv

e
T

01
61

 2
14

 6
39

7
E

ch
ris

.b
la

ke
m

or
e@

uk
.g

t.c
om

Agenda Item 3

Page 7



Th
ec

on
ten

ts
of

thi
sr

ep
ort

rel
ate

on
ly

to
the

ma
tte
rs

wh
ich

hav
ec

om
et

oo
ur

att
ent

ion
,

wh
ich

we
bel

iev
en

eed
to

be
rep

ort
ed

to
you

as
par

to
fo

ur
aud

it
pro

ces
s.

It
is

no
ta

com
pre

hen
siv

er
eco

rd
of

all
the

rel
eva

nt
ma

tte
rs,

wh
ich

ma
yb

es
ub

jec
tt
oc

han
ge,

and
in

par
tic
ula

rw
ec

ann
ot

be
hel

dr
esp

on
sib

let
oy

ou
for

rep
ort

ing
all

of
the

risk
sw

hic
hm

ay
aff

ect
the

Pe
nsi

on
Fu

nd
or

any
we

akn
ess

es
in

you
rin

ter
nal

con
tro

ls.
Th

isr
epo

rth
as

bee
np

rep
are

d
sol

ely
for

you
rb

ene
fit

and
sho

uld
no

tb
eq

uo
ted

in
wh

ole
or

in
par

tw
ith

ou
to

ur
pri

or
wr

itte
n

con
sen

t.W
ed

on
ot

acc
ept

any
res

po
nsi

bil
ity

for
any

los
so

cca
sio

ned
to

any
thi

rd
par

ty
act

ing
,

or
ref

rai
nin

gf
rom

act
ing

on
the

bas
is
of

the
con

ten
to

ft
his

rep
ort

,a
st

his
rep

ort
wa

sn
ot

pre
par

ed
for

,n
or

int
end

ed
for

,an
yo

the
rp

urp
ose

.

Page 8



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
3

Co
nte
nts

Se
ct
io
n

Pa
ge

1.
Un

der
sta

nd
ing

 yo
ur 

bu
sin

ess
4

2.
De

vel
op

me
nts

 re
lev

ant
 to

 yo
ur 

bu
sin

ess
 an

d t
he 

aud
it

5
3.

Ou
r a

ud
it a

pp
roa

ch
6

4.
An

 au
dit

 fo
cus

ed 
on

 ris
ks

7
5.

Sig
nif

ica
nt 

risk
s id

ent
ifie

d
9

6.
Ot

her
 ris

ks 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

 1
0

7.
Re

sul
ts o

f in
ter

im
 wo

rk
12

8.
Lo

gis
tics

 an
d o

ur 
tea

m
14

9.
Fe

es 
and

 in
dep

end
enc

e
15

10.
Co

mm
un

ica
tio

n o
f a

ud
it m

att
ers

 wi
th 

tho
se 

cha
rge

d w
ith

 go
ver

nan
ce

16
Ap

pe
nd

ic
es

A.
Ac

tio
n p

lan
18

Page 9



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
4

Un
der
sta
nd
ing
 yo
ur 
bu
sin
ess

C
h

al
le

n
g

es
/o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
1.

 C
h

an
g

e 
in

 c
u

st
o

d
ia

n

�
T

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

ha
s 

ap
po

in
te

d 
a 

ne
w

 
cu

st
od

ia
n,

 N
or

th
er

n 
T

ru
st

, i
n 

20
12

/1
3.

 A
ll 

ho
ld

in
gs

/r
ec

or
ds

 u
nd

er
 t

he
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

 o
f S

ta
te

 
S

tr
ee

t t
ra

ns
fe

rr
ed

 to
 N

or
th

er
n 

T
ru

st
 in

 y
ea

r.
 

T
he

re
 is

 a
 r

is
k 

of
 in

ac
cu

ra
te

 tr
an

sf
er

 o
f a

ss
et

s 
w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 le
ad

 to
 m

is
st

at
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
.

2.
 A

X
IS

e
to

 A
lt

ai
r

�
T

he
 p

en
si

on
s 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
 A

X
IS

e
is

 b
ei

ng
 u

pg
ra

de
d 

to
 A

lta
ir 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
. 

3.
 A

p
p

o
in

tm
en

t 
o

f 
p

as
si

ve
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
se

rv
ic

es
.

•
M

P
F

 h
av

e 
ap

po
in

te
d 

a 
pr

ov
id

er
 o

f p
as

si
ve

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s.
 T

hi
s 

ha
s 

le
ad

 to
 a

 
£1

.4
bn

 m
ov

em
en

t o
f a

ss
et

 c
la

ss
 in

 th
e 

ye
ar

. 

4.
 C

h
an

g
e 

in
 b

an
k 

�
T

he
 p

en
si

on
 f

un
d 

ha
s 

ch
an

ge
d 

its
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

of
 

ba
nk

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 fr
om

 R
B

S
to

 L
lo

yd
s 

 T
S

B
.

O
u

r 
re

sp
o

n
se

�
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 te

st
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
s 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 a
ss

et
s 

be
fo

re
 a

nd
 a

fte
r 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

ra
ns

fe
r.

�
W

e 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

re
ga

rd
 to

 th
e 

cu
st

od
ia

n'
s 

pr
oj

ec
t 

pl
an

s,
 a

nd
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

o 
as

se
ss

 a
dh

er
en

ce
 t

o 
th

e 
pl

an
s.

�
W

e 
w

ill
 o

bt
ai

n 
di

re
ct

 c
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
fr

om
 s

ta
te

 
st

re
et

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

ey
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 h
ol

d 
as

se
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

, a
nd

 t
o 

ga
in

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 

se
cu

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
to

 N
or

th
er

n 
T

ru
st

.

�
W

e 
w

ill
, w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 ta

ke
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 fr
om

  
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it.

 

�
W

e 
w

ill
 g

ai
n 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 th

e 
ne

w
 s

ys
te

m
 

is
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y,

 a
nd

 g
en

er
at

es
 c

or
re

ct
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fo
r 

in
cl

us
io

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 

�
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

he
 d

at
a 

m
ig

ra
tio

n 
fr

om
 A

X
IS

e
to

 A
lta

ir,
 r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

 p
rio

r 
an

d 
po

st
 s

ys
te

m
 c

ha
ng

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

re
co

rd
s 

he
ld

 in
 th

e 
ne

w
 s

ys
te

m
 a

re
 a

cc
ur

at
e.

�
W

e 
w

ill
, w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 ta

ke
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 fr
om

  
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it.

�
W

e 
w

ill
 s

ub
st

an
tiv

el
y 

te
st

 th
e 

as
se

ts
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

as
se

ts
 w

er
e 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d,

 a
nd

 th
at

 
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

an
d 

va
lu

at
io

n 
ar

e 
m

at
er

ia
lly

 
ac

cu
ra

te
 a

t y
ea

r 
en

d.
 

�
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 te

st
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
s 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
 b

ef
or

e 
an

d 
af

te
r 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f 

tr
an

sf
er

 o
f b

an
ks

.

�
W

e 
w

ill
 o

bt
ai

n 
di

re
ct

 c
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
fr

om
 R

B
S

to
 

co
nf

irm
 th

at
 b

al
an

ce
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
to

 
Ll

oy
ds

 T
S

B
. 

In 
pla

nn
ing

 ou
r a

ud
it w

e n
eed

 to
 un

der
sta

nd
 th

e c
hal

len
ges

 an
d o

pp
ort

un
itie

s th
e P

ens
ion

 fu
nd

 is 
fac

ing
.  W

e s
et o

ut 
a s

um
ma

ry 
of 

ou
r u

nd
ers

tan
din

g b
elo

w.

Page 10



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
5

De
vel
op
me
nts
 re
lev
ant
 to
 yo
ur 
bu
sin
ess
 an
d t
he 
aud

it
In 

pla
nn

ing
 ou

r a
ud

it w
e a

lso
 co

nsi
der

 th
e im

pac
t o

f k
ey 

dev
elo

pm
ent

s in
 th

e s
ect

or 
and

 tak
e a

cco
un

t o
f n

atio
nal

 au
dit

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
 as

 se
t o

ut 
in 

the
 Co

de 
of 

Au
dit

 Pr
act

ice
 

and
 as

soc
iate

d g
uid

anc
e.

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 o

th
er

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts

1.
F

in
an

ci
al

 r
ep

o
rt

in
g

•
C

IP
F

A
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n 
of

 a
 r

ev
is

ed
 

se
t o

f e
xa

m
pl

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 fo

r 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
s 

in
 2

01
3.

 

2.
 L

G
P

S
20

14

•
P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 c

ar
ee

r 
av

er
ag

e 
re

-v
al

ue
d 

ea
rn

in
gs

 
sc

he
m

e 
(C

A
R

E
) 

fr
om

 1
 A

pr
il 

20
14

.

3.
 F

in
an

ci
al

 P
re

ss
u

re
s 

–
sc

h
ed

u
le

d
 

an
d

 a
d

m
it

te
d

 b
o

d
ie

s

•
M

an
ag

in
g 

pe
ns

io
ns

 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
w

he
re

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
in

g 
bo

di
es

 a
re

 o
ffe

rin
g 

ea
rly

 
re

tir
em

en
t a

nd
 r

ed
un

da
nc

ie
s 

pl
ac

in
g 

ad
di

tio
na

l w
or

kl
oa

d 
on

 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 in

 d
ea

lin
g 

w
ith

 
se

ve
ra

nc
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. 

4.
 F

in
an

ci
al

 P
re

ss
u

re
s 

–
P

en
si

o
n

 
fu

n
d

•
P

en
si

on
 fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 
re

qu
iri

ng
 to

 w
ith

dr
aw

 f
ro

m
 a

ss
et

s 
to

 fu
nd

 th
e 

de
m

an
d 

on
 b

en
ef

its
 

pa
ya

bl
e 

th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 c
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 in
 y

ea
r.

 P
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

ne
ed

 t
o 

be
 

ab
le

 to
 r

es
po

nd
 to

 th
es

e 
de

m
an

ds
 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
ch

an
gi

ng
 n

at
ur

e 
of

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t m
ar

ke
ts

.

5.
 T

ri
en

n
ia

l v
al

u
at

io
n

•
D

em
an

ds
 o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
s'

 ti
m

e 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

in
g 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 p

as
s 

to
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

y 
an

d 
re

gu
la

r 
di

al
og

ue
 w

ith
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

y.

O
u

r 
re

sp
o

n
se

•
W

e 
w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
  t

he
 P

en
si

on
 

F
un

d 
co

m
pl

ie
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 C

IP
F

A
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

ou
r 

su
bs

ta
nt

iv
e 

te
st

in
g

•
W

e 
w

ill
 d

is
cu

ss
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
 

ch
an

ge
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r 
re

gu
la

r 
m

ee
tin

gs
 

w
ith

 s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e,
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
a 

vi
ew

 w
he

re
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
.

•
W

e 
w

ill
  m

ai
nt

ai
n 

re
gu

la
r 

di
al

og
ue

 w
ith

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
as

se
ss

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 th

is
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

on
 th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 fu
nd

. W
e 

w
ill

 r
ai

se
 a

ny
 

co
nc

er
ns

 w
ith

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
. 

•
W

e 
w

ill
  m

on
ito

r 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
be

in
g 

m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t s
tr

at
eg

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r 
re

gu
la

r 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
w

ith
 s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 t
ho

se
 c

ha
rg

ed
 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e.

•
W

e 
w

ill
  c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
ch

an
ge

s 
 o

n 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 h
el

d 
by

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

  a
nd

 a
dj

us
t o

ur
 te

st
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

.

•
W

e 
w

ill
  m

ai
nt

ai
n 

re
gu

la
r 

di
al

og
ue

 
w

ith
 m

an
ag

em
en

t t
o 

as
se

ss
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 th
is

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
on

 th
e 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 

fu
nd

. W
e 

w
ill

 r
ai

se
 a

ny
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

w
ith

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
. 

Page 11



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
6

D
ev

is
e 

au
d

it
 s

tr
at

eg
y

(p
la

n
n

ed
 c

o
n

tr
o

l r
el

ia
n

ce
?

)

Ou
r a
ud
it a
pp
roa
ch G

lo
b

al
 a

u
d

it
 t

ec
h

n
o

lo
g

y
E

n
su

re
s 

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it

h
 In

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 
S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

o
n

 A
u

d
it

in
g

 (
IS

A
s)

C
re

at
es

 a
n

d
 t

ai
lo

rs
 

au
d

it
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s
S

to
re

s 
au

d
it

ev
id

en
ce

D
o

cu
m

en
ts

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 

an
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

an
d 

th
e 

en
tit

y

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t’s

 
fo

cu
s

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 

th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

E
va

lu
at

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

’s
 r

es
ul

ts

In
he

re
nt

 
ris

ks

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

ris
ks

O
th

er
ris

ks

M
at

er
ia

l 
ba

la
nc

es

Y
es

N
o

�
T

es
t c

on
tr

ol
s

�
S

ub
st

an
tiv

e 
an

al
yt

ic
al

 
re

vi
ew

�
T

es
ts

 o
f d

et
ai

l

�
T

es
t o

f d
et

ai
l

�
S

ub
st

an
tiv

e 
an

al
yt

ic
al

 
re

vi
ew

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

C
on

cl
ud

e 
an

d 
re

po
rt

G
en

er
al

 a
ud

it 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

ID
E

A

E
xt

ra
ct

 
yo

ur
 d

at
a

R
ep

or
t o

ut
pu

t 
to

 te
am

s

A
na

ly
se

 d
at

a 
us

in
g 

re
le

va
nt

 
pa

ra
m

et
er

s

D
ev

el
o

p
 a

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 t
o

 
o

b
ta

in
 r

ea
so

n
ab

le
 

as
su

ra
n

ce
 th

at
 t

h
e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

as
 a

 w
h

o
le

 a
re

 f
re

e 
fr

o
m

 m
at

er
ia

l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t a

n
d

 
p

re
p

ar
ed

 in
 a

ll 
m

at
er

ia
la

re
sp

ec
ts

 
w

it
h

 th
e 

C
IP

F
A

 C
o

d
e 

o
f 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fr

am
ew

o
rk

 u
si

n
g

 o
u

r 
g

lo
b

al
 m

et
h

o
d

o
lo

g
y 

an
d

 a
u

d
it

 s
o

ft
w

ar
e

N
ot

e:
a.

A
n 

ite
m

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 
m

at
er

ia
l t

o 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

if,
 th

ro
ug

h 
its

 o
m

is
si

on
 o

r 
no

n-
di

sc
lo

su
re

, t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
w

ou
ld

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 s

ho
w

 a
 tr

ue
 a

nd
 

fa
ir 

vi
ew

.

Page 12



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
7

An
 au
dit
 fo
cus
ed 
on
 ris
ks

We
 un

der
tak

e a
 ris

k b
ase

d a
ud

it w
her

eby
 we

 fo
cus

 au
dit

 ef
for

t o
n t

ho
se 

are
as 

wh
ere

 we
 ha

ve 
ide

nti
fie

d a
 ris

k o
f m

ate
ria

l m
iss

tat
em

ent
 in

 th
e a

cco
un

ts. 
Th

e 
tab

le b
elo

w s
ho

ws
 ho

w o
ur 

aud
it a

pp
roa

ch 
foc

use
s o

n t
he 

risk
s w

e h
ave

 id
ent

ifie
d t

hro
ugh

 ou
r p

lan
nin

g a
nd

 re
vie

w o
f th

e n
atio

nal
risk

s a
ffe

ctin
g t

he 
sec

tor
. 

De
fin

itio
ns 

of 
the

 lev
el o

f ri
sk 

and
 as

soc
iate

d w
ork

 ar
e g

ive
n b

elo
w:

Sig
nif

ica
nt

–S
ign

ific
ant

 ris
ks 

are
 typ

ica
lly 

no
n-r

ou
tin

e tr
ans

act
ion

s, a
rea

s o
f m

ate
ria

l ju
dge

me
nt 

or 
tho

se 
are

as 
wh

ere
 th

ere
 is 

a h
igh

 un
der

lyin
g (

inh
ere

nt)
 

risk
 of

 m
iss

tat
em

ent
. W

e w
ill u

nd
ert

ake
 an

 as
ses

sm
ent

 of
 co

ntr
ols

 (if
 ap

pli
cab

le) 
aro

un
d t

he 
risk

s a
nd

 ca
rry

 ou
t d

eta
iled

 su
bst

ant
ive

 tes
tin

g.
Ot

he
r–

Ot
her

 ris
ks 

of 
ma

ter
ial 

mi
sst

ate
me

nt 
are

 typ
ica

lly 
tho

se 
tra

nsa
ctio

n c
ycl

es 
and

 ba
lan

ces
 wh

ere
 th

ere
 ar

e h
igh

 va
lue

s, l
arg

e n
um

ber
s o

f tr
ans

act
ion

s 
and

 ris
ks 

ari
sin

g f
rom

, fo
r e

xam
ple

, sy
ste

m 
cha

nge
s a

nd
 iss

ues
 ide

nti
fie

d f
rom

 pr
evi

ou
s y

ear
s a

ud
its.

 W
e w

ill a
sse

ss 
con

tro
lsa

nd
 un

der
tak

e s
ub

sta
nti

ve 
tes

tin
g, t

he 
lev

el o
f w

hic
h w

ill b
e r

edu
ced

 wh
ere

 we
 ca

n r
ely

 on
 co

ntr
ols

.
No

ne
–O

ur 
risk

 as
ses

sm
ent

 ha
s n

ot 
ide

nti
fie

d a
 ris

k o
f m

iss
tat

em
ent

. W
e w

ill u
nd

ert
ake

 su
bst

ant
ive

 tes
tin

g o
f m

ate
ria

l b
ala

nce
s.  

Wh
ere

 an
 ite

m 
in 

the
 

acc
ou

nts
 is 

no
t m

ate
ria

l w
e d

o n
ot 

car
ry 

ou
t d

eta
iled

 su
bst

ant
ive

 tes
tin

g.

M
at

er
ia

l(
o

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
ly

 
m

at
er

ia
l)

 
b

al
an

ce
?

T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
 

C
yc

le
In

h
er

en
t 

ri
sk

M
at

er
ia

l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t

ri
sk

?

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

is
k

P
la

n
n

ed
 

co
n

tr
o

l
re

lia
n

ce
?

S
u

b
st

an
ti

ve
 t

es
ti

n
g

?

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

re
ce

iv
ab

le
Y

es
S

ch
em

e 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

M
ed

iu
m

O
th

er
R

ec
or

de
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 n
ot

 
co

rr
ec

t
Y

es
�

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 in

Y
es

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 in

 to
 

th
e 

sc
he

m
e

Lo
w

N
on

e
N

o
�

If 
m

at
er

ia
l

P
en

si
on

s 
pa

ya
bl

e
Y

es
B

en
ef

it
pa

ym
en

ts
M

ed
iu

m
O

th
er

M
em

be
r 

da
ta

 n
ot

 
co

rr
ec

t/B
en

ef
its

 im
pr

op
er

ly
co

m
pu

te
d/

cl
ai

m
s 

lia
bi

lit
y 

un
de

rs
ta

te
d

Y
es

�

P
ay

m
en

ts
 to

 
an

d 
on

 a
cc

ou
nt

 
of

 le
av

er
s

Y
es

B
en

ef
it

pa
ym

en
ts

Lo
w

N
on

e
N

o
�

If 
m

at
er

ia
l

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

N
o

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

ex
pe

ns
es

Lo
w

N
on

e
N

o
X

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
co

m
e

Y
es

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

M
ed

iu
m

O
th

er
In

ve
st

m
en

t a
ct

iv
ity

 n
ot

 v
al

id
N

o
�

Page 13



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
8

An
 au
dit
 fo
cus
ed 
on
 ris
ks 
(co
nti
nu
ed)

M
at

er
ia

l(
o

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
ly

 
m

at
er

ia
l)

 
b

al
an

ce
?

T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
 

C
yc

le
In

h
er

en
t 

ri
sk

M
at

er
ia

l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t

ri
sk

?

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

is
k

P
la

n
n

ed
 

co
n

tr
o

ls
 

as
su

ra
n

ce
?

S
u

b
st

an
ti

ve
 t

es
ti

n
g

?

P
ro

fit
 a

nd
 lo

ss
 

on
 d

is
po

sa
l o

f 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

an
d 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 

va
lu

e 
of

 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts

Y
es

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

M
ed

iu
m

O
th

er
In

ve
st

m
en

t a
ct

iv
ity

 n
ot

va
lid

N
o

�

T
ax

es
 o

n 
in

co
m

e
N

o
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
Lo

w
N

on
e

N
o

�

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ex
pe

ns
es

N
o

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
Lo

w
N

on
e

N
o

X

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

Y
es

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

M
ed

iu
m

O
th

er
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 n

ot
 v

al
id

F
ai

r 
va

lu
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t n
ot

 
co

rr
ec

t

N
o

�

C
ur

re
nt

as
se

ts
N

o
S

ch
em

e 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

, 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

an
d 

ca
sh

Lo
w

N
on

e
N

o
X

C
ur

re
nt

 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s

N
o

B
en

ef
it 

pa
ym

en
ts

, 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts

Lo
w

N
on

e
N

o
x

Page 14



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
9

Sig
nif
ica
nt 
risk

s id
ent
ifie
d

'Sig
nif

ica
nt 

risk
s o

fte
n r

ela
te 

to 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
no

n-r
ou

tin
e tr

ans
act

ion
s a

nd
 ju

dge
me

nta
l m

att
ers

. N
on

-ro
uti

ne 
tra

nsa
ctio

ns 
are

 tra
nsa

ctio
ns 

tha
t ar

e u
nu

sua
l, e

ith
er 

du
e to

 siz
e o

r 
nat

ure
, an

d t
hat

 th
ere

for
e o

ccu
r in

fre
qu

ent
ly. 

Jud
gem

ent
al m

att
ers

 m
ay 

inc
lud

e th
e d

eve
lop

me
nt 

of 
acc

ou
nti

ng 
est

im
ate

s fo
r w

hic
ht

her
e is

 sig
nif

ica
nt 

me
asu

rem
ent

 
un

cer
tain

ty' 
(IS

A 3
15)

. 
In 

thi
s s

ect
ion

 we
 ou

tlin
e th

e s
ign

ific
ant

 ris
ks 

of 
ma

ter
ial 

mi
sst

ate
me

nt 
wh

ich
 we

 ha
ve 

ide
nti

fie
d.  

Th
ere

 ar
e tw

o p
res

um
ed 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

risk
s w

hic
h a

re 
app

lica
ble

 to
 all

 au
dit

s 
un

der
 au

dit
ing

 sta
nd

ard
s (I

nte
rna

tio
nal

 St
and

ard
s o

n A
ud

itin
g –

ISA
s)  

wh
ich

 ar
e li

ste
d b

elo
w:

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t r
is

k
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

S
u

b
st

an
ti

ve
 a

u
d

it
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s

R
ev

en
u

e
U

nd
er

 IS
A

 2
40

 th
er

e 
is

a 
pr

es
um

ed
 ri

sk
 th

at
 

re
ve

nu
e 

(w
hi

ch
 fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

f 
M

er
se

ys
id

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

w
e 

ha
ve

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

nc
om

e,
 tr

an
sf

er
s 

in
to

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

an
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

) m
ay

 b
e 

m
is

st
at

ed
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

im
pr

op
er

 re
co

gn
iti

on
 o

f 
re

ve
nu

e.

�
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 te

st
in

g 
of

 r
ev

en
ue

 r
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

po
lic

ie
s 

fo
r 

bo
th

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

co
m

e;
 a

nd

�
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f s
am

pl
e 

te
st

in
g 

on
 m

at
er

ia
l c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

an
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

nc
om

e 
st

re
am

s.
 

M
an

ag
em

en
to

ve
r-

ri
d

e 
o

f 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 
U

nd
er

IS
A

 2
40

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 p

re
su

m
ed

 ri
sk

 th
at

 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

ve
r-

rid
e 

of
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

is
 p

re
se

nt
 in

 a
ll 

en
tit

ie
s.

�
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

es
tim

at
es

, j
ud

ge
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 m

an
ag

em
en

t; 

�
T

es
tin

g 
of

 jo
ur

na
ls

 e
nt

rie
s;

 a
nd

�
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f u
nu

su
al

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
.

Page 15



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
10

Ot
her
 ris
ks

Th
e a

ud
ito

r sh
ou

ld e
val

uat
e t

he 
des

ign
 an

d d
ete

rm
ine

 th
e im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f th

e e
nti

ty's
 co

ntr
ols

, in
clu

din
g r

ele
van

t co
ntr

ol 
act

ivit
ies

, o
ver

 th
ose

 ris
ks 

for
 wh

ich
, in

 th
e 

aud
ito

r's 
jud

gm
ent

, it
 is 

no
t p

oss
ibl

e o
r p

rac
tica

ble
 to

 re
du

ce 
the

 ris
ks 

of 
ma

ter
ial 

mi
sst

ate
me

nt 
at t

he 
ass

ert
ion

 lev
el t

o a
n a

cce
pta

bly
 lo

w l
eve

l w
ith

 au
dit

 ev
ide

nce
 ob

tain
ed 

on
ly f

rom
 su

bst
ant

ive
 pr

oce
du

res
 (IS

A 3
15)

. 

Ot
he

r r
ea

so
na

bly
 po

ssi
ble

 
ris

ks
De

scr
ipt

ion
Pla

nn
ed

 au
dit

pro
ce

du
re

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 n

ot
 v

al
id

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
ct

iv
ity

 n
ot

va
lid

F
ai

r 
va

lu
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t n
ot

 c
or

re
ct

•
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
n

be
tw

ee
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

fu
nd

 m
an

ag
er

s,
 th

e 
cu

st
od

ia
n 

an
d 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

's
 o

w
n 

re
co

rd
s 

an
d 

se
ek

 e
xp

la
na

tio
ns

 fo
r 

an
y 

va
ria

nc
es

. 

•
W

e 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 re

ga
rd

 to
 th

e 
in

 y
ea

r 
ch

an
ge

 o
f c

us
to

di
an

 a
nd

 s
ee

k 
to

 g
ai

n 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

ov
er

 th
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

tr
an

sf
er

 o
f a

ss
et

s.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

ha
ve

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 re

ga
rd

 to
 th

e 
ap

po
in

tm
en

t o
f p

as
si

ve
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 tr
an

sf
er

 o
f £

1.
4b

n 
of

 a
ss

et
s 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 s

el
ec

t a
sa

m
pl

e 
of

 th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 h

el
d 

by
 th

e 
S

ch
em

e 
at

 th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

 a
nd

 
th

en
 te

st
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sa

m
pl

e 
by

 a
gr

ee
in

g 
pr

ic
es

 to
 th

ird
 p

ar
ty

 s
ou

rc
es

 w
he

re
 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
(q

uo
te

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
) o

r 
by

 c
rit

ic
al

ly
 a

ss
es

si
ng

 th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 u
se

d 
in

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
(u

nq
uo

te
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 d
ire

ct
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

).
 

•
T

he
 e

xi
st

en
ce

 o
f i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
 d

ire
ct

ly
 w

ith
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t c
us

to
di

an
s 

or
 b

y 
ag

re
em

en
t t

o 
le

ga
l d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 te

st
 a

 s
am

pl
e 

of
  s

al
es

an
d 

di
sp

os
al

s 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 b
ac

k 
to

 d
et

ai
le

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
cu

st
od

ia
n 

an
d 

fu
nd

 m
an

ag
er

s.

B
en

ef
it

P
ay

m
en

ts
B

en
ef

its
 im

pr
op

er
ly

 c
om

pu
te

d/
cl

ai
m

s
lia

bi
lit

y 
un

de
rs

ta
te

d
•

W
e 

w
ill

 s
el

ec
t a

 s
am

pl
e 

of
 in

di
vi

du
al

 tr
an

sf
er

s,
 p

en
si

on
s 

in
 p

ay
m

en
t (

ne
w

 a
nd

 e
xi

st
in

g)
, l

um
p 

su
m

 b
en

ef
its

 a
nd

 r
ef

un
ds

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 te

st
ed

 b
y 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

m
em

be
r f

ile
s.

  T
hi

s 
te

st
in

g 
is

 
de

si
gn

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

is
 c

or
re

ct
ly

 fi
le

d 
an

d 
in

te
rn

al
 

co
nt

ro
l p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
op

er
at

ed
 b

y 
M

er
se

ys
id

e 
P

en
si

on
F

un
d

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
fo

llo
w

ed
.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 r

at
io

na
lis

e 
pe

ns
io

ns
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 to

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

en
si

on
er

 n
um

be
rs

 a
nd

 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

ap
pl

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 c

om
pa

rin
g 

pe
ns

io
ns

 p
ai

d 
on

 a
 m

on
th

ly
 b

as
is

 to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 a

ny
 u

nu
su

al
 tr

en
ds

 a
re

 s
at

is
fa

ct
or

ily
 e

xp
la

in
ed

.

•
T

he
 m

ov
em

en
ts

 o
n 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

st
at

is
tic

s 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
re

co
rd

s.

Page 16



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
11

Ot
her
 ris
ks 
con

tin
ued

O
th

er
 r

ea
so

n
ab

ly
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 r
is

ks
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

P
la

n
n

ed
 a

u
d

it
p

ro
ce

d
u

re

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
R

ec
or

de
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 n
ot

 c
or

re
ct

.
•

W
e 

w
ill

 te
st

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

 o
pe

ra
te

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 it
 r

ec
ei

ve
s 

al
l e

xp
ec

te
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 fr
om

 m
em

be
r b

od
ie

s.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 r

at
io

na
lis

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 re

ce
iv

ed
 w

ith
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 to
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 m
em

be
r b

od
y 

pa
yr

ol
ls

 a
nd

 n
um

be
rs

 o
f c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

pe
ns

io
ne

rs
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ny

 u
ne

xp
ec

te
d 

tr
en

ds
 

ar
e 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
ily

 e
xp

la
in

ed
.

A
X

IS
e

to
 A

lta
ir

T
he

 fu
nd

s 
A

X
IS

e
sy

st
em

 (
pe

ns
io

ns
 p

ay
ro

ll 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

) i
s 

be
in

g 
ch

an
ge

d 
in

 y
ea

r 
to

 A
lta

ir.
  

•
W

e 
w

ill
 g

ai
n 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 th

e 
ne

w
 s

ys
te

m
 is

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y,
 a

nd
 g

en
er

at
es

 
co

rr
ec

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
fo

r 
in

cl
us

io
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.;

•
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
da

ta
 m

ig
ra

tio
n 

fr
om

 A
X

IS
e

to
 A

lta
ir,

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
  p

rio
r 

an
d 

po
st

 s
ys

te
m

 c
ha

ng
e,

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
re

co
rd

s 
he

ld
 in

 th
e 

ne
w

 s
ys

te
m

 a
re

 a
cc

ur
at

e;
an

d

•
W

e 
w

ill
, w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 s

ee
k 

to
 o

bt
ai

n 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
.

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 b

an
k 

T
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 h
as

 c
ha

ng
ed

 it
s 

pr
ov

id
er

 
of

 b
an

ki
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fr

om
  R

B
S

to
 L

lo
yd

s 
 

T
S

B

•
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 te

st
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
s 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
 b

ef
or

e 
an

d 
af

te
r 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f 

tr
an

sf
er

 o
f b

an
ks

;a
nd

•
W

e 
w

ill
 o

bt
ai

n 
di

re
ct

 c
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
fr

om
  R

B
S

to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

ey
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 h
ol

d 
as

se
ts

 o
f t

he
 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

.

Page 17



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
12

Re
sul
ts o

f in
ter
im
 au
dit
 wo

rk
Sc

op
e

As
 pa

rt o
f th

e in
ter

im
 au

dit
 wo

rk 
and

 in
 ad

van
ce 

of 
ou

r fi
nal

 ac
cou

nts
 au

dit
 fie

ldw
ork

, w
e h

ave
 co

nsi
der

ed:
•

the
 ef

fec
tiv

ene
ss 

of 
the

 in
ter

nal
 au

dit
 fu

nct
ion

•
int

ern
al a

ud
it's

 wo
rk 

on
 th

e P
ens

ion
 fu

nd
's k

ey 
fin

anc
ial 

sys
tem

s
•

wa
lkt

hro
ugh

 tes
tin

g t
o c

on
firm

 wh
eth

er 
con

tro
ls a

re 
im

ple
me

nte
d a

s p
er 

ou
r u

nd
ers

tan
din

g in
 ar

eas
 wh

ere
 we

 ha
ve 

ide
nti

fie
d a

 ris
k o

f m
ate

ria
l m

iss
tat

em
ent

•
a r

evi
ew

 of
 In

for
ma

tio
n T

ech
no

log
y (I

T) 
con

tro
ls

W
o

rk
p

er
fo

rm
ed

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

/S
u

m
m

ar
y

In
te

rn
al

au
d

it
W

e 
ar

e 
re

vi
ew

in
g 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it'
s 

ov
er

al
l a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 C
IP

F
A

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e.
 W

he
re

 th
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
re

 d
ee

m
ed

 to
 b

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
, w

e 
ca

n 
ta

ke
 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l w
or

k 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
y 

in
te

rn
al

 
au

di
t a

nd
 c

an
 c

on
cl

ud
e 

th
at

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

its
el

f i
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

po
si

tiv
el

y 
to

 th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 o

ve
ra

ll 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d.

T
he

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
S

er
vi

ce
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
ha

ng
es

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 

F
or

 th
e 

fir
st

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 y

ea
r 

w
e 

ca
nn

ot
 c

on
cl

ud
e 

th
at

th
e 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
se

rv
ic

e 
 h

as
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t a

nd
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 th

e
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d

, a
nd

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

w
e 

ca
n 

no
t t

ak
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
fr

om
 th

ei
r 

w
or

k 
in

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
in

g 
to

 a
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
t t

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d.

  

W
e 

ar
e

no
w

 a
ss

es
si

ng
 th

e 
ne

w
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r 
th

e 
se

co
nd

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 y

ea
r.

  W
e 

w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

w
or

k 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
y 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f t

he
 r

is
ks

 to
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d,

 a
nd

 c
on

cl
ud

e 
on

 w
he

th
er

 
th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

 is
 n

ow
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

po
si

tiv
el

y 
to

 th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t a
nd

 o
ve

ra
ll 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d.

W
al

kt
h

ro
u

g
h

te
st

in
g

W
al

kt
hr

ou
gh

 te
st

s 
w

er
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ac
co

un
ts

 a
ss

er
tio

n 
ris

ks
 w

hi
ch

 w
e 

co
ns

id
er

 to
 p

re
se

nt
 a

 r
is

k 
of

 m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

t t
o 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

W
ith

th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 y
ea

r 
en

d 
pr

oc
es

se
s,

 w
e 

ha
ve

 w
al

ke
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

al
l m

at
er

ia
l 

sy
st

em
s 

th
at

 w
e 

co
ns

id
er

 p
re

se
nt

 a
 r

is
k 

of
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

.

W
hi

ls
t n

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 is
su

es
 w

er
e 

no
te

d,
 a

nd
 in

-y
ea

r 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

w
er

e 
ob

se
rv

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
be

en
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 o
ur

 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

nt
ro

l w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

e 
w

is
h 

to
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

yo
u:

�
W

e 
ha

ve
 e

vi
de

nc
ed

 th
at

 b
an

k 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t. 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
e 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

n 
se

le
ct

ed
 fo

r 
re

vi
ew

 w
as

 n
ot

 s
ig

ne
d 

or
 d

at
ed

. T
he

re
fo

re
 w

e 
ca

nn
ot

 c
on

fir
m

 th
e 

tim
el

in
es

s 
of

 r
ev

ie
w

.  
T

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

m
us

t e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 it
 

si
gn

s 
an

d 
da

te
s 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
 , 

in
  a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 it

s 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

.

Page 18



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
13

Re
sul
ts o

f in
ter
im
 au
dit
 wo

rk 
(co
nti
nu
ed)

W
o

rk
p

er
fo

rm
ed

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

/S
u

m
m

ar
y

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y
(I

T
) 

co
n

tr
o

ls
O

ur
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t w

ill
 p

er
fo

rm
a 

hi
gh

 le
ve

l r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l I

T
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t c
ov

er
in

g 
bo

th
th

e 
ad

m
in

is
te

rin
g 

au
th

or
ity

 (W
irr

al
 C

ou
nc

il)
 a

nd
 M

er
se

ys
id

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d,

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l r

ev
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
sy

st
em

. W
e 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
fo

llo
w

 
up

  t
he

 is
su

es
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 r
ai

se
d 

in
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r.

 W
e 

w
ill

 
co

nc
lu

de
 w

he
th

er
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

an
y 

m
at

er
ia

l w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

lik
el

y 
to

 a
dv

er
se

ly
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d'
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

.

T
hi

s 
w

or
k 

is
 in

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
   

W
e 

w
ill

 r
ep

or
t a

ny
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 fi
nd

in
gs

 
to

 y
ou

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t.

Jo
u

rn
al

 e
n

tr
y 

co
n

tr
o

ls
W

e 
ha

ve
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d'
s 

jo
ur

na
l e

nt
ry

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

ou
r 

jo
ur

na
l e

nt
ry

 te
st

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 
an

d 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
y 

m
at

er
ia

l w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 to
 

ad
ve

rs
el

y 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d'
s

co
nt

ro
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t o
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

W
e 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
te

st
in

g 
on

 jo
ur

na
l t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 re

co
rd

ed
 

fo
r 

th
e 

fir
st

 n
in

e 
m

on
th

s 
of

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r,
 b

y 
ex

tr
ac

tin
g 

'u
nu

su
al

' e
nt

rie
s 

fo
r 

fu
rt

he
r r

ev
ie

w
. N

o 
is

su
es

 h
av

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 r

eq
ui

re
 to

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

.  
W

e 
w

ill
te

st
 jo

ur
na

l 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 y

ea
r 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

l 
ac

co
un

ts
 v

is
it.

Page 19



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
14

Th
e 
au

di
t c

yc
le

Lo
gis
tics
 an
d o
ur 
tea
m

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

/
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 

D
eb

ri
ef

In
te

ri
m

 a
u

d
it

vi
si

t
F

in
al

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 
vi

si
t

F
eb

ru
ar

y-
M

ar
ch

 2
01

3
Ju

ly
-S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
3

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

3
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
01

3

Ke
y p

ha
se
s o

f o
ur
 a
ud

it

20
12

-2
01

3

Da
te

Ac
tiv

ity

F
eb

ru
ar

y/
M

ar
ch

20
13

In
te

rim
 s

ite
 w

or
k 

10
Ju

n
e 

20
13

T
he

 a
ud

it 
pl

an
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 

A
ud

it
C

om
m

itt
ee

1
Ju

ly
 2

01
3

Y
ea

r
en

d 
fie

ld
w

or
k 

co
m

m
en

ce
s

A
u

g
u

st
 

20
13

A
ud

it 
fin

di
ng

s 
cl

ea
ra

nc
e

m
ee

tin
g

T
B

C
P

en
si

on
s 

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 

m
ee

tin
g 

to
 r

ep
or

t o
ur

 
fin

di
ng

s

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 
20

13
A

ud
it

C
om

m
itt

ee
 m

ee
tin

g 
to

 r
ep

or
t o

ur
 fi

nd
in

gs

S
ep

te
m

b
er

20
13

Is
su

e 
op

in
io

n 
on

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
t a

nd
 

an
nu

al
 re

po
rt

Ou
r t
ea

m

M
ik

e 
T

h
o

m
as

D
ir

ec
to

r
T

 0
16

1
21

4 
63

68
M

 0
78

80
 4

56
 1

73
E

 m
ik

e.
th

om
as

@
uk

.g
t.c

om
 

H
ea

th
er

G
re

en
M

an
ag

er
T

 0
16

1
23

4 
63

81
M

 0
78

80
 4

56
 2

01
E

 h
ea

th
er

.g
re

en
@

uk
.g

t.c
om

 

C
h

ri
s

B
la

ke
m

o
re

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
T

 0
16

1
21

4 
63

97
E

 c
hr

is
.b

la
ke

m
or

e@
uk

.g
t.c

om
 

Page 20



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
15

Fe
es

£

Pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

 a
ud

it
36

,5
80

Fee
s a
nd
 in
dep

end
enc

e

Ou
r f
ee

 a
ss
um

pt
io
ns
 in
cl
ud

e:
�

Ou
r fe

es 
are

 ex
clu

siv
e o

f V
AT

 
�

Su
pp

ort
ing

 sc
hed

ule
s to

 all
 fig

ure
s in

 th
e a

cco
un

ts 
are

 su
pp

lied
 by

 th
e a

gre
ed 

dat
es 

and
 in

 ac
cor

dan
ce 

wit
h t

he 
agr

eed
 up

on
 in

for
ma

tio
n r

equ
est

 lis
t

�
Th

e s
cop

e o
f th

e a
ud

it, 
and

 th
e P

ens
ion

 fu
nd

 an
d i

ts 
act

ivit
ies

 ha
ve 

no
t ch

ang
ed 

sig
nif

ica
ntl

y
�

Th
e P

ens
ion

 fu
nd

 wi
ll m

ake
 av

aila
ble

 m
ana

gem
ent

 
and

 ac
cou

nti
ng 

sta
ff t

o h
elp

 us
 lo

cat
e in

for
ma

tio
n 

and
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 ex

pla
nat

ion
s

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 e
th
ic
s

We
 co

nfi
rm

 th
at t

her
e a

re 
no

 sig
nif

ica
nt 

fac
ts o

r m
att

ers
 th

at i
mp

act
 on

 ou
r in

dep
end

enc
e a

s a
ud

ito
rs t

hat
 we

 ar
e 

req
uir

ed 
or 

wis
h t

o d
raw

 to
 yo

ur 
att

ent
ion

. W
e h

ave
 co

mp
lied

 wi
th 

the
 Au

dit
ing

 Pr
act

ice
s B

oar
d's

 Et
hic

al 
Sta

nd
ard

s a
nd

 th
ere

for
e w

e c
on

firm
 th

at w
e a

re 
ind

epe
nd

ent
 an

d a
re 

abl
e to

 ex
pre

ss 
an 

ob
jec

tiv
e o

pin
ion

 on
 th

e 
fin

anc
ial 

sta
tem

ent
s.

Fu
ll d

eta
ils 

of 
all 

fee
s c

har
ged

 fo
r a

ud
it a

nd
 no

n-a
ud

it s
erv

ice
s w

ill b
e in

clu
ded

 in
 ou

r A
ud

it F
ind

ing
s re

po
rt a

t th
e 

con
clu

sio
n o

f th
e a

ud
it.

We
 co

nfi
rm

 th
at w

e h
ave

 im
ple

me
nte

d p
oli

cie
s a

nd
 pr

oce
du

res
 to

 m
eet

 th
e r

equ
ire

me
nt 

of 
the

 Au
dit

ing
 Pr

act
ice

s 
Bo

ard
's E

thi
cal

 St
and

ard
s.

Fe
es
 fo

r o
th
er
 se

rv
ic
es

S
er

vi
ce

F
ee

s 
£

A
dd

iti
on

al
 w

or
k 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f t
he

 e
xt

ra
 r

is
ks

 id
en

tif
ie

d.

W
e 

ha
ve

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ris

ks
 in

 2
01

2/
13

 th
at

 m
ay

 r
eq

ui
re

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 w

or
k,

 o
ve

r 
an

d 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

w
or

k 
w

e 
w

ou
ld

 n
or

m
al

ly
 e

xp
ec

t t
o 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
to

 a
ud

it 
yo

ur
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.  

T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

ad
di

tio
na

l w
or

k 
re

qu
ire

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ad
eq

ua
cy

 o
f p

la
ns

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

an
d 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f w

or
k 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 b

y 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it.

  I
f w

e 
id

en
tif

y 
th

at
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 w
or

k 
 a

nd
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 fe
e 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

, w
e 

w
ill

 d
is

cu
ss

 th
is

 in
 th

e 
fir

st
 

in
st

an
ce

 w
ith

 M
an

ag
em

en
t .

T
B

C

Page 21



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
16

Co
mm

un
ica
tio
n o
f a
ud
it m

att
ers
 wi
th 
tho
se 
cha
rge
d w

ith
 go
ver
nan

ce
O

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
 p

la
n

A
u

d
it

 
p

la
n

A
u

d
it

 
fi

n
d

in
g

s

R
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 a

ud
ito

r 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t/t
ho

se
 c

ha
rg

ed
 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e

�

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 p
la

nn
ed

 s
co

pe
 a

nd
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 th
e 

au
di

t. 
F

or
m

, t
im

in
g 

an
d 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 g
en

er
al

 c
on

te
nt

 o
f c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
�

V
ie

w
s 

ab
ou

t t
he

 q
ua

lit
at

iv
e 

as
pe

ct
s 

 o
f t

he
 e

nt
ity

's
ac

co
un

tin
g 

an
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 re
po

rt
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

es
, s

ig
ni

fic
an

t m
at

te
rs

 a
nd

 is
su

e 
ar

is
in

g 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

au
di

t a
nd

 w
rit

te
n 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 s
ou

gh
t

�

C
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
of

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 o
bj

ec
tiv

ity
�

�

A
 s

ta
te

m
en

t t
ha

t w
e 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
  r

el
ev

an
t e

th
ic

al
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
,  

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 m

at
te

rs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ig

ht
  

be
 th

ou
gh

t t
o 

be
ar

 o
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

. 

D
et

ai
ls

 o
f n

on
-a

ud
it 

w
or

k 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 b
y 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

 a
nd

 
ne

tw
or

k 
fir

m
s,

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

  f
ee

s 
ch

ar
ge

d.
  

D
et

ai
ls

 o
f s

af
eg

ua
rd

s 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 th
re

at
s 

to
 in

de
pe

nd
en

ce

�
�

M
at

er
ia

l w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
au

di
t

�

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
or

 s
us

pi
ci

on
 o

f f
ra

ud
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
/o

r 
ot

he
rs

 
w

hi
ch

 r
es

ul
ts

 in
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

�

N
on

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

�

E
xp

ec
te

d 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 to

 th
e 

au
di

to
r's

 re
po

rt
, o

r 
em

ph
as

is
 o

f m
at

te
r

�

U
nc

or
re

ct
ed

 m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
�

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t m

at
te

rs
 a

ris
in

g 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

tie
s

�

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t m

at
te

rs
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 g
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
�

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

n 
A

ud
iti

ng
  (

IS
A

) 
26

0,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
ot

he
r 

IS
A

s,
 p

re
sc

rib
e 

m
at

te
rs

 
w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ith

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e,
 a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 
w

e 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

op
po

si
te

.  

T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t, 

T
he

 A
ud

it 
P

la
n,

 o
ut

lin
es

 o
ur

 a
ud

it 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 p

la
n 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
au

di
t, 

w
hi

le
 T

he
 A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 p
rio

r 
to

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
  a

nd
 

w
ill

 p
re

se
nt

 k
ey

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 m
at

te
rs

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

au
di

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 a

n 
ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
as

 to
 h

ow
 th

es
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

so
lv

ed
.

W
e 

w
ill

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
an

y 
ad

ve
rs

e 
or

 u
ne

xp
ec

te
d 

fin
di

ng
s 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
th

e 
au

di
t o

n 
a 

tim
el

y 
ba

si
s,

 e
ith

er
 in

fo
rm

al
ly

 o
r 

vi
a 

a 
re

po
rt

 to
 th

os
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e.

Re
sp
ec

tiv
e 
re
sp
on

sib
ili
tie

s
T

hi
s 

pl
an

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f t
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 

A
ud

ito
rs

 a
nd

 A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

ie
s 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 (w
w

w
.a

ud
it-

co
m

m
is

si
on

.g
ov

.u
k)

. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ap

po
in

te
d 

as
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il
an

d 
P

en
si

on
 fu

nd
's

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t e

xt
er

na
l 

au
di

to
rs

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, t

he
 b

od
y 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

ap
po

in
tin

g 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
 

to
 lo

ca
l p

ub
lic

 b
od

ie
s 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
. A

s 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
, w

e 
ha

ve
 a

 b
ro

ad
 r

em
it 

co
ve

rin
g 

fin
an

ce
 a

nd
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
m

at
te

rs
. 

O
ur

 a
nn

ua
l w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

is
 s

et
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

('t
he

 
C

od
e'

) 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

es
 n

at
io

na
lly

 p
re

sc
rib

ed
 a

nd
 lo

ca
lly

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 w
or

k.
 O

ur
 w

or
k 

co
ns

id
er

s 
th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d'

s 
ke

y 
ris

ks
 w

he
n 

re
ac

hi
ng

 o
ur

 
co

nc
lu

si
on

s 
un

de
r 

th
e 

C
od

e.
 

T
he

 a
ud

it 
of

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 fu
nd

's
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 d

oe
s 

no
t r

el
ie

ve
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
r 

th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
of

 th
ei

r 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s.

Page 22



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
17

Ap
pen

dic
es

Page 23



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
18

Ac
tio
n p
lan

P
ri

o
ri

ty
H

ig
h

-
S

ig
ni

fic
an

t e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
co

nt
ro

l s
ys

te
m

M
ed

iu
m

-
E

ffe
ct

 o
n 

co
nt

ro
l s

ys
te

m
L

o
w

-
B

es
t p

ra
ct

ic
e

R
ec

N
o

.
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
P

ri
o

ri
ty

M
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
p

o
n

se
Im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

d
at

e 
&

 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty

1
W

e 
ha

ve
 e

vi
de

nc
ed

 th
at

 b
an

k 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t. 
H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 r

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

se
le

ct
ed

 fo
r 

re
vi

ew
 w

as
 n

ot
 s

ig
ne

d 
or

 d
at

ed
. T

he
re

fo
re

 
w

e 
ca

nn
ot

 c
on

fir
m

 th
e 

tim
el

in
es

s 
of

 r
ev

ie
w

.  
T

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

m
us

t e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 it
 

si
gn

s 
an

d 
da

te
s 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
, i

n 
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 it

s 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

.

M
ed

iu
m

B
an

k 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

 a
re

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

on
 a

 m
on

th
ly

 b
as

is
. 

H
ow

ev
er

,M
P

F
 w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
al

l f
ut

ur
e 

ba
nk

 re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
 

ar
e 

si
gn

ed
 a

nd
 d

at
ed

 to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
is

.

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

.

P
et

er
 W

al
la

ch

Page 24



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
UK

 L
LP

, a
 li

m
ite

d 
lia

bi
lit

y
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

. 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r f

irm
 o

f G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l L
td

 
(G

ra
nt

Th
or

nt
on

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 
to

 th
e 

br
an

d 
un

de
r w

hi
ch

 th
e 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

re
fe

r t
o 

on
e 

or
 m

or
e 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t r

eq
ui

re
s.

 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l a

nd
 th

e 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s 
ar

e 
no

t a
 

wo
rld

wi
de

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 b

y 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

or
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
of

 o
ne

 a
no

th
er

. G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l d
oe

s 
no

t p
ro

vi
de

 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 c
lie

nt
s.

 

gr
an

t-t
ho

rn
to

n.
co

.u
k

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

24 JUNE  2013 

SUBJECT: LGPS UPDATE 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF 

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

 
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

 

KEY DECISION NO  
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report updates Members on the technical responses from MPF to the second 
round of Statutory Consultations in regard the new LGPS from 1 April 2014. 

 
1.2 In addition, the report summarises the draft Miscellaneous Amendments Regulations 

2013 in relation to the current Scheme and also an overview of the intended national 
communication strategy to promote understanding of the new Scheme.   

 
1.3 It also covers the enactment of the Public Service Pension Act 2013 and MPF’s 

response to the recent DWP consultation on Automatic Enrolment simplification.  
 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

Reform of the LGPS – The 2014 Project 
 

2.1 Members previously considered the Fund’s formal response to the first consultation 
on the main elements of the new Scheme at the last committee meeting on 25 
March 2013 (minute 79 refers). 

 
2.2 On 28 March the DCLG published a further three part consultation: 
 

Part A: a second issue of the main Scheme elements from April 2014; 
 

Part B: transitional provisions to protect members’ previous pension 
entitlement on the introduction of the new Scheme  

 
Part C: relates to miscellaneous amendments to the current Scheme 

regulations. 
 
2.3    The consultation closing date for Part A was 3 May 2013 and 24 May 2013 for both 

Part B and C.  MPF submitted formal responses within the prescribed deadlines 
after seeking the approval of the Chair of the Pension Committee. The respective 
responses are attached as Appendices 1 & 2. 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 27



 
  Consultation - Part A:   Draft Main Scheme Regulations 2013 
                                         
2.4 The focus of the response related to the provisions that lacked clarity within the draft 

Regulations and a consideration of the technical and operational practicalities; 
including administrative ease and areas of inequitable treatment of the Fund’s 
diverse membership. 

 
In acknowledgment of the increasing complexity resulting from the statutory 
protection of accrued pension rights, the underlying theme taken by MPF is that 
simplification should be sought where possible.  This will assist funds and employers 
in both operational delivery and in communicating the continuing value of Scheme 
participation to the membership. 

 
2.5 The consultation also requested comments on outstanding policy issues within the 

main Scheme regulations and this formed the main part of the MPF response 
(Appendix 1).   Specifically the main issues of contention relate to the disparate 
revaluation of specific pension accounts and the requirement for Certificates of 
Protection within a CARE scheme - these issues are summarised as: 

 
2.6 Revaluation   
 

A fundamental component of a Career Average scheme relates to the revaluation of 
active pension accounts. The use of a single index for all categories of pension 
accounts would provide transparency with regard to the growth in value and this was 
advocated in the MPF response. 

 
The use of a separate index for active accounts in accordance with Treasury Orders 
as opposed to the use of the Pension Increase (Review) Order for deferred and 
pensioner accounts may lead to inequitable treatment of members - as there is the 
potential that the value of Pension Increase Orders may exceed Treasury Orders. 

 
This mismatch of approach will complicate the decision process for re-employed 
members considering the merits of aggregating previous benefits   

 
2.7 Certificate of Protection 
 

The design of a Career Average scheme does not generally lend itself to the former 
concept of a ‘Certificate of Protection’ in circumstances of reduced pay.  

 
In the current Final Salary arrangement, a reduction in pay can retrospectively 
reduce the value of a member’s accrued pension – that may go back decades.  The 
new career average arrangement means that there is an annual pension accrual 
based on their contributions and pensionable pay earned; this is then banked going 
forward and unaffected by future changes to pay.   
 
However, there is a case to protect future pension accrual in circumstances where a 
member reduces pay due to an illness that ultimately leads to an ill health retirement 
or death.   
  
 

Page 28



Consultation - Part B:  Draft Transitional Provisions & Savings Regulations 
 
2.8 MPF responded with the opinion that, in the main, the Transitional Provisions 

achieve the intended objective of protecting members’ previous pension entitlements 
(Appendix 2) 

 
However, there are a number of areas within the draft Regulations that appear 
ambiguous, that may lead to misunderstandings and ultimately erroneous benefit 
payments. This could result in increased employer costs or increased administration 
costs for MPF.  The main issues are summarised as: 

 
2.9 Regulation 4 – Statutory Underpin 
 

The general consensus within the LGPS is that the Statutory underpin was intended 
to ensure that no member within 10 years of age 65 as at 1 April 2012 is worse off 
under the new Scheme provisions. This means that those members who would see 
a change in their pension age in that period will get a pension at least equal to that 
which they would have received in the current Scheme.  

 
The wording of the regulation is unclear with regard to the applicable underpin date 
as, although the current Scheme’s normal retirement age is 65, members may 
access unreduced benefits from age 60 if they qualify under the ‘85 Year Rule’.   

 
If it is the intention to set the underpin date at age 65 this would disadvantage 
members who qualify for an early release of unreduced benefits from age 60. 

 
2.10 Regulation 23 – Councillor Pensions 
 

Although there is a separate consultation on the subject of councillor pensions, it 
would appear that in the event of councillors retaining their right to participate to the 
LGPS it is the intention for future benefit entitlements to remain under the former 
1997 Regulations. 

 
MPF reiterated its opinion provided to earlier consultations that to simplify 
operational requirements and reduce administration costs the future benefit structure 
of councillor pensions should mirror the provisions within the main scheme. 

 
Furthermore, if it is deemed that councillor access to the Scheme should cease, 
provisions will be required to deal with the payment of deferred benefits, particularly 
in circumstances of attainment of normal retirement age when remaining as an 
elected office holder.   

 
2.11 Regulation 25 Calculation of Final Pay 
 

Members who were active on 31 March 2014 are afforded the benefit of a protected 
‘Final Pensionable Pay’ which, as currently drafted, allows pre-2014 benefits to be 
calculated using the definition of pensionable pay under the 2014 scheme if it is of a 
higher value. 

 
The post-2014 salary will result in a higher figure for many members as it includes 
‘non-contractual’ overtime and provides the opportunity for members to inflate their 

Page 29



‘Final Pensionable Pay’ pay prior to retirement - leading to a windfall gain rather than 
a preservation of previous benefit entitlements. 

 
Consequently if this is the policy intent and not a drafting error, this measure would 
place significant cost pressures on employer budgets - pension liabilities will 
increase as will employer funding deficits and the associated deficit recovery 
contributions. 

 
 

Consultation - Part C:  Draft Miscellaneous Amendment Regulations 
 
2.12 These provisions make amendments to the current LGPS Benefits and 

Administration Regulations as part of the ongoing stewardship of the 2008 Scheme. 
The key comments made in the response relate to the amendments on entry 
provisions and Actuarial Certificates. 

 
2.13 Regulation 6 – Joining the Scheme 
 

It is recognised that this provision ensures that the LGPS satisfies the criteria as a 
qualifying scheme, as defined within the 2008 Pension Act and it will affect all 
employers who employ staff on employment contracts of less than three months. 

This amendment removes the exclusion of employees with a contract of less than 
three months from being automatically enrolled into the Scheme upon the member’s 
automatic enrolment or re-enrolment date.  

However, this change of admitting such members to the Scheme will result in 
burdensome administration for both employers and funds. It may therefore be 
practical for employers to issue postponement notices to the affected employees 
until they have been employed for three months by virtue of a contract extension.  

 
2.14 Regulation 7 – Revised Actuarial Certificates 
 

The amendment deals with employer terminations and it introduces the definition of 
an exiting employer to clarify that cessation provisions apply to all employers within 
the Scheme. It also defines the framework for recovering exit debts 

 
The proposed changes explicitly enable the Administering Authority to spread debts 
over a reasonable period where the debt falls to another Scheme employer.  

 
MPF commented that it would be prudent to also permit the exiting employer to 
spread the debts assessed at termination to mitigate the risk of unrecoverable debt 
falling to back on the Fund.  

 
 
Regulatory Framework for April 2014 – outstanding regulations 

 
2.15 As part of the ongoing creation of the regulatory framework for the new Scheme, a 

further set of regulations are expected shortly, covering the areas of Governance 
and Cost Management.   

 

Page 30



There will also be regulations to cover the outstanding LGPS Administration items, 
which are required prior to implementation of the new Scheme. 
 

  
LGPS 2014 – Member Communications 

 
2.16 The LGA is collaboratively working with funds and Trade Unions on creating 

communication resources for members on the new Scheme. MPF has 
representatives on the main working party and also individual sub-groups tasked 
with specific areas of communication work. 

 
The communication strategy has been drafted over the past three months and there 
are plans to provide a suite of topic based leaflets and videos. There also plans to 
develop and deliver a ‘Benefit Modeller’ to act as an educational tool for members 
with their understanding of the new Scheme. 

 
2.17 As part of the shared services arrangement with the LGA, MPF has arranged for the 

first of a series of short videos to be accessed on the LGPS 2014 website. 
  

“This is a short lively graphics based video with music and is intended to engage 
scheme members and introduce them to the high level changes being made from 
next April.” 

 
2.18  Further short topic based videos are also planned to be available later this year to 

cover: 
• When can I retire/take my benefits? 
• How is my pension worked out/pension accounts? 
• Contribution Flexibility – including 50/50 option 
• If you joined the LGPS before 1 April 2014 

 
It is also intended to produce a promotional video solely covering the new Scheme 
provisions for new members.  

 

Page 31



 
The Public Service Pension Act 2013 

 
2.19 The Public Service Pension Bill received Royal Assent on 25 April 2013 providing 

the framework for the forthcoming changes to public sector pension schemes, with 
the key implications for the LGPS can be summarised as: 
   

•  provides for scheme regulations to be made within a common framework and 
establishes new Career Average Revalued Earning schemes across public 
sector schemes. 

 

•  links the normal retirement age to State Pension age; 
 

•  develops a new governance framework and introduces new terms including 
the 

 
- Responsible Authority (the Secretary of State for Communities and   
Local Government),  

 
- Scheme Manager (the Administering Authority),  

 
-  Pension Board (assisting the Scheme Manager at a local level)  

 
- Scheme Advisory Board (providing advice to the Responsible 
Authority and the Pension Boards) 

 
•  requires a cost control mechanism to keep the ongoing cost of the schemes 

within defined margins with steps outlining action to be taken. 
 
 
2.20  Auto-Enrolment  
 

The DWP published a consultation on 25 March 2013 with a closing date of 7 May 
2013.  This consultation proposed a series of technical changes to simplify the 
Automatic Enrolment legislation and the subsequent administration processes for 
employers. 

 
The MPF response is attached as Appendix 3 and supports the proposal to provide 
easements for employers who go beyond the minimum statutory requirements.   
 
Specifically, for those employers who automatically enrol all of their staff into a 
qualifying occupational pension scheme such as the LGPS, a national scheme 
exemption under the Auto–Enrolment legislation would remove the administrative 
burden of employers continually monitoring the ‘age and earnings of employees who 
have actively chosen not to be a member of the LGPS’.   

 

Page 32



 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 Paragraph 2.11 makes reference to what is believed to be a drafting error in defining 
protected ‘Final Pensionable Pay’.  If the definition as currently drafted is carried 
through into the final regulations it will impose substantial extra liabilities and funding 
costs for some employers.  

 
If, as it has been suggested across the LGPS as a whole, non-contractual overtime 
were to represent 1% to 2% of pensionable pay then past service deficits could 
increase by c.£50m to c.£100m within the Merseyside Fund;  with some employers 
being significantly more affected than others.    

 
3.2 There is a risk that due to the increasing complexity being built into the Scheme (as 

a consequence of the disparate benefit protections in relation to membership 
previously accrued) it will become challenging to persuade members of the relative 
merits of remaining in the Scheme which is fundamental to the ongoing funding of 
the LGPS. 

 
3.3 There is a risk that the complexities within the regulations will make it impractical to 

get the systems in place to administer the new Scheme, requiring manual 
intervention to ensure continuity of effective service levels.    

 
 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered. 
 

5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  
 

It is important that MPF responds to the statutory consultations that will lead to 
revised regulations and a reformed LGPS, particularly when relating to Governance, 
Cost Control and Administration, as it is crucial to ensure the scheme is well–run 
and affordable in the long term.  

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 MPF needs to initiate a formal strategic change programme to overhaul current 
administration arrangements, resources and communications; in recognition of the 
fundamental change of introducing a Career Average benefit pension arrangement 
complete with ongoing protections to the pre-2014 Final Salary benefits. 

 
7.2 The increased complexity of administration and data provision from employers will 

require MPF to strengthen its Quality Control activities and develop an appropriately 
resourced Quality Assurance programme. 

 

Page 33



7.3 The introduction of protected accrued benefit promises with the associated disparate 
pensionable pay definitions will introduce additional operational costs and resource 
issues for both employers and MPF. 

 
7.4  Employers would see a saving in operational payroll costs if the Auto-Enrolment 

easement is brought in by the DWP (paragraph 2.20) – they would no longer need to 
monitor employees in the intervening period between the date that the employee 
opted-out of contractual enrolment and the employer’s re-enrolment date,  

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 The reforms to the LGPS have already been assessed by Government with regard 

to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None arising from this report 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None arising from this report 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That Members note the report. 
 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 There is a requirement for Members of the Pension Committee to be kept up to date 
with legislative developments to carry out their decision making role in order to 
enable them to make informed decisions. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Yvonne Caddock 
  Principal Pension Officer 
  Telephone: 0151 242 1333 
 
  email:   yvonnecaddock@wirral.gov.uk 

Page 34



APPENDICES 
 

1 MPF submission dated 3 May 2013 to DCLG Consultation on Draft LGPS 2013 
Regulations 

 
2 MPF submission dated 24 May 2013 to DCLG Consultation on Draft 

Transitional Provisions and Draft Miscellaneous Amendment Regulations 2013 
 
3 MPF submission dated 3 May 2013 to DWP Consultation on Technical 

Changes To Automatic Enrolment 
 

REFERENCE MATERIAL 
 

 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

The LGPS update is a standing item on the 

Pensions Committee agenda. 

 

 

 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



 

�
�
�
�
�
�
��������	
�����������
�������������������	�����������
������������ � � � � � �
������ �!�
"

��#�$�	���
%������#����
����
���#��&��'�"���(�
� � �
�
�����)������*�
�
CONSULTATION RESPONSE: DRAFT REGULATIONS LGPS 2013 
 

[  PART A: draft regulations & related Annex B policy issues ] 
 

���������	
�����������
����������������
��������
����������������
���
��	
�����������
�������� ��� ����������
�
���
���
������ ������ �!�����������
���
��	
�������
��������������
���
�����
��������
��
���
����
����
�������������"���������#��������
��	
����$��
������%&'���������������
����������
������������	(��	�����)* �
�
!�� �	
�� ���� ���� +,$'''� ������ ��
����	��
(� �����$� +&$"''� �
���
��� �
�� &%$"''�
�������
���
�� �-���������
�������������
����
���
������	
��
(��������
���
��	
�����
." ,�������
 �
�
+�,�	
#�-��������	
� ��*�	�,�	
#�����#����.�� ��

�,������������ �� ��
���������.������
�
������������������� ��.���� ����	
������ 
�	��.�#�����/�)���.� ����0� 1.�� ��������� ��
������� ��� ����� �� ��� �.�� �.���2����� #��	����&� �������

*� �.�� #����� ���	
������ ��#� �.��
��������#�3�	�����#�����
�*���	��4�������	�
���5��	��.������������,

�-���	-����#����
�����%���#��������-*��.�������#��*�#��#
�������6�)�*0�

�
������������������������������������������������������

���� ���������

1.�� 7	�#� ,�
������ �.�� ��2����#	����� ��� �� �,�� *���� ������� ����#&� ��#	����

�-
������#����#����.�����#�����#�������
����������

���
	��#������#�����	����
�
����,�.��.�������#���������0�7����8���
�&��.����9	������������	�����	�
�-������
�����������������-����,�.����

���
	��#������#��������0�

7������-����,.��.����������.����,��*��������-���.����������������
�*����&�
,.�� ���� �.��� �	-��9	���
*� ��2���
�*�#&� ,�� -�
���� �.�� ��.�� ��� �����	�� ���
���������� ������� ����	���� ��� �.�����-��:�� �.����,�.�� �.�� �8����� �������.�
����������#��.�	
#�-��������#&����������#�����	�����������������0�

� � �

� ���������	�
� �������������

� ��������������
� ���		����������

� ����
� �����������

Page 37



 

)��-���� ���#� ��� ������ �.�� ������	��*� ��� ����#��� �.�� ������
� ��
������� ���
����������� ��#� ����	
���*� ����������� ��	
#� -�� #��������
� �� �������
���	��������0�7����������&��

• ,.���� ���-���� .���� ���2���6����-���.�� ,�.� �� -���;� ��� ����� �.��� ��
*����&� �.�����
���
��*� 
�;���#���*�<��*�����	
������������,�	
#�-�� 
�������
����������=��

• �� ���	��������� ��� -���;�� ��� 
���� �.��� �� *����&� �.�� ��*� �� �.�� ��,�
���
�*�������.��-��
�����.����.������
�#�����.���������#������#�-�����&�
���	
�������.�����-���������������#	��#��������������������=�

• 
����� �.�� �-
�*� ��� #��,� #������#� -������� �� �������� ��� ���2���6�
���-���.�������#����������������.����,����
�*����0�

��������
*�,.���������-���.��� 
�����.����,��*��������-���.����#�-����������
���������-�������.����.���&��.�����������.-���������	�#&���,�	
#�-����������*�
����	�������

*����������� �.��#������#����	�#�����	���,�.� �.������������	������
����#�#�,�.�����	
������>�?�@�?�@���#�?#@�����.��#�������������0��

�

 �� ����������������
�������!���"�

1.�� ��9	������� ��� ��
�	
���� �� �	�-��� ��� ��*� ��	���� ���� ���.� ���-��� �
�����
���������-	�#�������-��.����
�*������#���������#�����������,.������;������
��
�	
�����.����
	��������2���6����-���.����#��	�	�������	�
�0��

+�� ��,� ��� �.�� ����
�8� �#���������� ��9	�������&� �.���� �� ��������� ����� ��
���
�*����.�����.�#����#���������A5��	��#��������-
����*:0��

1.����	
#�-����.���#�-*� �������� �.����9	�����������#����#�,�.�� ���	
�����
��?�@���#��	-���	����,�.��#$����#�%�&�'�(�����)��*����$+��)���,���-��*.%/��*�0(�
�)���,���1���$��#$����#�%�&�$,���23��$,����2�)����)��&�/��� �4��5/�$���)��'��,2$%/�
/#)�3��(����0�

1.��,�	
#� ���	�� ��,� ���������� �.�� ������� ��������� ��,�	
#�#�
���� �.�� �
������
����.� ���� �8�����#� ��*� 
���
�� ��#� ���
���� �� ������ ��� #���� ��

������ ���� �

�
��������#�������0�

�

6�� ���������7��������������������
������

1�����
�������.������
�8����,�.���.�����������������������-
����*&��.��7	�#�
���.���*��	��������.��	������5�����������
������������.�#������;���	����*�#�����
����������#�����-�����0��1.��,�	
#����#��.�����#�����A5��	��#��������-
����*:����
-�� #�������#� ���� �.�� ����#&� ��� �.�� ���	��� ��� ������� ���� �.�� *���� .��� -����
�	��.���#�����.��5��0���

$�,����&�����.�������������5�����#����#�������������#����#��&�,��.��#��������
�
#������-���&� �.����������	
#�-����,�#������� ��9	��-
�����.�#���� ��������
�.��
������������������	�
�#	�����-�����0�

Page 38



 

8�� ��9���������

5����� ������� ������������� �.���5�"� ��.������
����� ��� �.�� ����
	��������������
������� ����	���&� �.�� 	��� ��� �� ���
�� �#�8� ����-��.� ������ ��#� #������#� ����	����
,�	
#� ����#�� �����������*� �� ��
����� ��� �.�� ���,�.� ��� ������� -������0� � 1.�� ��
�����	
��
*�����������������#������2���
�*�#����-������;���������#�#�������
����.����
�������
	���������������������	��-������0�

'��������.����.��	������������������#�8�����������������-��:�������������	�
����
#����#�,�.���.��#����������������#��	������#�-*��.��#������	-
����������������
%

&�,�	
#�
��#�����.����9	��-
������������������-������������.��0�

+�� �##���&� �.�� �������
� ���� #�������� ����
	����� ������ �� �.�� ������ ��� ��������
����
	������ ,

� �
��� ���	
�� �� ����� �	��.��� ����	���� ,.��� ���-���� ���#� ���
����#����.���������������#�������������0���

1.�� �������� ��� ������������� ��� ��������� ���� �.�� ����� ��#� 
���� *���� ��� �������
,�	
#���������9	��-
�&�.�,����&��.�����.�#�������
���������#�����-���
������#�
������.�����
*��������

�����	�
�0�

�

:�� �����������;�

1.�������#�#���������������
��������������#�����
�����������.����������5���
�>>�� ����#	���� �.������������� �#�#	�
����-��� ��������������0�1.��#�������
�������� ���#�
���� �.��#����#� ��������� �.���	-
����������������%

&� ��� ���
�����
��������� ��� ���������� ����� ���� ����	�#� -������� �� ���B	������ ,�.� �	�	���
���������������������������0���

$�,����&����,�������.��,�	
#������������.����������.������*��
�8-
�*��������#�
�����*��-�����#�
������*��.�����,�.��������-���.�0��

�
<�� ���9�9������������
�

1.�����	
�����������������������

������	�
����������*���������	�������������0�
$�,����&�,��-�
����������������*�����##������.����9	�
�*�����
���������	������
-�����������������������-����,.������������������2�������������������������#�
���������2������������
���������.�0�1.����	
#�-����.���#�-*�����#����	������
�������� -���#� ��� �

� ���-���.�� ���� ����2���������� ��������� ��� �	�����
*�
�����#�#����������2������������
���������.�0�

�

=�� ���������������
�������

+��������#��.�����������������.����*�����������
�*���:������-	����&����
�������.��
��
	����� �������� ��#� ������������ ���
�*��:�� �����������,

� -�� ������#�,�.��
�.��#������������������#�5#�������������	
�����0��

1.�� ��������� ,�.�� �.���� ���	
������ �.��� ��9	��� ���
�*���� ��� ��*� �##����
�
�����-	�����������.��������#���������=�

��1%&��2$��6>!:"�������������
*���*����������������������#	�#���*���

��1%&��2$��6>!<"��������������,�����������	���
���#	�������

��1%&��2$�� �<� ��#� 6�&� ��� ������ �.�� ����� ��� ��*� #���������*� �,��#� ��� �##����
�
���������������-��0�

Page 39



 

�

?�� �����7��������7������������

1.��#�����������5�"���.����,.���������������	�
���#�������#����	�

*&�-���#�
��� �����-	����� ��#� �������-
�� ��*� �����#� ,�.�� �.�� ��.���� *���&� #���� ����
������

*� 
��#� ���
�� ��� �.�� ������� �������� ��� �� A���������� ��� ���������:� ��
���	��������������#	��#���*0�

1.�� �����	�� ������
�� ���� ��	��� ����������� 	�#��� �� ���
� ��
��*� ��.���� ,���
-���	��������-	�����.�#�-������#�����.�����2��#	��#���
��*�,�.��.���8���������
�.��� -������� ��� ���������� ,�	
#� -�� ��
�	
���#� ��� �� �������-
�� ��� .�.��� ���
�
��
��*0��(�#������5�"������������&��.�������
�������������������������������	�
�
,

� -�� A-��;�#:� ����� ���,��#� ��� �.�� ��*� �����#� ,�.�� �.�� ��.���� *���� ��� �.��
��������#������-	����
���
0�

'�� #�� ����� �.��� �.�� #����� 1��������
� ��������� ��#� ������� ���	
������ .����
�����	�#� �������� ���� �.�� ���������� ��� ���
� ��*� ���� ���2���6� -������� 	�#���
���	
����� <� ��� ��� ��� �.�� ���<� %������ ���	
�����&� ,.���� �� ��*� ���������� .���
���	���#0� � ���������� ��� ����������� �,��#�#� 	�#��� �.�� �>>/� ���	
������ ,����
�����#����,��#������.�����<���.������#���*���

�-����
#�	��
����)���.����<0�

'��-�
�����.������B	�����������������������	�	��������������	�
������	���������
,.���������-�����#	������*�#	��������

������.���	
�����
*�
��#��������

�.��
�.�
�������������#���.0��'�.�	���������������A���������:��.����9	��#�-����������-��
��#�,�	
#�-��-���#�����.��A��������#:���*�
���
0�

$�,����&�����	
#�-�����	�#����.����������������.��������������&��.������-����
.�������	��#��.������������� ������,.
���,��;�������������
�*��&���#����.���
�	�	�����*�����������#��.����������������A���
�*������������:���*�-����9	��#0��

�����9	���
*&� �� A����������� ��� ���������:� ,���� ��2����#	��#� ��� �� ������
�
�������&� �.�� ���	�
� ����� ��� ���������� ��� ���
�*���� ,�	
#� -�� 
���#� ��� �.��
���������� ,

� ��
*� ���
*� ��� �	�	��� ������� ����	�
� #	���� �.�� ����#� ��� �� ��
#�
������������#����������

������������0��

�

@�� ���������

����� �.�� �	������ ������
� ��	����� ������ �.�� �	-
�� ������&� ��#� �� 
�.�� ��� �.��
�����	�#������#�-
�*������	���� �.���.����#�������.����������&� ��,�	
#��������
���	#������������	�������*����������-�����.��%��;����"��
��#�-��������0���

�

�>�� ������������������A���������

+�� A����������� ��� ���������:� ���� ��2����#	��#� ��� �� �������� ,�.�� �.�� ���6�
��.���&� �� ,�	
#� -�� ��������*� ��� ��
	#�� �.�� ��9	������� ���� �	-��9	����
�#B	�������� ��� ������� ����	���� �� �.�� ���������� �� 	��#� ��� ����
�	
���� �������
��
	��0��

�������5���	���5#B	����������*��
���-����9	��#�������������������*��-
�������
	�#��� ������	�� �������*� ��������� ��#� �	�����#��� ���
�*��� �����-	����� �.���
��*�-��#�����#����.�����������	�������������	��������0��

Page 40



 

���� �9�/�

1.�� ��#������� ��� �.�� ��
�����.�� -��,���� �.�� �#��������� �	�.���*� ��#� �.��
5C������#���������3�����������4����������#������3��.���4���������-
���������.�
������#��.��
;�
.��#����$)�����#	�����.���	����������
������������������8������
���.���������D������D�����.��5C������������������0��

)�7� ,�
������ �.�� �
������� ��� �.�� ��D� 
��� ��� 5C�� �����-	����� ��� ���.� ��*�
����#� ��� ���������*��������������-*����-������#����
�*������� �.���-
�*� ���
�����-	�����D�����.�����	�
��������-
����*�,.���������������������������,�*�
�.��	�.�����.����*�����������������������*�����0�

+���.�	
#�-������#��.���#	������.����������������-
����*��.�����	��������*���*�
���*���������
*���#����������*�����#����#�,.�����.��5C��#�#	��������8������#�
��� �� �
��� �	�&� �.���� �� �.�� ����-
�*� ��� ��*������ �8���#��� �.�� 
��� ,.�.� ,

�
��9	������
�*���������������
*����������*�������.�#	
��0���

$�,����&�����.�����
��-
����
	������.��5C���	�#�����-����;�����������.��	��2�,�.��
$)��� 
���� 2� �.�� ��D� ���������� �
��� ������������-���� ���	�������� �.������
��.��������	����������������������#������8�������	�0������	������,�.���.��
���� ��.���� ����#��� ���
�*��� ������� ��� �� ��#	���� �.�� ������� 
�-
���� ���
����#����.����������������0�

��������
*&� �� �� �� �.�� #����#� ������ ��� ������� �.�� ��D� 
��&� �.�� ��#����� ���
���-���������-	�������8���������.���
�����
;�
*����-��
�,=���*��8��������������
���,�.� ,

� -�� �	-B���� ��� �.������ 	�#��� �.�� ��#	��#� 5��	�
� 5

�,����� ��8�
��������0�

+��,�	
#�-�����-������ �� �.�� 
�;�-��,����5C���������#��.��������.����-�������
,��� �������.���#� ������	������.���#�5C������� ���� ���#�#0� � 1.�� ��9	������� ���

�;��.��5C��,�.���.���������	�#������������������#���������
*���������	����
��#��������������
�����.�����-��:���������������������0�

)�7��	��������.���.���������

�,��.����
	�����5C��&�����.��#���.���������-��&����
-����#�����.��#������������.��5#���������5	�.���*�2���.��������.��-����������.��
���-��:�������������������
��������������0��

1������#���������������������.�,�.�������.����-������&�5C�������������#������
�.�� ����� �� ����
��# E���.���� +��
��#� �.�	
#� -�� ����������#� ���� �.�� ���-��:��
�����������������	��0����������������������

�

� �� ���/2$�/���#���/��

F	�� ����������&� ���� �.�� �	������� ��� �
���*� ��#� ���#� .�	��;������ ,�.�� �.����
���	
�����&� ,�	
#� -�� ���� �.�� �������� ?+�������@� 5��� ����������� ��� -�� �����#���
���,��#������.����,�����
���������������������.�������	
����������0�

�

Page 41



 


��������������������������B�����7��������������

1.�� ��������� �.��� ������� ��� ��9	��� ����#����� ��� #�
���� �
���*� ��� ���	��� �.�� ���
*�
����������#��������������.����������������

�,�=��

��1%&��2$���>�C���3'$���(���*%#�2$��2��#$���20%�2$�/�

���	
��������?�@���9	������#����������#����������������-������.���� ����������
,

�����.�������3�	�����������
�����#���4�����
���������.������
�*�����-���	���
�.�*������
���#*�������������-�������.����.�������.�����
�*����0�

1.�� �������� �.�	
#� ������ ��� �.�� 3�	������� ��2����
����� #���4� ��� #����#� ��
��.�#	
����,.�.� ��
����� ��� �.��#���� �.�����
�*���.��� �.�������� ��� ��2����
�����
#������#����������-����������,.�.�,

��

�,��

����-�������.���� �������������
-���
���#������.���	

�������������#
��������.������������������,��;����	�#����.��
���<��������5��0��

��1%&��2$���8�C��$���20%�2$�/�*%�2�1����*���2/'%����0/��#��

���	
������6?�@��.�	
#�����������.���	���������������
��������>0�D������.����.����
��������#�-*��.����������������.����.����.��.������
��!D������-	������	����.���
.���-���������#����,��#�����������	��
���
����0�

��1%&��2$�� ��C��//%3�*����/2$��0&����(��

���	
�������?/@� ����#��� ���� ����
	�������� �.�� A5��	��#��������-
����*:� �.��� ��
���-�����������#�����������&�-	�����.�����	�����
���������.��
�������,��;�:���*�
��	����.�����,

�����-����������*�������������.����*�	��
��.�����-�������������
��#	��#���������*�����������#��.������������,����.����*������#�0��

��1%&��2$��6 �C��$33��#�3����$+����/2$�/��

���	
����� ��?>@� �������� �.�� ������������� #���� ���� ��*����� ��� ��� 

� .��
�.�
������� ����� #������#� ����	�� �� �.�� #���� �.�� ���-��� �� ������#� ��� -����
���������
*� �����-
�� -*� ��� +�)�0� � 1.�� ��	
#� -�� #����#� ��� ���
*� ��� ��
������������� #���� ��� �.�� ��9	���� ��#� �� �������*� ��� �.�� �	������ �������.� 	�#���
���	
������������.�����/�%����������	
�����������������
�-
�*�������.��#�������
���
�����0��

��1%&��2$��6:��&&����&�)B���#�2,����30��/�

1.�� ��9	������� �.��� �� ���-��:�� ���
�*����� �	��� -�� A��������#� -*� ���
���
�*����	�.���*:�������������
�*����,.����
	����
*�������#	���������������


�.��
�.�-��������
�#�������������	�#����.���������0�

��1%&��2$��6=��&&����&�)��2���6���,2�4/��

5���.���<�����.�����,������1�����

2.��
�.��,��#����	���������-������9	���&��.��
	�
��� ����������#������1�����G������9	���
*&����	
�������/?/@?@���#��/?��@?@�����
�	����
	�	������.�*���
�����������

*�����.��#������������1������,��#0��

�

��������� �-������6��

��1%&��2$�� 8� ��9	���� �� ��.�������
�*��� �.�������#��� �	�#���,.�.��9	����� ���
��D� ��� 
���� ��� ��� �#������ -�#*:�� ����
� �����	�� ��� ���� ��� �� �	�������=� -	�� �.��
�������*� ��� �#����*� �.�� -�#*�,�	
#� ������������ ����������� �� ���	���������
,.�����.����.�������
�*���������#���������.�����D�����.���	�#��0�

Page 42



 

��1%&��2$��:���2��.���������#��
��������������#����,��#���������<�5#����������
���	
�������.�����1����������5#������%�#*��.�	
#���������������������#������
���������� �� �������� ��� #�������� ���������� ,�.� �.�� ����� ���
�*��� �� �� ����-
��
����������������0��

$�,����&� ��� �8���������*� -�� ��9	��#� ��� ������ ���� �.�� �	���	����� ��� ����������
�.��� ������ �	
��
�� 
���
� �	�.���*� ��.��
�� ,�.�� �.�� ����� 
������ �	�.���*0�
5
�.�	�.��.�����2����.�������������#����#� 
���
��	�.���*����
�*���������������
�	������&��.���#�#	�
���.��
����;���	���������������������,�.��.������������0�+��
�.�����������.��������-�������#����������������,.�.���������	����	�����������
#�����,�.�#�������� ��.��
�0�5

���� �.�����
�*��������#�������#� �� �.���#������
�������������-�����
�-
�����-�����-��������������#��.��
���
��	�.���*�������.��
�#����������.��	
�������	��������

+�� �� �#���������
*� -	�#������� ��#� ����
*� ���� �

� ������� ��������#� ��� #��,� 	��
��������� ����������� ,�.� �	����	�� ��.��
�� ,.��� �.�� ����������� .��� ���	��#� ��
�����,��;� ��������� ,�.� �.�� 
���
� �	�.���*� ��������� �� �	�-��� ��� ��.��
�� ���
������� �.�� �������0� +�� �������� �.�� ��.��
�� ������ ���� �#�#	�
� ������������� ���
#�������� #����� 	�#��� �.�� �����
� ��������� -	�� �.�� ���	
����� ��� �	�����
*�,��#�#�
��9	���� ��������� �#������ ����������� ��� ��
	#�� ���.� ��.��
� ��#� �.�� 
���
�
�	�.���*���

�

���������������

1.���������#�����
�8�*�#	������.�������������������	�#�-����������������#��.�������#�
-������ #����� ,

� ��9	��� �� ����� �2#���.� 9	�
�*� ���	������ ������ ,�.� ���������
�##����
� ���������
� ������ ��#� ����	���� ��	��� ���� -��.� ���
�*���� ��#� �#���������
�	�.�����0��

5�� �	�.� �.���� �� �� �������	�� ��� ������ �������� �#����������� �.��� ��*� �������
� ����
���
������� �.�	
#� -�� ��	�.�� ��� ����� �.�� -	�#��� ��� �#��������� �.�� ����� ��#� ������
,�.� �.��������.� ���;� ��� �8�
����� ��#� ����	������� �.�� -������� ��� �.�� ��.���� ���
���-������#����
�*���0����

���

H�	���������
*�

�

H��������##��;�

������
���������F������

�

��0 I����$�	����&��������������������2���5�

�

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



�
�
�
�
�
�
��������	
�����������
�������������������	�����������
������������ � � � � � �
������ �!�
"

��#�$�	���
%������#����
����
���#��&��'�"���(�
� � �
�
�����)������*�
�
CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
 

  PART B:   Draft Transitional Provisions & Savings Regulations  
  PART C:   Draft Miscellaneous Amendments Regulations             
 
 

���������	
�����������
����������������
��������
����������������
���
��	
�����������
�������� ��� ����������
�
���
���
������ ������ �!�����������
���
��	
�������
��������������
���
�����
��������
��
���
����
����
�������������"���������#��������
��	
����$��
������%&'���������������
����������
������������	(��	�����)* �
�
!�� �	
�� ���� ���� +,$'''� ������ ��
����	��
(� �����$� +&$"''� �
���
��� �
�� &%$"''�
�������
���
�� �-���������
�������������
����
���
������	
��
(��������
���
��	
�����
." ,�������
 �
�
+�,�	
#�-��������	
� ��*�	�,�	
#�����#����.�� ��

�,������������ �� ��
���������.������
�
����������� �������� ��.���� ����	
������ 
�	��.�#� ��� �/� )���.� ����0� 1.�� ���������
����������������#������������.���.���2�����#��	����0�

�
���	
���������
�����������
��������������������
���������������

1.�� �-3������� ��� -��.� �������� ���-��� ������� ����
������� ���	��#� 	�#��� �.�� �������
���	
������ ��#� ��� ���
����� �.�� ����
���� ����#	�������� �.�����4�-������ ���	��	���.����
������

*�-������.���#0��1.�����	������.�����������#��,���������������.����

�,���������
��� ��-�	�*� ��� �5�
	���� ,�.�� �.�� ���	
������ �.�����*� 
��#� �����	�#������#��� ��#�
�������	��-��������*������,.�.�,�	
#����	
�����������#��#�������������������6	�#�0�
�

��� 
�������������
������������
����������

+�� ����
����� ,�.� �.�� �	-
�� ������� ������� %

&� ���	
����� �7�8� ���.-��� ��*�
�	��.��� ����	�
� ������-���.��,�.�� �.�� ���9� ��.���������� ��������-����,.��
���� ������#� 	�#��� �.�� :����	���*� 	�#����;� �.��� �� ������#� -*� �.���� 1��������
�
��������0�

�

� � �

� ���������	�
� �������������

� ��������������
� ���		����������

� ����
� ������������

Page 45



 

��

$�,����&� �
�5-
�*� ��*� -�� ��<	��#� ��� ������ ���-���� ,.�� ���� ����	
���
*�
����������#�����.��������������.����	-
�����������.�����7�
���,�.�������#����
�
��
��*���.��8����-���,��#�#����	���

*��<	��
����-�������,�.���.�����9���.����2�
�.	������������.�����
���
��*�
�=���������������.��������������	�#�-������0�

��
��
*&��������#�����,�.���.�#	
��/�����.���	-
����������������%

&��.�	
#��.��
������
�5-
�*�#����#��-����-�������#�#�������-����,.������������������)���.�
���4���#�	�
����.�������������������� �������������#���.��� ��������	-
���������
��.���>� � 1.�� �
�5-
�*� ,�	
#� -�� ��� �.�� ���#���� �.��� �.���� .�#� -���� ���
#�<	�
�*���-���=����������.�����*��������.�����-��;���	-
������������
�*����0��

+�� ,�	
#� ������� �
���*� ��#� �#���������� ����� �� ���	
����� �7�8� ��	
#� #����
*�
���������� �.�� �5������� �
�	���� ,�.�� �.�� 
����� ��������&� �������

*� ��� �.��
�	��.�������	�
�	�#����.�����9���.���������?��
����40��

?�� �� �� �.��-���#� �������� �.������ �	��.������-���.���.�	
#�����	�� �� �.�����9�
��.���� ����� ?��
� ���4&� �� ,�	
#� ������� �.��� :?##�#� @����� ���������;� ��	
#� ����
�����	��-�*��#����)���.����4&�	�
�����.�����-�������������#�-*��.��:����	���*�
	�#����;0��

?��������������=����	��-��������A���-������!���������.�����
����������.���:9��@����
�	
�;&� �� ��	
#� -�� ����#���#� �<	��-
�� ���� �.�� ���-��� ��� -�� ����#�#� ,�.� �.��
������ ��� -	*B�	�� �.�� -�
����� ��� �.�� ��������� ��� �� ���
�� �����
��#� ��*����� ���
�����#����.��������
��#���*���������������������#�������0�

�

��� 
������������� � ��
�!�������
������
������"�

1.�� ���	
������ ��,� ����������� �.��� �� �

� ������ ��.��� �.��� :�
�5-
�� ���������;�
���-�����	���#��,��

� ��� �.��� ���������#� ����������-������� ��� �.�� ����� ���0��
���	
����� �748� ��������� ��� ���	��� �.��� �.�� �������� ���	���
� �#3	�������� ����
���
�#����#�������������.������-�������,.�.�.����#����������������������0�

?��#�����#����������
�����.�����#�
������.��#����#��������������#�����.�����
������
������	���
���#	�����0���������

*&��������-���#��,���.����������������������!��
,�.���#	���������.������9�-������&����	
������748������������.�������������&�����
�� �	�������

*� ��

�,�� �.��� �.�� ����� ���4����-���.�� ,�	
#� �
��� -�� �	-3���� ���
��#	�����2��
�.�	�.��������

*����#������������������������0���

��������
*� �.�� �
�	��� �������
*� ���
��� �� ���	��������� ,.���� �� 
���� ����������
	�
�������*�-
������
�����������2���9���.����-������&�-	�����������
��-
������.���
��������4�-�������-���	��������
���������������������0�

�

��� 
���������"�������
#���	�
����

+�� �� �.�� �������	��,�.�� �.�� ����� �.��� �.�� :����	���*� 	�#����;� �� ����#���#� ���
���
*�����$$�%&%'&�(�,.������,�.�����*�������������
����������������?��
������2�
,.�.�-���#
*�����������-�������#����������������.���#���&�,�.����������=

��������
�����#�#��.�����������������������0��

���	
�����47�8�#�������.��	�#�����#������� �.�������
� ��������������	�#��� �.��
���9� ��.���� ,.�.� �� ��-�	�	�� #	�� ��� �.�� ��
	���� ��� �.�� ���������� :��� �.���
���-��;0� � ?
�.�	�.� �����
� ���������� ���� �� !�� �� �.�� ���9� ��.���&� �#�#	�
�
���-������*��������	���#	��#�-����������������!�� �� �.�*�<	�
�*�	�#����.�� ;9��

Page 46



 

��

@�����	
�;0� � +���.��������������.�����	
�����������	����.������-����,�.��5�����
������#� ��.��� 	�#��� �.�� ���9� ��.���� ��3�*� ���������� ����� �.��� ���
����
����������#����,.�.���	
#�-������!�>��

6����.�����#��������#�	-�&���,�	
#��.���������������#����������	�.���������.��
���
��-
��	�#�����#������	
#�-���
����#������.���-��������!���������.�����-����
���
�������������������������#�����,�.��.��:9��@�����	
�;0���

+�� �.�� 	�#�����#���� �� ���� ��� �.�� ��.���������
� ���������� ������� !�� �.��,�	
#�
#��#�����������-����,.�� <	�
�*� ���� ���
*� ��
����� ��� 	���#	��#� -������� 	�#���
�.��:9��@�����	
�;0�

������ 1.�� ��<	�������� �� ���	
����� 47�8� ��� ����-
�.� �� :#�<	�
�*��� -���=;� ��� �	-
��
������� ������� ������ <	��� �����	�� ���� �#��������� �	�.�����0� � +�� ,�	
#� ���#�
6	�#��������������,.��.����.�����-���,��������-	�����������.����	-
���������
������� ��.���� #	���� �� -���=� ��� ����� ������0� ����� �.��� �.�� ���������� ��
*�
���
�����������

���������������.�������

����-���.�&���,�	
#���������������-
��
�����������.�������������.��������������#���������������������#�����������0�

���	
����� 47!8� ����� �	�� �.�����.�#� ��� ��
�	
����� �.�� :����	���*� 	�#����;� -	�� ��
�
��������.�����
�����������*�	�#���������
��������#����#����-������0�

�

"�� 
���������)��� � ��
�!������!�����"���!� ��

1�� ���	��� ��
	���� ���������� ��� �

� �
�-
�� ���-���� ���	
����� �7�8� ���#�� ���
��
	#���.���������
� ���������	�������	�����#����������
�*�#����������������� 
����
�.��� �.��������.��,.��.����-���� ��	�#�,�.���������������������� � ����
���� ���
3����.����.���������?��
����40�

�

)�� 
���������*���
�����
���# ����

+������������������-���,.��3���#��.������������������)���.����4C�

+�������2�
	-����������������
���#�,�.���������.������.����������������#���&�
�.�����
����������.����
������#�������#�����#�,�.�����	
�����D7�8���#�.�����	��
�����
�	
������.��������������#���������#�����,�.��?���	#�������#��.���

�������
��������������	�
�,�.���.�����9�������4���.���0�

�*����� �	��
����,�	
#� ���#� ��� #���
��� ��� ������ ��
	���� ��� �������#���� �.��
���
����������.����
������#�����������#�#�2����	�����.����������	�����������������
������� ��-
��� �� �����#����� ,�.� �?�� �	#����0� $�,����&� �����	�� �5��������
�	������� �.��� �.�� ����
�5�*���*� ��
*� -�� ����#�#� -*����	�
� ��
�	
����� ,.�.�
,�	
#�-��������##����
��#������������������6	�#�0�

+�����
���	��
����.�,��.���������������������,�.���.���	-
�������������������
	-�
�� �������� ��� ���-���.�� ����� ?��
� ���4� ��� ?��
� ����0� 1.�� �� #	�� ��� �.�� �����
�����������6��
���
��*��������.�����#����������.����.�����.����0�

�

�

�

�

Page 47



 

4�

+�� 
������������������!���!�
��
� ���

1.�� ���� ������ ����� ���	
������ ������� ����������� �� �������� ��� �� �	-��<	����
��.��������� �,��#&�,.���������-���.��� ������#�������
��� 

� .��
�.��������B�
���	
������D7!8&�7/8&7980����

?���
�������������,.���������-���.���������#�������
���

�.��
�.��������	�#���
�.�����9���.���������������.����-���������#�������.�����������
����	
�����0�

�

,�� 
����������)����		����������
��������

���	
����� ��7�8� ���	
����� �.��� ���-���� ,.�� �	-��<	���
*� ������ ���� �� )?���
����������������?��
����4���

�,����.���*������������������������?������������
���������#�#������������������������.����,����������	�����.�����-��;��������#�
���	���
������������
�#�����.��#��������.�������
���������0��

�
��������� �� �.�������� ��<	��#� ��� ����-
�.� ,.��.��� �� �� �.�� �������� ��� 	���
.������ ���	���
� ��-
��� �� �.���� ���	��������� ��� �����#� ���4� ��.���� ��
���#�
��-
��0� � +�� .������ ��-
��� ���� ��� -�� 	��#� �� ,�	
#� ������� ��� ���#��� �.�� �����	��
��������������������	�
�0�

�

-�� 
����������-�.����
���

)�6��������� �.������������#�#�,�.��������� ��� �.������	
������ �.���#	�� ���
�����#�-
�*� �����	���� #����� ��.���� ������&� �� ,�	
#� ������� ���	#���� ���
�����	�������*����������-�����.��%��=����"��
��#�-��������0��

�

*�� 
�����������������������
����������

?
�.�	�.� �.���� �� �� ��������� ����	
������ ��� �.�� �	-3���� ��� ��	��

��� �������&� ��
,�	
#�������� �.��� �� �.�������������	��

���� �������� �.��� ��.�� ������������� ���
�.�� ����� �� �� �.�� �������� ���� �	�	��� -������ ����
������� ��� ������ 	�#��� �.��
��������DD/����	
�����0��

)�6� ���������� �.��� �� ��#��� ��� ���
�*� ���������
� ��<	�������� ��#� ��#	���
�#�����������������.����.���	�	���-���������	��	��������	��

������������.�	
#�
�������.�����������,�.���.��������.���0�

6	��.������&� �� �� �� #����#� �.��� ��	��

��� ������� ��� �.�� ��.���� �.�	
#� �����&�
��������� ,

� -�� ��<	��#� ��� #��
� ,�.� �.�� ��*����� ��� #������#� -������E�
�����	
��
*� �� ���	��������� ��� ���������� ��� �����
� ���������� ���� ,.���
���������������
����#�������.�
#��0�

�

���� 
����������)�������������������������#�

)��-����,.��,����������������)���.����4����������#�#��.��-�������������������#�
:6��
� �������-
�� ��*;� ,.�.� ��� �	�����
*� #�����#� �

�,�� ���2���4� -������� ��� -��
��
�	
���#�	�����.��#�����������������-
����*�	�#����.�����4���.���������������
.�.�����
	�0�

�

�

Page 48



 

��

1.����������4� ��
��*�,

� ���	
�� ����.�.��� ��	��� �������*����-������� ��.��� �.��
��
	���� ��� :���2��������	�
;� �������0� � �����	
��
*� �.�� �� ��� �������� ���� �.����
���
�*����,.����:���2��������	�
;�������������=�*����������.����*����	��	��&�-	����
�
���������.��������	��*��������-���������
�����.���:6��
��������-
����*;������
��� ���������� 2� ���	
���� �� �� ,�#��

� ���� ���.��� �.��� �� ������������ ��� �����	��
-����������
�����0�

�����<	���
*� �� �.�� �� ���� �� #������� �����&� �.��� �.�� :.�.��� ��;� ���#���� ��
���	
����� ��7�8� ,�	
#� �
���� ��������� �����	��� ��� ���
�*��� -	#����� ��� �.���

�-
����,

��������&����,

��.����	�#���#��������#��.����<	��#�#������������*�
�����-	����0��

�

���	
��������� �������������� ��	 �����
���������������

+�� ���������� �.��� �.���� ��������� ��=�� ����#������ ��� �.�� ����� %������� ��
?#���������� ���	
������ ��� ����� ��� �.�� ������� ���,��#�.����� �.�����9� ��.���&�)�6�
��=���.����

�,�����������C�

�

���� 
���������������  ���������� ������# ����

)�6� ,�
������ �.�� ��
	���� ��� �.�� :#�� ���	��� �	
�;� ���-
��� �#���������
�	�.��������������	�#����

������������
���������������
��
	����	����*�����
�����#����F�&���0��1.������	���,

���������.����<	������������#��������������
�.��=��.���$)��� 
����.��������-����-����.�#�#	������.�����-��������	�#���
������
�������������������.�����������#����������.���0�

1.��,

��
���-�����������

*�������������������.���#����������	�.���*�����.����
,

� ��� 
������ -�� �.�� ��<	������� ��� ������� ��*��

� �����#�� ���� ���

� ����.
*�
���������*�����0�?���##����
�-������ �� �.�����
�����*���

��������� 
�-
���� ��
�.��6	�#0�

�

���� 
���������+������.��
�� ����
��������

1.�� ����#����� �������� �.���5�
	������� ���
�*����,�.� �� ������������ 
���� �.���
�.���� ����.�� ����� -���� �	�������

*� ����

�#� ���� �.�� ��.���� 	���� �.��
���-��;���	�����������
����������2����
�����#���0��

+�� �� ��������#� �.��� �.�� �����������	���� �.��� �.�� ����� �������� �.�� ������� ��� ��
<	�
�*��� ��.���� ��� #����#� ,�.�� �.�� ���9� ������� ?��� ��#� ,

� ������� �

�
���
�*����,.�����
�*�������������������������
�*��������
�����.����.��������.�0�

$�,����&� �.�� �.����� ��� �#������ �	�.� ���-���� ��� �.�� ��.���� ,

� ���	
�� ��
-	�#������� �#���������� ���� -��.� ���
�*���� ��#� 6	�#�0� +�� ��*� �.�������� -��
�������
� ���� ���
�*���� ��� ��	�� ������������� ������� ��� �.�� �������#� ���
�*����
	��
��.�*�.����-�������
�*�#������.��������.��-*����	�����������������5������0��

�

���� 
���������,���
�����	�����
������
��������

���	
�����/�����#���.���5��������������#��
���,�.����
�*����������������#�
����#	���� �.�� #������� ��� ��� �5���� ���
�*��� ��� �
���*� �.��� �.�� ���������
������������
*�����

����
�*���0�

Page 49



 

!�

1.�� �������#� �.������ �
��� �5�
��
*� ���-
�� �.�� �#��������� �	�.���*� ��� �����#�
�.�� �5�� ��*����� ����� �� �������-
�� ����#� ,.���� �.�� �5�� #�-�� ��

�� ��� ����.���
���
�*���,�.���.��6	�#0�

$�,����&� �� ,�	
#� -�� ��	#���� ��� �
��� �5�
��
*� ������ �.�� �5���� ���
�*��� ���
�����#� �.�� #�-�0� � 1.�� �������� �� ���� ��
	#�#� �� ��������.� �� ��#� �
�.�	�.� �� ��
��
	#�#� �� ��������.� 4&� �.�� ���	��������� �����#� ��
*� ������� ��� ��
���� ��� #�-��
�������#����������.�����
�*��;���5��������.����.���0�

�

�����������

1.�� 6	�#� ���������� �.�� �������*� ��#� ��
	�� �� ���������� �.�� ����	�#� -������� ��� �.��
�5�������������-���.�0�$�,����&��.���������#�����
�5�*�,

���<	�����������2#���.�
<	�
�*� ���	������ ������ ��� ������� �.�� ���*� �	������ ��� ���������
� ��������0��
(
�����
*&� �.�� ���������
� ����������� ��� �.�� ����
�5�*� ,

� �������� ��� ���������
�##����
�������������.��������*����&�����-��.�)�6���#������������������
�*���0�

+����,�.���.�������5���.���)�6��	�������.�������	������#��������.�	
#�-�����������.��
�����
#���������

�������������#���������������.�����������������	
�����0��1.���	������
#��������������	
�������#�������.���������������#����������,

�-��,�.�����.��������
����	���*�+����	�������.�����������.������0���

�

@�	���������
*�

�

@��������##��=�

������
���������A������

�

Page 50



 

�
�
�
��������	
�
���������	����
	��������
��������������	�����
��
������������ �

�
!�	��	�
 "���#$��
�
� � �
TECHNICAL CHANGES TO AUTOMATIC ENROLMENT CONSULTATION 
�
�
���%�&���	
�
 
���������	
�����������
����������������
��������
����������������
���
��	
�����������������
���������������������
�
���
���
������������ ��!�����������
���
��	
���������������
������
���
�����
��������
��
���
����
����
�������������"���������#����������	
����$��
��
����%&'���������������
����������
������������	(��	�����)* �
�
!�� �	
�� ���� ���� +,$'''� ������ ��
����	��
(� �����$� +&$"''� �
���
��� �
�� &%$"''� ������
�
���
�� �-���������
�������������
����
���
������	
��
(��������
���
��	
�����." ,�������
 �
�

'� �
(
�� ���
�)�*������	������	��	� +�
��	��������	,
�������������	����
	-� ���	��
���	��.�
%������/�0&��%��������)
	���	����
�
�����	�������1�������2
���)��������
	��	��
��)
��(���
3�
���	���������4� ��� �	� �
,���� �
�)����*�
� 
��
�
	� (��� 
�)���
���)������	,� �� ,����)
	���	�
���
�
&�

��
�!5� ������)�*�����
������
(�	
��*
	
(��)
	���	����
�
���
,���
���	����
�*���
� 
��
����
�(� �
�(��������	��
��4�!�����5��
�	�
	��	��
��

����
���	�������	������(�����3����(��	,�
���
�
��	��
,�������������	����
	��
,������	&�

��)���
���)�����)�
��	��
�!5� �*��
��
����������*��,���	����*����(��������������	�)���
���
1�
�
�,����	

���	��
,������
�+)
	���	�)�����
-���
������
���	��
�)���
�����
����
������
(�	
��
�	�� �,�

�&� � ��	�
3�
	���� �	� �
,���� �� �
� ��	������	�� 
�)���
��� 1��� �((
�� �
� !5� � 6��
1��2
���1�������	�����(�
�)����
	7���
8�

• �((
��	,���)
	���	�����	,
�
	��
,����
����(��,
��	��
��	�	,���(��
�1��2
�9�

• ��	���������
	�����	,�1��2
��9�

• ��	��*��	,��1������
������(�)
	���	�)�������	����	,�1����
�1��2
�9�

• ����1�	,�1��2
���1������
�)�
��������+�)
����-����
:��	����	����
9�

• )������	,��
�(�������(���1��2
�������2
�������	�������	������	��*���	�9�

• ����1�	,�1��2
�������	�(
���	�)�
������)
	���	������	,�&�

�

�

� � �

� ���������	�
� �������������

� ��������������
� ���		����������

� ����
� �����������

Page 51



 

���� �� 	
��� ��� ��� �� �

� ���� �
� ���
�� ����
����� �
������������ ���
������ ���� �
������ ���
� ���
���
������ ���
����������������� ������� �
���� ���������
�� �
� ���� �������� ����� ����� ������������ ����
�
�����
�!����"������������
��������#�������
�������#�����������
���������$�
�

%���1�������	�
3�
	�����))����
���,,
���	�)��
��*��������
������(��
���	������	�����
�
!5� �������*
��
��(�
������

�	,��
�)�������*:
���
���	������
�
(��
�
�
�)�(�����
�
�)�����

�)���
�����
�&���

����
��
	���	��;
,���������
�����
��,	��
���
�!5� ������+,����3���������	���
�����)
	���	�
����	,
�
	-��%������
�������
�	���	������
�
��������*
��
��(�
��(���
�
�)��	��(��)
��(���

�)���
�����
���	�
���
�����
	����
	��
,������	9������
����	,��
�����	������
�*���
	��(�

�)���
�����	�	��������	����	,� �
� +�,
��	��
��	�	,�-��(�
�)���

��1������
�����
�������
	�
	��*
����
�*
���(��
�!5� &�

 )
��(���������
�����	,
�
	��(����
��(�����	�������*
�1��(���8�

• 
�)���
���1��� �� ������� �*��,���	� �� )�����)�
� �� �
� !5� � ������ �
��� �	� �� 	���	���
���
�
��
��(�����	�)���
��9�

• ����
�� 
�)���
�� *���
�� 1����� *
� �
3���
�� �� �	����������� ���)�

� �	� 
�
�)��	�
�
��(���
� �	� �
�)
�� �(� �
� 
�)���

�� ���
�
�� �	�
�� �
� ��������	� �,�

�
	&� �����
�
��(���
�������*
���*:
�����
��
1����,�

���	
����������	(��������
�
�����(��
�
�,�

�
	����
�	��*

	���
�
���	��
����	����
�
�)���

�-����
������
�!5� &�

�

�

������%���������������������
����������������
���
������������
���
�������������
������
������
�
������ ���
�������
���������
������������������������� ���
�����
�������������
�����
����
����� 
�������$�
�

'	��
,������������
������	���
�	

��(���������	����
��	�����	��(�
�)���
������	���*
��	��
��	�������
	����
	��(�����1��2
����	����3����(��	,����
�
���%���1�������,,
�������1�����*
�
*
	
(������ �(� �
� �
��(�����	� )���
��� ��	���
��� � �� �
3���
�
	� �� )
����������� �
�
	���� 
��,�*�
�
:�*����
����1������
�	��
�
����
���	�+�)���-�	���
�1���	��
������	����(��
��)
��(�
����
&��

���)����
� �
�
�)���
��� �
�)�	��*����� ��
	�����,
�1��2
��� �����
� (��� �
��
�
	�*���	�	�

��,�*�
�:�*����
����	��
	��
��1��2
���������������*
����
��1��
��(��
�����
��(�)
	���	�����	,�
�	���
�����,����:��	��
�3����(��	,����
�
��	��
�
�)���
����
�
	����
	���
&�

����� �
3���
�
	� 1����� 
	���
� ��� ���� 
����	,� 1��2
��� ��
� �
,������� �((
�
�� �
�*
����)� �(�
����)���	��� )
	���	� ����	,� �	�� 1����� ���)�

� �
� �
���	�	,� )������ �*:
���
� �(� +"��2(���
�
�
	���	�� ;
(���-� �	� �
,���� �� ���
� 
�)���
��� �	� �
� !5� �1������
� �
� ���

� �
��� ��,�	,�
��
&�
�

Page 52



 

������&
����������
���
�����
���������
��������������������������������������
��'(���������
������$�

��
� ��	������	� ����� �

2�� ����
	�� �	� �))��)���
� �
����
�� �� �
��	���
� ��1� �
(�	
��
*
	
(�����
�
����������	�	�
����

��
�3��������	�����)����*�����	��(�$���	���'	����	�
�
��	����	,����(�����/��&��

��
��������	���
��(��
�!5� ������)�*�����
����
�)
	���	����
�
��1������	,
���	�
��2
	�*��
5��
�	�
	� (����1�	,� ��	������	� ���	,� 1��� �
� )���
��� �(� �3������ '�)��� ���
���
	�� ��
��
	�(���	���	
3�����
���������)�����
�������	�
��(��������������3����(��	,����
�
&�
�

)
������
��

��
� !5� � ��� �� ����
� )�*���� �
���� )
	���	� ���
�
� �	�� ���� (��� �
���
�� )�����
�� 
��
��
	�
)
	���	�� (��� ������	�� �(� 1��2
��&� � �	� 
��
�
	� �(� 
�)����� 
�)���
�� ���
�� �	�
�� ��������

	����
	� 1����� *
� 1
����
�� (��� )�������� �
���	��� *�� ����� �
� ���� �(� ����	�����	,� ���
�
���
��1�����)��
����	
�&�

�

<�������	�
�
���

�

<��		
�������2�

���	��)����
	���	��=((��
��

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

24 JUNE 2013 

 

 

SUBJECT: INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 

WARD/S AFFECTED: NONE 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION?  (Defined in 
paragraph 13.3 of Article 13 
‘Decision Making’ in the Council’s 
Constitution.) 

NO 

  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report sets out the investment performance of Merseyside Pension Fund for the 
year ended March 2013 as calculated by the WM Company. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The Fund returned 13.2 per cent in the financial year to the end of March 2013 
compared to its bespoke benchmark return of 11.6 per cent, an outperformance of 1.4 
per cent.  Asset allocation detracted from performance by 0.2 per cent but this was 
significantly outweighed by strong stock selection which contributed 1.7 percent of 
relative benchmark outperformance. 

 
2.2 Over the same period, the average of all local authority pension funds, based on the 

WM Local Authority universe of 90 funds, was 13.8 per cent. 
 
2.3  The fiscal year to the end of March 2013 marked a sharp turnaround in investor 

sentiment with riskier equity markets comfortably outperforming the safer haven bond 
markets by a considerable margin. As major central banks further eased their monetary 
stance from already accommodative levels, nominal bond yields sank to record lows. 
The prospect of low yields in core bond markets contributed to investors searching for 
yield in so called risk assets such as equities. All the major OECD stock markets 
delivered positive returns in a market rally which featured the US S&P 500 Index up 
18.94 per cent, and the Japanese Nikkei index up 17.34 per cent. The UK’s FTSE 100 
index ended the fiscal year up 8.71 per cent. 

 
 The performance of the Fund against its relevant benchmark and against price and 

earnings indices over 1, 3, 5 and 10 year periods is tabulated below.  
 

 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 year 
MPF 13.2 8.2 6.8 9.1 
Benchmark  11.6 7.5 6.3 9.1 
RPI 3.3 4.1 3.2 3.3 

Agenda Item 5

Page 55



CPI 2.8 3.4 3.3 2.7 
Average Earnings -0.1 1.0 1.7 3.4 
LGPS average 13.8 8.1 6.5 9.4 

 
 
2.4 A detailed presentation on the Fund’s performance was given by the WM Company at 

the Investment Monitoring Working Party on 12 June 2013. 
 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 The performance of the Fund, relative to its benchmark, is a key indicator of the 
successful implementation of the Fund’s investment strategy which is established with a 
view to meeting the Fund’s liabilities over the long-term. 

 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 Not relevant for this report 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 Not relevant for this report 
 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 The Fund returned 13.2 percent, appreciating in value by circa £638m over the financial 
year to 31 March 2013. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
 10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no carbon usage implications, nor any other relevant environmental issues 
arising from this report. 

 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are no planning or community safety implications arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 Members note the report. 
 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

Page 56



13.1 The performance of the Fund, relative to its benchmark, is a key indicator of the 
successful implementation of the Fund’s investment strategy which is established with a 
view to meeting the Fund’s liabilities over the long-term. 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Leyland Otter 
  Senior Investment Manager 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1316 
  email:   leylandotter@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

NONE 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

The WM Company – Merseyside Pension Fund Quarterly Performance Review. 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

A report on the Fund’s investment performance is 

brought annually to June Pensions Committee  

 

 

 

 

Page 57



 

Page 58



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

24 JUNE 2013 

 

SUBJECT: TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 

2012/13 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR TRANSFORMATION AND 

RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION? NO 
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report presents a review of treasury management activities within Merseyside 
Pension Fund (MPF) for the 2012/13 financial year and reports any circumstances of 
non-compliance with the treasury management strategy and treasury management 
practices.  It has been prepared in accordance with the revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 Treasury Management in Local Government is governed by the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services and in this context is the 
“management of the Fund’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money market 
transactions, the effective control of the risks associated with those activities and the 
pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”. 

 
2.2 On 17 January 2012 Pensions Committee approved the Treasury Management Policy 

and Strategy 2012/13. 
 
2.3 This report relates to money managed in-house during the period.  It excludes cash 

balances held by investment managers in respect of the external mandates and the 
internal UK and European investment managers. 

 
 TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
 
2.4 As at 31 March 2013, MPF had a cash balance of £68.1 million (excluding Iceland 

deposits) as against £55 million at 31 March 2012.  All of these funds were held on 
call (instant access) accounts with Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS) and Lloyds. 

 
2.5 Managing counterparty risk continued to be the overarching investment priority.  

Investments during the year included: 
• Call (instant access) accounts and deposits with UK banks 
• Investments in AAA rated money market funds with a constant Net Asset Value. 

 
2.6 The rate at which MPF can invest money continues to be low, reflecting the record low 

Bank of England base rate which remained at 0.5% throughout 2012/13. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 59



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

 
2.7 Over the twelve month period, WM calculated the cash performance to be 2.9% 

against a benchmark performance (7 day LIBID) of 0.4%.  This performance is 
enhanced by the inclusion of securities lending income. 

 
2.8 Transactions were undertaken to reflect the day-to-day cash flows of the Fund, 

matching inflows from receipts to predicted outflows. 
 
2.9 The detailed cash flow plans were managed so as to be compliant with the deposit 

limits agreed for individual financial institutions as reflected in the Treasury 
Management Policy for 2012/13, apart from the limit with our previous bankers RBS.  
There was one incident where MPF was non-compliant with this limit due to the 
receipt of significant funds after the day’s dealings had been completed.  The anomaly 
was rectified the following working day, with no financial disadvantage to the Fund.  
The fact that RBS, which is one of the main recipient of the Fund’s surplus cash, is 
some 80% Government owned is viewed as low risk. 

 
2.10 The Fund’s banking service provider changed during 2012/13 from RBS to Lloyds 

Banking Group, although the Fund still utilises the deposit account at RBS. 
 

ICELAND DEPOSIT UPDATE 
 
2.11 In 2008, MPF had £7.5 million deposited across two Icelandic Banks, Glitnir £5 million 

and Heritable £2.5 million. 
 
 Glitnir 
 
2.12 As previously reported, in March 2012, approximately 81p/£ was recovered from a 

mixture of GBP, EUR, USD and NOK (£4.2m).  The GBP, EUR and USD payments 
were paid into the Fund’s accounts.  The NOK were converted via a spot rate into 
GBP.  The remaining 19% remains held in Icelandic Krona (ISK).  The ISK amounts 
that have been distributed by the Glitnir Winding Up Board are held in escrow 
accounts because, under the applicable currency controls operating in Iceland, the 
permission of the Central Bank of Iceland is required to release Icelandic Krona 
payments held within the Icelandic banking system.  The money held in the Glitnir 
Winding Board escrow account is, however, earning interest at a market rate of 
4.20%.  There are still uncertainties regarding funds currently held in Icelandic Krona, 
as they cannot currently be converted into GBP.  The LGA in conjunction with those 
authorities affected, are working on a practical solution. 

 
 Heritable 
 
2.13 The projected return to creditors is to be between 86% and 90% of the claim.  To date 

(May 2013) MPF has received thirteen dividend payments totalling £2m. 
 
 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 All relevant risks have been discussed within section 2 of this report. 
 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

Page 60



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

4.1 There are no other options considered in this report 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising out of this report. 

 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 The financial implications are stated above.  In accordance with accounting guidance 
an appropriate note regarding impairment is being included in the Annual Accounts for 
the year ended 31 March 2013. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 The legal implications have been discussed within section 2 of this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That the Treasury Management Annual Report for 2012/13 be noted. 
 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 The Treasury Management Code requires public sector authorities to determine an 
annual Treasury Management Strategy and, as a minimum, to report formally on their 
treasury activities and arrangements mid-year and after the year-end.  These reports 
enable those tasked with implementing policies and undertaking transactions to 
demonstrate that they have properly fulfilled their responsibilities and enable those 
with responsibility/governance of the treasury management function to scrutinise and 
assess its effectiveness and compliance with policies and objectives.  The 
requirement to report mid-year is met via regular reports to the Investment Monitoring 
Working Party (IMWP). 

 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Donna Smith 
  Group Accountant 

Page 61



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

  telephone:  (0151) 2421312 
  email:   donnasmith@wirral.gov.uk  
 
APPENDICES 

None. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Public Services – CIPFA 2009 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Pensions Committee – Treasury Management 

Annual Report 2009/10 

 

Pensions Committee – Treasury Management 

Policy and Strategy 2011/12 

 

Pensions Committee – Treasury Management 

Annual Report 2010/11 

 

Pensions Committee – Treasury Management 

Policy and Strategy 2012/13 

 

Pensions Committee – Treasury Management 

Annual Report 2011/12 

 

Pensions Committee – Treasury Management 

Policy and Strategy 2013/14 

 

 

28 June 2010 

 

 

11 January 2011 

 

 

27 June 2011 

 

 

17 January 2012 

 

 

25 June 2012 

 

 

15 January 2013 

 

Page 62



 
WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

24TH JUNE 2013 

 

SUBJECT: BUDGET FINANCIAL YEAR 2013/2014  

BUDGET OUT TURN 2012/13 

AND ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION NO 
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to request that Members note and approve: 
 

• The finalised budget for the financial year 2013/14. 
• The out-turn for the financial year 2012/13. 
• The 3 year budget for MPF as required for the annual report 

 
1.2 There are no significant changes from the original report in January in terms of 

the out-turn for 2012/13 and for the budget for 2013/14. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 Pensions Committee at its meeting on 15th January 2013, agreed the budget for 
2013/14 subject to confirmation of departmental & central support charges. It 
was agreed to report back to Committee with the finalised budget. 

 
2.2 The finalised budget is included in this report as an appendix, the only 

variances from that reported in January is  
  

• Staffing now reflects pension deficit recovery charges and some small 
changes. 

• Some changes in supplies and services but not significantly affecting the net 
figure. 

• Small reduction in central establishment charges. 
 
2.3 Pensions Committee at its meeting on 15th January 2013 received an estimate 

of the out-turn for 2012/13, it was also agreed that I would report back on the 
final out turn. The finalised out-turn is included in appendix 1. There are no 
significant changes to the projected out turns. The changes are similar to the 
changes to the budget: 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 63



 
• Staffing now includes pension deficit recovery charges for the year and 

some small changes. 
• Some changes in supplies and services but not significantly affecting the net 

figure. 
• Reduction in central establishment charges from estimated to actual. 

 
 
2.4 CIPFA have published a document outlining best practice for the contents of 

the annual reports of LGPS Funds, this includes financial performance 
including 3 year budgets 

 
2.5 The projected 3 year budget for MPF is as detailed in the table below. 
 
  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 
        
Employees £2,627,638 £2,811,573 £2,867,804 
Premises 188,193.08 £193,086 £198,106 
Transport £28,040 £28,769 £29,517 
Investment fees £11,555,999 £12,353,363 £13,205,745 
Other Supplies and 
Services 

£1,345,634 £1,380,621 £1,416,517 

Third Party £243,878 £250,218 £256,724 
Transfers £173,318 £177,824 £182,448 
Recharges £725,120 £725,120 £725,120 
(Income) -£87,800 -£90,083 -£92,425 
Total £16,800,020 £17,830,492 £18,789,556 
 
2.6 The assumptions used in the preparation of these 3 years budgets are as 

follows 
 
 

Staffing  Current Structure to be fully staffed 
throughout year 2% pay rises in 
subsequent years plus growth 

Investment management Fees  Estimate based on normal market 
conditions and 50% of investment 
mandates achieving performance 
targets. 

Rent   Agreed as a charge based on market 
rates (MPF owns building) 

Transport, Conferences and 
Subsistence 

 Estimated requirements for current 
year 

Services and Supplies  Contracts where usage and cost is 
fixed, plus estimate for variable 
elements. 

Inflation adjustments  RPI 2.6% as at September 2012 
Investment Performance  4% bonds, 8% equities, 50% of 

performance targets met for active 
management This equates to 6.9% 
growth per annum 

Page 64



 
 
2.7 The 3 year budget also includes additional items of additional £100,000 for 

implementation of the 2014 scheme in terms of IT systems and a 5% growth in 
staff costs to meet these and other regulatory requirements from 2014 
onwards. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 This has not changed since the report in January as below. 
The Fund has recently reviewed its Risk Register and identified key risks and 
mitigating controls for these risks. A key feature of the controls is having 
appropriate resources available to administer the fund adequately and to 
manage investments. This budget provides adequate resources for these two 
core functions.  

 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 This has not changed since the report in January as below. 
The majority of the Pension Fund budget is taken up by investment 
management costs and staffing. The investment management arrangements 
have recently been subject to review with another on-going and there was a 
comprehensive review of staffing arrangements in previous years as part of the 
EVR exercise. As described earlier, the administering authority is also 
undertaking a review of its back office services with an aim of reducing costs 
which should result in a decrease in charges to the Fund. For all other 
expenditure there has been a careful review process culminating in a planning 
meeting at which the Head of Service approved the proposals for discretionary 
expenditure in this report. 

 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 Not relevant for this report. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 The costs of the Pension Fund are charged directly to the Pension Fund and 
are then ultimately covered by investment income and employee and employer 
contributions, the full costs are estimated to be per member. (Including active 
contributors deferred and pensioners). The costs per member at Merseyside 
Pension Fund are competitive with other pension funds of similar size in both 
the public and private sector. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to 
equality? 

Page 65



 
 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no carbon usage implications, nor any other relevant environmental 
issues arising from this report. 

 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are no planning or community safety implications arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 Members approve the finalised budget for 2013/14 with revised estimates for 
departmental & central support charges for 2013/14 and finalised salary costs.  

 
12.2 Members approve other issues for inclusion in the 2012/13 Annual Report 

including 3 year financial estimates 
 
12.3 Members note the out turn for 2012/13.  
 
13.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

13.1 The approval of the budget and annual report for Merseyside Pension Fund by 
Pensions Committee forms part of the governance arrangements of Merseyside 
Pension Fund.  

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Paddy Dowdall 
  Investment Manager 
  telephone:  0151 242 1310 
  paddydowdall@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 

 The budget for 2013/14 including the out-turn for 2012/13 is attached as 
appendix 1 to this report. 

 The original appendix as reported to Members on 15th January 2013 is attached 
as appendix 2 to this report for information 

 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

Internal working papers were used in the production of this report. 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Pensions Committee :  

Pension Fund Budget 

Pension Fund Budget 

Pension Fund Budget 

Pension Fund Budget 

 

15th January 2013 

17th January 2012 

11th January  2011 

13th January 2010 

Page 66



 
 

Page 67



 

 Appendix 1  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
Budget 
2012/13 Actual Out-Turn Budget 

      2012/2013 2013/2014 
     £  £ 
Employees       

 
Pay, NI and 
Pension   2,534,400 2,438,298.83 2,522,638.16 

 Training    40,100 15,070.46 20,000.00 

 
Other Staffing 
Costs   82,200 75,197.56 85,000.00 

     2,656,700 2,528,566.85 2,627,638.16 
        
Premises        
 Rents    114,700 208,593.10 188,193.08 
     114,700 208,593.10 188,193.08 
        
Transport       
 Public Transport Expenses  31,450 9,790.97 24,840.00 

 Car Allowances   2,000 1,715.80 3,200.00 
     33,450 11,506.77 28,040.00 
Supplies        

 
Furniture and Office 
Equipment  40,000 12,522.48 25,000.00 

    
Value of the Fund  £5,149,000,000  30/09/2012 

Investment income Received  £93.4m Projected 2012/13 

Pensions Paid  £258.9m Projected 2012/13 

Contributions Received  £247.9m Projected 2012/13 

Active Contributing members  45,521 31st March  2012 

Deferred members  32,912 31st March  2012 

Pensioners  37,314 31st March  2012 

Total Members  115,747 31st March  2012 

    

P
age 68



 

 Printing and Stationery  197,500 75,003.89 75,000.00 
 Computer Development and Hardware 55,000 285,893.33 315,000.00 
 Postages and Telephones  138,500 109,216.05 104,500.00 
 External Audit   59,200 28,563.00 40,000.00 

 
Services and Consultants 
Fees  200,000 345,983.81 590,397.00 

 Conferences and Subsistence  40,520 28,237.14 34,540.00 
 Subscriptions   230,000 45,676.25 96,197.36 
 Other    0 11,700.70 65,000.00 
     960,720.00 942,796.65 1,345,634.36 
Third Party       
 Medical Fees   10,000 9,600.80 5,000.00 
 Bank Charges   15,000 14,636.49 15,000.00 
 Investment Management Fees  10,300,000 10,489,470.75 11,555,999.08 
 Custodian Fees   450,000 194,176.76 0.00 
 Actuarial Fees   150,000 290,380.25 163,877.56 
 Other Hired and Contracted Services 235,000 252,479.95 60,000.00 
     11,160,000 11,250,745.00 11,799,876.64 
        
Transfers        
 Payments for Devolved Administration 199,200.00 173,317.87 173,317.87 
     199,200.00 173,317.87 173,317.87 
        
Departmental & Central Support Charges 719,300 739,779.90 725,120.00 
     719,300.00 739,779.90 725,120.00 
        
Total Expenditure    15,844,070.00 15,855,306.14 16,887,820.12 

        
Income        
 Fire Service Administration  85,500 85,290.89 87,800.00 
     85,500 85,290.89 87,800.00 
Total Net Expenditure   15,758,570 15,770,015.25 16,800,020.12 

P
age 69



 

 Appendix 2 As reported on 15th January 2013 
  

 

     
Budget 
2012/13 Probable Out-Turn Budget 

      2012/2013 2013/2014 
     £ £ £ 
Employees       

 
Pay, NI and 
Pension   2,534,400 2,265,133.74 2,522,638.16 

 Training    40,100 10,220.00 20,000.00 

 
Other Staffing 
Costs   82,200 76,597.56 85,000.00 

     2,656,700 2,351,951.30 2,627,638.16 
Premises        
 Rents    114,700 208,593.08 188,193.08 
     114,700 208,593.08 188,193.08 
        
Transport       
 Public Transport Expenses  31,450 13,826.12 24,840.00 

 Car Allowances   2,000 2,689.66 3,200.00 
     33,450 16,515.78 28,040.00 
Supplies        

 
Furniture and Office 
Equipment  40,000 16,668.34 25,000.00 

Value of the Fund  £5,149,000,000  30/09/2012 

Investment income Received  £93.4m Projected 2012/13 

Pensions Paid  £258.9m Projected 2012/13 

Contributions Received  £247.9m Projected 2012/13 

Active Contributing members  45,521 31st March  2012 

Deferred members  32,912 31st March  2012 

Pensioners  37,314 31st March  2012 

Total Members  115,747 31st March  2012 

    P
age 70



 

 Printing and Stationery  197,500 69,852.70 75,000.00 
 Computer Development and Hardware 55,000 295,106.98 315,000.00 
 Postages and Telephones  138,500 129,478.90 104,500.00 
 External Audit   59,200 40,000.00 40,000.00 

 
Services and Consultants 
Fees  200,000 268,948.92 590,397.00 

 Conferences and Subsistence  40,520 14,024.88 34,540.00 
 Subscriptions   230,000 39,869.90 96,197.36 
 Other    0 10,955.96 65,000.00 
     960,720.00 884,906.58 1,345,634.36 
        
Third Party       
 Medical Fees   10,000 5,778.80 8,500.00 
 Bank Charges   15,000 14,459.42 15,000.00 
 Investment Management Fees  10,300,000 10,258,077.24 11,555,999.08 
 Custodian Fees   450,000 240,000.00 0.00 
 Actuarial Fees   150,000 150,000.00 163,877.56 
 Other Hired and Contracted Services 235,000 509,454.33 60,000.00 
     11,160,000 11,177,769.79 11,803,376.64 
        
Transfers        
 Payments for Devolved Administration 199,200.00 168,925.80 173,317.87 
     199,200.00 168,925.80 173,317.87 
        
Departmental & Central Support Charges 719,300 896,811.14 725,120.00 
     719,300.00 896,811.14 725,120.00 
        
Total Expenditure    15,844,070.00 15,705,473.47 16,891,320.12 

        
Income        
 Fire Service Administration  85,500 85,500.00 87,800.00 
     85,500 85,500.00 87,800.00 
        
Total Net Expenditure   15,758,570 15,619,973.47 16,803,520.12 

P
age 71



 

 

P
age 72



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

25 MARCH 2013 

 

SUBJECT: LGC INVESTMENT SUMMIT 

WARD/S AFFECTED: NONE 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION?  (Defined in 
paragraph 13.3 of Article 13 
‘Decision Making’ in the Council’s 
Constitution.) 

NO 

  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report requests nominations to attend the LGC Investment Summit to be held in 
Newport, South Wales from 5-6 September 2013 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

 
2.2 The conference theme is “We need to know how to control the risk switch!” and the 

organisers comment “risk management is clearly an important factor in long-term 
investment strategy and should be handled in a measured way.  Funds should not be 
drawn into tactical plays that can do more to increase risk and costs, than restore 
funding equilibrium.  You need to be in control of strategy, be in charge of that 
“switch”, and know when to turn it on or off”. 

 
 This year the topics covered include an examination of the UK economy, the impact of 

LGPS2014, smarter exposure to global equities, some investment ideas, de-risking 
and defensive assets, opportunities in property, and dealing with valuation outcomes. 

 
2.3 MPF has been represented at all previous conferences usually by the Chair of 

Pensions Committee and party spokespersons.  In view of the strategic focus of the 
conference, it is recommended that this arrangement is continued.  Accommodation 
will be required for the nights of 4 and 5 September 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 The Fund is required to demonstrate that Members of Pensions Committee have been 
adequately trained.  This conference is a recognised training opportunity and many of 
the topics are relevant to the triennial valuation this year. 

 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 73



5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising out of this report. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 The cost of attendance plus two nights’ accommodation will be about £949+ VAT per 
delegate, excluding travel, which can be met from the existing Pension Fund budget. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
  
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
  

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That Committee considers if it wishes to send a delegation to attend this conference 
and, if so, to determine the number and allocation of places. 

 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 The conference forms a part of the Members’ development plan approved by 
Committee in January 2013 and many of the topics are relevant to the triennial 
valuation this year. 

 . 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Peter Wallach 
  Head of Pension Fund 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1309 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

NONE 
 
 

Page 74



REFERENCE MATERIAL 

NONE 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

  

 

Page 75



 

Page 76



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

24 JUNE  2013 

SUBJECT: PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION 

STRATEGY STATEMENT 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR  

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

 
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

 

KEY DECISION NO  
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report informs Members of the required update to the Pensions Administration 
Strategy Statement, to reflect recent procedural changes resulting from the 
introduction of new legislation. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 From 1 April 2008, Regulation 65 of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Administration) Regulations 2008 provided that each Administering Authority may 
prepare a written statement of policies in relation to matters it considers appropriate 
to its pension administration service.  

 
2.2 After consultation with employers and other stakeholders, this document would be 

published as the Pensions Administration Strategy Statement.  Pensions Committee 
considered and agreed publication on 17 November 2009. 

 
2.3 Regulation 65 further stipulates that the Administering Authority must keep its 

Pensions Administration Strategy under review and update it as necessary to reflect 
any material changes in its policies related to any matters contained therein. 

 
Material Change: Automatic Enrolment Legislation 

 
2.4 As a result of the introduction of both the LGPS Miscellaneous Regulations 2012 

and overarching Automatic Enrolment Legislation, the procedures involved in the 
admission of employees into the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) have 
been amended. 

 
2.5 The required changes to procedures and forms for Automatic Enrolment were 

developed in collaboration and consultation with the Fund’s largest employers. 
 
2.6 The national staged roll out of Automatic Enrolment has meant that the largest 

employing authority in MPF had to comply with the legislation in March 2013. 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 77



2.7 The updated Fund procedures and forms are now in operation across all 
participating employers. To simplify administration and reduce Fund costs, the 
decision has been taken to standardise Scheme joining and leaving processes 
regardless of the individual staging dates of participating employers. 

 
2.8 However, the specific obligations of Automatic Enrolment legislation will still only 

apply to employers at their individual staging date. 
  

Material Change: Pension Saving Statements 
 
2.9 The Fund must provide a ‘Pension Saving Statement’ to members who exceed tax 

thresholds within the Scheme. This threshold is referred to as the Annual Allowance 
and is the amount by which a member’s overall pension savings may increase in any 
one year without having to pay a tax charge.   

 
2.10 The Government has substantially reduced the Annual Allowance threshold, to the 

point that many more members within the Fund will require assessment and 
subsequently receive a ‘Pension Saving Statement’ and possibly a personal tax 
charge.   

 
2.11 From April 2014, the improvement to the accrual rate will further increase the 

number of members who will be affected.  An addition has been made to the 
Pensions Administration Strategy to detail the necessary liaison work required 
between the Fund and employers in meeting this obligation to Scheme members. 

  
Material Change: Year End Contribution Returns 

 
2.12 The LGPS Miscellaneous Regulations 2012 introduced a statutory deadline for the 

distribution of Annual Benefit Statements to members of the LGPS – this is six 
months from the end of the previous tax year which is effectively 5 October. 

 
2.13 In order to meet this deadline, the Fund requires employers to submit their Year end 

contribution returns by the 30 April or the next working day every year.  Previously 
this date was only applicable in a valuation year and the 26 May was acceptable in 
the other two years. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 Automatic Enrolment legislation mainly impacts the employing authorities and 
compliance with the new statutory duties is enforced by The Pensions Regulator. 

 
3.2 The Pension Regulator has the power to impose enforcement notices on employers, 

including escalating financial penalties of up to a maximum daily rate of £10,000  
 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered. 

Page 78



 

5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 The amended Pensions Administration Strategy has been circulated to all 
participating employers for consideration and comment. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 Inevitably, the statutory information and communication requirements of Automatic 
Enrolment will increase administrative costs for employers. 

 
The Pensions Administration Strategy details the required changes to Fund policies 
and procedures – it cannot quantify individual employer costs as these will be 
related to their own workforce and supportive HR/Payroll systems. 

 
7.2 Currently, the employers who have reached their staging date have all invoked the 

Transitional Delay option within the Automatic Enrolment legislation. This has 
reduced the amount of resource required of the Fund in processing new Scheme 
members and any resultant optant-out requests.  Current operational requirements 
are being met by existing resources. 

  
7.3 By meeting and working in consultation with the largest employers the procedural 

changes are operationally deliverable – smaller employers will benefit from 
development work and the production of associated guidance. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 The reforms to the LGPS have already been assessed by Government with regard 

to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None arising from this report 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None arising from this report 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That Members approve the amendments to the Pensions Administration Strategy 
Statement attached at Appendix 1. 

 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

Page 79



13.1 There is a statutory requirement to review and update as necessary the Pensions 
Administration Strategy Statement, in relation to any material change to policies and 
procedures. 

 
 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Yvonne Caddock 
  Principal Pension Officer 
  Telephone: 0151 242 1333 
 
  email:   yvonnecaddock@wirral.gov.uk 
APPENDICES 
 

1 Pensions Administration Strategy 2013 
 

REFERENCE MATERIAL 
 

 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

  

 

Page 80



 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION
             STRATEGY 2013  
                                          

Page 81



Contents

1. Introduction............................................................................................................................ 2
2. Compliance............................................................................................................................. 3
3. Review ................................................................................................................................... 3
4. Regulatory Framework............................................................................................................. 3

5. Liaison & Communication......................................................................................................... 4
Employers’ website............................................................................................................... 4
Practitioner training.............................................................................................................. 5
Employers’ conference..........................................................................................................5
Policy discretions.................................................................................................................. 5
Notification of employees’ rights............................................................................................ 5
Internal Disputes Resolution Procedures (IDRP) ..................................................................... 5
Computer links..................................................................................................................... 5

6. Service standards to Scheme members..................................................................................... 6

7. Financial obligations .............................................................................................................. 16
Contributions ..................................................................................................................... 16
AVCs ................................................................................................................................. 16
Recharges ......................................................................................................................... 16

8. Standards of data & timeliness............................................................................................... 17
Overriding legislation.......................................................................................................... 17
Data quality ....................................................................................................................... 17
Timeliness ......................................................................................................................... 17
Secure data transfers ......................................................................................................... 18
Year end contribution returns.............................................................................................. 18
Triennial and Interim Valuations.......................................................................................... 18

9. Fund administration performance ........................................................................................... 19
Measures........................................................................................................................... 19
Audit ................................................................................................................................. 19
Benchmarking.................................................................................................................... 19
Customer satisfaction ......................................................................................................... 19

10. Employer performance .......................................................................................................... 20
Reporting .......................................................................................................................... 20
Poor performance .............................................................................................................. 20
Cost recovery..................................................................................................................... 21

11. Associated policy statements & discretions.............................................................................. 22
Communications policy ....................................................................................................... 22
Governance policy .............................................................................................................. 22
Employer discretions .......................................................................................................... 22

12. Appendix One ....................................................................................................................... 23
Regulation excerpts related to Pensions Administration Strategy Documents.......................... 23

13. Appendix Two....................................................................................................................... 25
Example job description for a Pensions Liaison Officer .......................................................... 25

Page 82



Revision History 

24 June 2013 - Summary of major changes 

As a result of the introduction of both the LGPS Miscellaneous Regulations 2012 and Automatic 
Enrolment Legislation, the procedures involved in the admission of employees into the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) have been amended. 

All new employees with contracts of at least three months should be contractually enrolled into 
the Scheme from their first day of employment.  Employees with a contact of employment for 
less than three months are entitled to actively elect to join the Scheme and pay contributions. 

Employers are no longer permitted to issue ‘opt-out’ forms to employees who wish to stop 
pension saving.  To stop contributing to the LGPS, employees must now obtain the relevant 
form directly from the Fund; complete the required information and return the form to their 
employer for processing. 

Section Revision Page
Service Standards Additional section on Contractual Enrolment responsibilities as a 

result of the Miscellaneous Regulations 2012 
5

Service Standards Additional section on the general requirements of employers in 
regard Automatic Enrolment Legislation. 

6

Service Standards Renamed ‘New Starters’ section to ‘New Scheme Members’  7 
Service Standards Changes to Members Choosing to opt-out of the Scheme 11 

The Fund must provide a ‘Pension Saving Statement’ to member’s who exceed tax thresholds 
within the Scheme. This threshold is referred to as the Annual Allowance and is the amount by 
which a member’s overall pension savings may increase in any one year without having to pay 
a tax charge.   

The Government has substantially reduced the Annual Allowance threshold, to the point that 
many more members within the Fund will require assessment and subsequently receive a 
‘Pension Saving Statement’ and possibly a personal tax charge.  From April 2014, the 
improvement to the accrual rate will further increase the number of members who will be 
affected.  An addition has been made to detail the necessary liaison work required between the 
Fund and employers in meeting this obligation. 

Section Revision Page
Service Standards Additional of Pension Saving Statements 9 

The LGPS Miscellaneous Regulations 2012 introduced a statutory deadline for the distribution of 
Annual Benefit Statements to members of the LGPS – this is six months from the end of the 
previous tax year which is effectively 5 October.

In order to meet this deadline, the Fund requires employers to submit their Year end 
contribution returns by the 30 April or the next working day every year.  Previously this date 
was only applicable in a valuation year and the 26 May was acceptable in the other two years. 

Section Revision Page
Service Standards Deadline date added to Annual Benefit Statements 9 
Standards of data Year end contribution returns 17 

Page 83



1. Introduction

Merseyside Pension Fund (“the Fund”) is responsible for the administration of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (“the Scheme”) within the geographical area of Merseyside.  The Fund also 
administers the Scheme on behalf of a number of qualifying employers who are not situated within the 
Merseyside area.  The service is carried out by Wirral Council (“the administering authority”) on behalf 
of qualifying employers and ultimately the Scheme members.   

This document is the Pensions Administration Strategy statement outlining the policies and 
performance standards towards providing a cost-effective, inclusive and high quality pensions 
administration service.  Delivery of such an administration service is not the responsibility of one 
person or one organisation, but is rather the joint working of a number of different stakeholders which 
between them are responsible for delivering the pensions administration service to meet the diverse 
needs of the membership. 

2. Compliance

Developed in consultation with employers within the Fund, this statement seeks to promote good 
working relationships, improve efficiency and ensure agreed standards of quality in delivery of the 
pension administration service amongst the employers and the Fund.  A copy of this strategy is issued 
to each of the relevant employers as well as to the Secretary of State.   

In no circumstances does this strategy override any provision or requirement of the Regulations set 
out below nor is it intended to replace the more extensive commentary provided by the employers’ 
website for day-to-day operations. 

3. Review

The Fund will review this policy statement and make revisions as appropriate following a material 
change in its policies in relation to any of the matters contained in the strategy.   Employers will be 
consulted and informed of the changes and a revised statement will be supplied to the Secretary of 
State.

4. Regulatory Framework 

Regulation 65(1) of the LGPS (Administration) Regulations 2008 enables an LGPS administering 
authority to prepare a document ("the pension administration strategy") detailing administrative 
standards, performance measures, data flows and communication with employers - a full transcript of 
this and other related regulations are in Appendix One. 

In addition, Regulation 43 of the (Administration) Regulations 2008 allows an administering authority 
to recover additional costs from an employing authority where, in its opinion, they are directly related 
to the poor performance of that employing authority.  

Page 84



5. Liaison & Communication 

The delivery of a high quality, cost effective administration service is not the responsibility of just the 
administering authority, but depends on the joint working of the administering authority with a number 
of individuals in different organisations to ensure Scheme members, and other interested parties, 
receive the appropriate level of service and ensure that statutory requirements are met. 

Each Employing authority will designate a named individual to act as a Pensions Liaison Officer;
being the main contact with regard to any aspect of administering the LGPS.  A sample recommended 
“job description” is attached at Appendix Two 

Key responsibilities of a Pensions Liaison Officer are: 

! to act as a conduit for communications to appropriate staff within the employer – for example, 
Human Resources, Payroll teams, Directors of Finance; 

! to ensure that standards and levels of service are maintained; 

! to ensure that details of all nominated representatives and authorised signatures are correct, 
and to notify the Fund of any changes immediately; 

! to arrange distribution of communications literature such as Scheme guides, packs, newsletters 
and promotional material as and when required; 

! to inform the Fund of any alternative service arrangements required to ensure equitable 
member access, addressing the diverse needs of the membership; 

! to assure data quality and ensure the timely submission of data to the Fund; and 

! to assist and liaise with the Fund on promotional activities to increase, where appropriate, the 
Scheme membership and to existing members the overall benefits of the Scheme. 

Employers’ website 

The Fund has a dedicated, private website for all employers. Each Pension Liaison Officer receives a 
unique username and password to access the site. 

This employers’ website is the main communication tool between employers and the Fund – it contains 
the procedural guide for administering the LGPS within Merseyside, copies of forms, a means to submit 
data securely and information on courses run by the Fund. 

Important information is sent out on email to the Pension Liaison Officer, as a News Alert, but 
regular logging in and review of the website news areas is advised. 

Additional usernames and passwords can be requested by the Pension Liaison Officer as appropriate.   

Page 85



Practitioner training 

The Fund will publish an annual timetable of training days for employing authority staff tasked with 
administering the LGPS locally.  Where resources allow, the Fund will respond to staff development 
requests from employers, these may be co-ordinated with published training days. 

Employers’ conference 

The Fund holds an annual conference for employers, where officers of the Fund deliver a report on the 
Financial Statements, Investment Performance and also Administration Performance. 

Attendance by Pension Liaison Officers and Senior Management within the employing authority is 
actively encouraged. 

Policy discretions 

Each employer is required to produce, publish and maintain a statement of policy regarding the 
exercise of certain discretionary functions available to them within the LGPS regulations.  The policy 
statement must be kept under review and where revisions are made; the revised policy statement 
must be sent to the Fund and made readily available to all employees within the employing authority 
within one month of the effective date.  Further information on applicable employer discretions is given 
in Section 11. 

Notification of employees’ rights 

Any decisions made by an employing authority affecting an employee’s rights to membership or 
entitlement to benefits must be notified to the employee in writing. 

Internal Disputes Resolution Procedures (IDRP) 

Each employing authority is required to nominate and name the person to whom applications under 
Stage 1 of the Internal Disputes Resolution Procedures should be made.  The name, job title and 
contact details of this nominated person must be kept up-to-date with the Fund. 

Online links to the Fund IT Systems 

The Fund can provide secure online access to large employers, in order for staff to enquire on their 
employees’ record of membership.  This is provided to aid employers in the regular reconciliation of 
member data with their Payroll & HR Systems. 

As there are system and resource costs associated with granting online access, the Fund reserves the 
right to only agree online employer access where there is a mutual benefit in managing data quality 
and overall administration costs. 

The Fund will ensure that the IT system is available for use during normal office hours (Mon-Fri, 9am 
to 5pm) with the exception of any necessary scheduled maintenance of the system as notified by email 
to the Pensions Liaison Officer.   

The Fund will, where resources permit, make the computer system available outside of normal office 
hours provided sufficient notice is given.  Any additional costs to provide such availability will be 
rechargeable to the employing authority. 

Page 86



6. Service standards to Scheme members 

Prospective employees 

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

To provide all prospective employees with a 
pensions promotional leaflet prior to 
interview. 

Make available on the employers’ website the 
latest pensions promotional leaflet and provide 
sufficient stock within five weeks of request by 
employer. 

New Employees - Contractual Enrolment 

Employers must ensure that all new employees, with a contract of at least three months, are 
contractually enrolled into the Scheme from their date of appointment. 

Employers to issue a ‘postponement notice’ to new employees with a contract of less than three 
months, making them aware that they can actively join the Scheme. 

At such time where the employee has their contract extended to last 3 months or more, they 
must be ‘contractually enrolled’ into the Scheme, however membership should not be 
backdated. 

To ensure that pensions information is included as part of any induction process.  The Fund can 
provide appropriate materials and presentations. 

Page 87



For more information on employer obligations in regard Automatic Enrolment: 
http://mpfemployers.org.uk/content/automatic-enrolment-guide-lgps-employers

Existing Employees - Automatic Enrolment 

[ only applicable from an employer’s individual staging date ] 

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

Employers must comply with the Automatic 
Enrolment legislation at their individual staging 
date - as notified by ‘The Pensions Regulator’. 

Employers should consider whether they wish 
to make use of the ‘Transitional Delay Period’ 
within the legislation.  

Make available on the employers’ website the 
detailed guidance on the delivery of Automatic 
Enrolment for the LGPS. 

To inform employers of any changes 
announced by the Pensions Regulator/LGA in 
respect of Automatic Enrolment. 

Employers must write to all their employees at 
their staging date, making use of the 
appropriate template letters within the LGPC 
Automatic Enrolment Guide. 

To provide relevant contact details for insertion 
in the template letters. 

At each pay-reference period, monitor 
employees who are not members of the 
Scheme in regards compliance with Automatic 
Enrolment legislation.

To accept new members into the Scheme. 

On the employer’s re-enrolment date the 
employer must fulfil the obligations of the 
Automatic Enrolment legislation.  

To accept new members into the Scheme. 

Page 88



New Scheme Members 

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

An LGP1 form should be completed for all 
enrolled employees and submitted to the Fund 
within four weeks of membership starting, 
regardless of whether they have had any 
pension contribution deducted from pay. 

Where there is more than one contract of 
employment with the same employer, each 
membership shall be maintained separately 
and the Fund notified via an additional LGP1.

LGP1 information can be electronically 
submitted with prior agreement of format and 
data security protocols. 

To accurately record and update member 
records on pension administration systems 
within four weeks of receipt of documents. 

To produce Certificates of Membership and 
forward to the member's home address, within 
thirteen weeks of joining the Scheme. 

To store a copy of the Certificate of 
Membership within their records for that 
employee. 

To provide the employer with a copy of the 
member’s Certificate of Membership. 

To provide each new employee with a 
pension information pack, either with the 
letter of appointment or within two weeks of 
joining the Scheme. 

Make available on the employers’ website the 
latest components of the Fund’s pension 
information packs updated in accordance with 
regulatory changes and provide sufficient stock 
within five weeks of request by employer. 

To assist the Fund in ensuring that all new 
members are aware of the importance in 
completing forms LGP2 and LGP25 contained 
in the information packs. 

To apply for Transfer Value details within two 
weeks of receiving an LGP2 form where 
relevant.

Page 89



Changes in circumstances for active members 

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

To ensure that the Fund is informed of any 
changes in the circumstances of employees on 
approved forms or by agreed electronic 
templates within four weeks of the change. 

To provide forms for recording any key change 
in circumstances and/or provide a template for 
the secure submission of data electronically. 

Status:

 Change of Name 

 Marital Status 

 National Insurance number 

 National Insurance category 

Conditions of service: 

 Contractual Hours 

 Remuneration 

 Contribution Rate 

 Department & Payroll Number 

 Membership Start Date   (if adjusted) 

Absence:

 Maternity & Paternity leave 

 Paid & Unpaid leave of absence   

 (including details of contributions paid) 

 Industrial Action (strikes) 

 Any other material period of absence 

To accurately record and update member 
records on pension administration systems 
within four weeks of notification or any shorter 
period as requested by employer with regard 
to specific requirements. 

Page 90



Annual Benefit Statements 

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

To provide a year end contribution return and 
ensure all errors and additional information are 
resolved within four weeks. 

To process employer year end contribution 
returns within two months of receipt. 

To provide consolidated and grouped error 
reports for action by employers. 

To provide an initial point of contact (Pension 
Liaison Officer or helpline number) for handling 
queries – this will be printed on the annual 
benefit statements sent to members. 

To produce annual benefit statements for all 
active members and post to member's home 
address, no later than 5th October.

Pension Saving Statements 

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

To consider as part of workforce planning, the 
potential impact of a member with significant 
LGPS membership receiving a substantial pay 
award or promotion. 

To respond to employer enquiries on the 
likelihood that a member may exceed the 
Annual Allowance threshold. 

To respond to queries from the Fund in regard 
the assessment of members and the Annual 
Allowance threshold.  

To assess from the year end contribution 
return, those members who are approaching 
or have exceeded the Annual Allowance 
threshold. 

Provide the Fund with the required information 
and accurate pay amounts no later than ten 
days from the request. 

To produce a further request for information 
and pay amounts for the identified cohort of 
members in order to ensure accuracy of the 
‘Pension Saving Statement’ 

To provide a point of contact at the employer 
to be quoted on the ‘Pension Saving 
Statement’.  

This person must be able to respond to pay 
related queries from the member. 

To produce ‘Pension Saving Statements’ for 
affected members and post to that member's 
home address, no later than 5th October.

Page 91



Additional benefits (AVCs) 

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

To collect contributions from employee payroll, 
and to arrange their prompt payment directly 
to the appropriate provider according to the 
published schedule. 

To provide information and offer alternative 
Scheme negotiated providers which offer a 
portfolio of additional voluntary contribution 
(AVC) options. 

To review provision to ensure services offered 
are reasonable. 

Additional benefits (ARCs) 

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

To collect contributions from employee payroll, 
and to arrange their payment to the Fund as 
part of the main contribution submission.  

To provide information and quotations to a 
Scheme member on the option of making 
Additional Regular Contributions (ARCs) 

Retirement estimates 

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

To submit request form LGP88 for estimates 
to the Fund no later than four months before 
retirement. 

To verify correctness of benefit estimate and 
distribute to the Scheme member. 

To produce retirement estimates to be 
returned to employers within two weeks of 
receiving all the necessary information. 

Appropriately large employers, with online 
links to the Fund IT Systems, can be provided 
with the facility to produce retirement 
estimates for the purposes of work planning. 

Page 92



Retirement packs (information related to retirement) 

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

To provide members retiring with form LGP1b
and a retirement pack at least three months 
before retirement. 

To provide, on request, a retirement pack to 
those members attaining age 58 in any given 
year. 

Make available on the employers’ website the 
latest components of the Fund’s retirement 
packs and provide sufficient stock within five 
weeks of request by employer. 

Members choosing to opt-out of the Scheme 

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

Within three months of joining the Scheme, 
employers should direct employees wishing to 
opt-out of pension saving to contact the 
Membership team at the Fund or to the Fund’s 
website to request a form (LGP9a). 

To process any completed LGP9a’s received 
from eligible employees, who choose not to 
remain in the Scheme within their first 
three months of membership.

To arrange a payroll refund of contributions to 
the employee with appropriate adjustments for 
tax and National Insurance. 

To store a copy of the LGP9a within their 
records for that employee and to forward a 
copy to the Fund for their records along with a 
completed LGP1 starter form, if not previously 
submitted.

To make the LGP9a ‘opt-out form’ available 
on the Fund’s website. 

To respond to phone calls from members, and 
provide information on the: 

     benefits to be relinquished; 

     tax and national insurance implications 

The Fund will provide an LGP9a for 
completion by the member, following their 
continued wish to leave the Scheme. 

To accurately record and update member 
records on pension administration systems 
within four weeks of receipt of document. 

After three months membership in the 
Scheme, employers will direct employees to 
contact the Operations team at the Fund. 

To respond to phone calls from members and 
provide information on the: 

  benefits to be relinquished; 

   tax and national insurance implications; 

 nature of a deferred pension and when it   
 will come into payment; 

 need to inform the Fund of future home 
  address changes. 

Page 93



The Fund will provide an LGP9 for completion 
by the member, following their continued wish 
to leave the Scheme. 

Upon receipt of a completed and signed LGP9
form from the employee, to accurately update 
members payroll records to ensure further 
contributions are not collected and tax and 
National Insurance obligations are adjusted 
accordingly from the next appropriate pay 
date.

To store a copy of the LGP9 within their 
records for that employee. 

To complete an LGP1a and forward this form 
together with the LGP9 to the Fund.  On 
leaving employment, an LGP1c is required for 
the former member and this should be 
forwarded to the Fund. 

To accurately record and update member 
records on pension administration systems.

To inform member of their deferred benefit 
entitlements in writing within two months of 
notification by employer. 

To inform the Fund within four weeks of any 
changes affecting former employees, especially 
re-employment and retrospective pay awards. 

To accurately record and update member 
records on pension administration systems 
within two months of notification by employer. 

Members leaving employment 

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

To notify the Fund of an employee’s date and 
reason for cessation of membership and all 
other relevant information, on approved forms, 
within four weeks of the event. 

To accurately record and update member 
records on pension administration systems. 

To inform members who leave the Scheme, 
who are not entitled to immediate payment of 
benefits, the options available and deferred 
benefit entitlement within two months of 
receiving all relevant information. 

If benefits are to be brought into payment on 
the member leaving their employment (i.e. 
retirement, including flexible retirement) the 
employer is to notify the Fund ideally in 
advance of the leave date but no later than 
four weeks following the actual date of leaving 
to enable payments to be made promptly. 

To pay Scheme benefits within seven working 
days of receiving all relevant information. 

Page 94



Former members with deferred benefits 

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

To keep adequate records of the following for 
members who leave the Scheme with deferred 
benefits: 

 Name & Last known address 

 National Insurance Number 

 Payroll Number 

 Date of Birth 

 Last job including job specification 

 Salary details (ten years if available) 

 Date and reason for leaving 

To determine whether or not former 
employees are eligible for early payment on ill 
health grounds after seeking a suitable medical 
opinion. To determine whether benefits should 
be released early and whether any early 
retirement reduction should be waived. 

To accurately record and update member 
records on pension administration systems. 

To provide former members, where possible, 
an annual benefit statement of their deferred 
benefits updated by accrued annual pensions 
increase awards.

To provide estimates of benefits that may be 
payable and any resulting employer costs. 

To provide information on former employees 
as required by the Fund, within four weeks. 

To request from former employers historical 
information that will inform the process 
crystallising a  deferred benefit – for example, 
immediate payment on the basis of ill health 
where the last known job specification would 
be required for any medical assessment. 

Death in Service & Terminal Illness 

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

To inform the Fund immediately on the death 
of an employee, and when a member is 
suffering from a potentially terminal illness. 

To assist employers, employees and their Next 
of Kin in ensuring the pension options are 
made available and that the payment of 
benefits are expedited in an appropriate and 
caring manner. 

Page 95



Ill Health Retirements 

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

To arrange, appoint and inform the Fund of 
their named, independent occupational 
medical officer on form LGP200 in accordance 
with regulatory requirements. 

To be satisfied that the occupational medical 
officers appointed to make retirement 
decisions are suitably qualified in occupational 
health medicine and independent. 

To notify the Fund of any changes in 
occupational medical officer. 

To check the details, approve and hold on 
record and confirm in writing the details 
submitted by the employers in regard to their 
nominated, suitably qualified and independent 
occupational medical officer. 

To provide relevant documentation and 
guidance to employers and for medical 
practitioners. 

To determine based on medical opinion and 
advice whether an ill health award is to be 
made and determine which tier 1, 2 or 3.

Arrange for the completion of the appropriate 
LGP12 form and then submit to the Fund with 
all signatures. 

To calculate and pay required benefits. 

To keep a record of all Tier 3 ill health 
retirements, particularly in regard the 18 
month review of their gainful employment and 
any subsequent appointment with an 
occupational medical officer for a further 
medical certificate. 

To recover any overpayments of pension 
benefits following subsequent re-employment 
and notify the Fund 

To assist the employer in performing their 
legislative responsibility to review Tier 3 ill 
health cases at 18 months. 

To review all Tier 3 ill health retirement cases 
prior to discontinuance at three years. 

Arrange for the completion of the appropriate 
LGP12 form and then submit to the Fund with 
all signatures. 

To notify employers three months prior to 
scheduled discontinuation of benefit payments 
and before updating the members records to 
reflect them becoming a “pensioner member 
with deferred benefits” from the date of the 
suspension.

Page 96



7. Financial obligations 

Contributions

Each employing authority must pay the Fund all employee and employer contributions (not including 
AVCs), no later than the 22nd of the month following deduction from payroll, provided the payment is 
made electronically. Conversely, if payment to the Fund is made by cheque it should be received by 
the 19th of the month. 

If an employer has a number of payroll services in respect of its employees, a consolidated monthly  
return is required on an LGP41, duly signed as accurate by an appropriate authorised signatory of the 
employing authority. 

The correct employee contribution rate is to be determined each year at the 1 April by the employing 
authority in line with the appropriate contribution banding table.  Changes to the employee 
contribution rates at all other times must be in line with the employers’ published discretionary policy 
on adjusting employee contribution rates. 

Interest will be charged for late payment as detailed in Regulation 44(4) of the LGPS (Administration) 
Regulations 2008 – a copy of which is at Appendix One. 

AVCs

Each employing authority must pay all AVC related deductions from its employees (plus any employer 
contributions if a shared cost AVC arrangement) to the appropriate provider according to the published 
schedule.

Recharges

The Fund will provide employers with a detailed report and/or schedule of any recharge items as they 
become due. Each employing authority must ensure that all rechargeable items are paid to the Fund 
within four weeks of invoice.   

Interest will be charged for late payment as detailed in Regulation 44(4) of the LGPS (Administration) 
Regulations 2008 – a copy of which is in Appendix One. 

Page 97



8. Standards of data & timeliness 

Overriding legislation 

In performing the role of administering the LGPS, the Fund and Employers will comply with overriding 
legislation, including: 

! the Occupational Pensions Schemes (Disclosure of Information) Regulations 1996; 

! the Pensions Act 1995, 2004 & 2008; 

! the Finance Act 2004 & 2006; 

! the Data Protection Act 1998;  

! the Freedom of Information Act 2000; 

! the Equality Act 2010; and 

! Health & Safety legislation. 

and any future amendments to the above legislation. 

Data quality 

The Fund and employers will ensure that all functions and tasks are carried out to agreed quality 
standards, which are: 

! compliance with all the procedural requirements as set out on the employers website; 

! work to be completed on the approved forms or in an agreed electronic template; 

! information to be legible and accurate; 

! information provided to be checked for accuracy by an appropriately qualified member of staff; 
and

! information provided to be authorised by an agreed signatory. 

Timeliness 

Overriding legislation dictates minimum standards that Pension Schemes should meet in providing 
certain pieces of information to the various associated parties – not least of which the Scheme 
member.  The LGPS Regulations also identifies a number of requirements for the Fund and Employers.  
These performance standards are held within the contents of this Pensions Administration Strategy 
particularly within this section and the sections titled Service standards to Scheme members and 
Standards of financial obligations.

Page 98



Secure data transfers 

The Fund provides a secure email facility for the encrypted transfer of person identifiable data 
between a Pension Liaison Officer (or a nominated, authorised individual) and the Fund.  Access to this 
provision is coordinated by the Employers’ website. 

Year end contribution returns 

The employer shall provide the Fund with year-end information to 31 March each year in an approved 
format no later than 30 April or the next working day. 

If an employer has a number of payroll services in respect of its employees, a consolidated 
contribution return is required.  If the payroll is contracted out to a bureau or another third-party 
organisation, then it remains the responsibility of the employing authority to ensure a complete and 
accurate data submission to the Fund within timescale. 

Such information should be accompanied by a final statement (LGP40), duly signed by an authorised 
officer of the employing authority, balancing the amounts paid during the year with the total amounts 
on the year end return data file – certifying that the amounts reflect the contributions deducted from 
employees during the year. 

Triennial and Interim Valuations 

The Fund has to be re-valued every three years by the Fund Actuary to determine employers’ 
contributions rates.  Interim valuations happen within the triennial cycle and are used to monitor, 
progressively, including the incidence and prevalence of ill health and early retirements. 

Valuations

Employers’ Responsibility Fund’s Responsibility 

To provide the Fund with up to date and 
correct information on members working 
hours, breaks in service and pensionable pay 
in accordance with agreed timescales. 

To ensure that all errors highlighted from the 
annual contribution posting exercise are 
responded to and corrective action taken 
promptly. 

To provide data to the Fund Actuary and 
Government Actuary’s Department to enable 
employer contribution rates to be accurately 
determined and any cost sharing 
arrangements applied. 

To provide a copy of the valuation report and 
contributions certificate to each employer and 
answer any questions arising. 

Page 99



9. Fund administration performance 

Measures

Performance measure Target
(working days) 

1. Payment of retirement benefits 7 days 

2. Payment of monthly pensions 100%

3. Payment of transfer values 7 days 

4. Provision of inward transfer quotes 10 days 

5. Notification of deferred benefits 22 days 

6. Provide valuation in divorce cases 10 days 

7. Respond to members enquiries 10 days 

All of these measures start from the date of receipt of all relevant information. The annual figures for 
the Fund performance measures are reported in the Annual Report and Accounts. 

Audit

The Fund is subject to an annual audit of its processes and internal controls.  Employers are expected 
to fully comply with any requests for information from both internal and approved external auditors.  
Any subsequent recommendations will be considered and where appropriate implemented with 
Employing authority cooperation. 

Benchmarking

The Fund will regularly monitor its costs and service performance by benchmarking with other 
administering authorities by using benchmarking clubs and other available comparators.  Details of 
costs of administration, quality measures and standards of performance will be published in the Annual 
Report and Accounts. 

Customer satisfaction 

The Fund has an established programme of customer satisfaction surveys, and the results of which are 
to be published on the Employers website and where appropriate the main public website of the Fund. 

Page 100



10. Employer performance

Reporting

The Fund works with employers on reporting on the service standards set out in Section 6 of this 
document where there is reduction in service level to Scheme Members.  This approach to reporting 
facilitates early engagement with employers and also provides a mechanism for service level review 
and recognition of best practice. 

Poor performance 

The Fund will seek, at the earliest opportunity, to work closely with employers in identifying areas of 
poor performance, provide the necessary training and development to put in place appropriate 
processes to improve the level of service into the future. 

In the event of continued poor performance and a lack of any evidence of any measures being taken 
to achieve improvement by an employing authority the Fund will seek to recover any additional costs 
arising.

Any third party costs or regulatory fines incurred by the Fund as a consequence of administrative 
failures or poor performance by an employing authority will be recovered from the employer. These 
may include fines imposed by the Courts or the Pensions Ombudsman and additional charges in 
respect of actuarial fees, third party computer charges and additional printing and distribution costs. 

In dealing with poor performance the Fund will: 

! write to the employer setting out the area(s) of poor performance; 

! meet with the employing authority, to discuss area(s) of poor performance and how these can 
be addressed; 

! issue formal written notice, where no improvement is demonstrated by the employing authority 
or where there has been a failure to take agreed action by the employing authority; 

! make claim for cost recovery, taking account of time and resources in resolving the specific 
area(s) of poor performance – please see section on Cost Recovery; and 

! will report any claim for cost recovery to the Pensions Committee at the next available meeting 
and may form part of the administrative report in the Fund’s published Annual Report and 
Accounts. 

Page 101



Cost recovery 

Any additional costs to Merseyside Pension Fund in the administration of the LGPS that are incurred as 
a direct result of an employer’s poor performance will be recovered from the Employing authority.  The 
circumstances where such additional costs will be recovered from the employing authority are: 

! persistent failure to provide relevant information to the administering authority, scheme 
member or other interested party in accordance with service standards and performance 
measures (either as a result of timeliness, delivery or quality of information); 

! failure to pass relevant information to the Scheme member or potential members; 

! failure to deduct, and pay Merseyside Pension Fund, the correct employee and employer 
contributions within the stated timescales; 

! instances where the performance of the employing authority results in fines being levied 
against the administering authority by the Pension Regulator, Pensions Ombudsman or other 
regulatory body; and 

! additional costs incurred in providing expert third party advice in administering the Scheme on 
behalf of the employer, including but not exclusive to actuarial services, occupational medical 
practitioner services and legal services. 

Where Merseyside Pension Fund determines cost recovery is appropriate, written notice will be given 
to the employing authority stating: 

! the reasons in their opinion that the Employing authority’s poor performance resulted in the 
additional cost; 

! the amount of the additional cost incurred; 

! the basis on how the additional cost was calculated; and 

! the provision within the Pension Administration Strategy relevant to the decision to give notice. 

Page 102



11. Associated policy statements & discretions 

Communications policy 

This statement outlines the Fund's policy on: 

! Information to members, representatives and employers; 
! The format, frequency and method of distributing such information; 
! The promotion of the Scheme to prospective members and their employing authorities. 

The Fund website has the latest copy of this policy which can be found at: 

http://mpfemployers.org.uk/content/communicating-employers  

Governance policy 

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council is the Administering Authority for Merseyside Pension Fund. The 
Council has delegated to the Pensions Committee various powers and duties in respect of its 
administration of the Fund. 

This statement sets out the scheme of delegation and the terms of reference, structure and 
operational procedures of the delegation and can be found on the Fund website at: 

http://mpfemployers.org.uk/content/governance-fund 

Employer discretions 

Since 1997, the LGPS Regulations have required every employing authority to: 

! issue a written policy statement on how it will exercise the various discretions provided by the 
Scheme; 

! keep it under review; 
! revise it as necessary. 

A list of employer discretions can be found on the Employers website at: 

http://mpfemployers.org.uk/content/employer-discretionary-policies 

Page 103



12. Appendix One 

Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008 
Regulation excerpts related to Pensions Administration Strategy Documents 

Exchange of information by authorities 

64.—(1) An employing authority which is not an administering authority must— 

(a) inform the appropriate administering authority of all decisions made by the employer under Part 6 or this Part 
concerning members; and 

(b) give that authority such other information as it requires for discharging its Scheme functions. 

(2) If—

(a) an administering authority makes any decision under Part 6 or this Part about a person for whom it is not the 
employing authority; and 

(b) information about the decision is required by his employing authority for discharging that employer’s Scheme 
functions, 

that authority must give that employer that information. 

Pension administration strategy 

65.—(1) An administering authority may prepare a written statement of the authority’s policies in relation to such of 
the matters mentioned in paragraph (2) as it considers appropriate (“its pension administration strategy”) and, where it 
does so, paragraphs (3) to (7) apply. 

(2) The matters are— 

(a) procedures for liaison and communication with employers in relation to which it is the administering authority 
(“its employers”); 

(b) the establishment of levels of performance which the administering authority and its employers are expected 
to achieve in carrying out their Scheme functions by— 

(i) the setting of performance targets, 

(ii) the making of agreements about levels of performance and associated matters, or 

(iii) such other means as the administering authority considers appropriate; 

(c) procedures which aim to secure that the administering authority and its employers comply with statutory 
requirements in respect of those functions and with any agreement about levels of performance; 

(d) procedures for improving the communication by the administering authority and its employers to each other 
of information relating to those functions; 

(e) the circumstances in which the administering authority may consider giving written notice to any of its 
employers under regulation 43(2) on account of that authority’s unsatisfactory performance in carrying out its 
Scheme functions when measured against levels of performance established under sub-paragraph (b); 

(f) the publication by the administering authority of annual reports dealing with— 

(i) the extent to which that authority and its employers have achieved the levels of performance established 
under sub-paragraph (b), and 

(ii) such other matters arising from its pension administration strategy as it considers appropriate; and 

(g) such other matters as appear to the administering authority, after consulting its employers and such other 
persons as it considers appropriate, to be suitable for inclusion in that strategy. 

(3) An administering authority must— 

(a) keep its pension administration strategy under review; and 

(b) make such revisions as are appropriate following a material change in its policies in relation to any of the 
matters contained in the strategy. 

(4) In preparing or reviewing and making revisions to its pension administration strategy, an administering authority 
 must consult its employers and such other persons as it considers appropriate. 

Page 104



(5) An administering authority must publish— 

(a) its pension administration strategy; and 

(b) where revisions are made to it, the strategy as revised. 

(6) When an administering authority publishes its pension administration strategy, or that strategy as revised, it must 
send a copy of it to each of its employers and to the Secretary of State.

(7) An administering authority and its employers must have regard to the current version of any pension 
administration strategy when carrying out their Scheme functions. 

(8) In this regulation references to the functions of an administering authority include, where applicable, its functions 
as an employing authority. 

Additional costs arising from employing authority’s level of performance 

43.—(1) This regulation applies where, in the opinion of the appropriate administering authority, it has incurred 
additional costs which should be recovered from an employing authority because of that employing authority’s level of 
performance in carrying out its functions under these Regulations or the Benefits Regulations. 

(2) The administering authority may give written notice to the employing authority stating— 

(a) the administering authority’s reasons for forming the opinion mentioned in paragraph (1); 

(b) the authority’s opinion that the employing authority’s contribution under regulation 42(1)(d) should include 
an amount specified in the notice in respect of the additional costs attributable to that authority’s level of 
performance; 

(c) the basis on which the specified amount is calculated; and 

(d) where the administering authority has prepared a pension administration strategy under regulation 65, the 
provisions of the strategy which are relevant to the decision to give the notice and to the matters in sub-
paragraph (a), (b) or (c). 

Interest

44.—(1) An administering authority may require an administering or employing authority from which payment of 
any amount due under regulations 39 to 42 (employers’ contributions or payments) or regulation 86 (changes of fund) 
is overdue to pay interest on that amount. 

(2) The date on which any amount due under regulations 39 to 41 is overdue is the date one month from the date 
specified by the administering authority for payment. 

(3) The date on which any amount due under regulation 42 (other than any extra charge payable under regulation 40 
or 41 and referred to in regulation 42(1)(c)) is overdue is the day after the date when that payment is due. 

(4) Interest due under paragraph (1) or payable to a person under regulation 45(5) (deduction and recovery of 
member’s contributions), 46(2) (rights to return of contributions) or 51 (interest on late payment of certain benefits) 
must be calculated at one per cent. above base rate on a day to day basis from the due date to the date of payment and 
compounded with three-monthly rests. 

(5) Interest on any amount due in respect of regulation 86 shall be calculated in accordance with guidance issued by 
the Government Actuary. 

Page 105



13. Appendix Two 

Example job description for a Pensions Liaison Officer 

1. To act as the primary link for communication between the Administering Authority (AA) and the 
organisation and to ensure that systems are in place to disseminate information and collect it 
from all relevant staff. 

2. To identify any pension training needs within the organisation and to ensure with the 
assistance of the AA that these are met. 

3. To be aware of governance arrangements and ensure that all relevant personnel are aware of 
opportunities for participation in decision making processes. 

4. To inform the Fund of any alternative service requirements to ensure equitable access, 
addressing the diverse needs of the membership. 

5. To ensure that the organisation discharges its duties and responsibilities under the Pensions 
Administration Strategy (PAS), the LGPS regulations and other relevant legislation and 
specifically determines relevant matters: 

! the appropriate contribution rate based on earnings; 
! whether the employee is whole time, part time, variable time or a casual worker; 
! the date an employee starts and leaves; 
! the reason for leaving; 
! entitlement to benefit; 
! pensionable pay and final pensionable pay. 

6. That the employer ensures that: 

7. Contributions deducted from payroll are forwarded to the AA and any Additional Voluntary 
Contributions (AVCs) to the relevant providers on time and in the appropriate form. 

8. The AA is informed of any material changes regarding the position of its employees within the 
deadlines laid down (Hours changes, marital status, breaks in service, certificates of protection, 
maternity, strikes, etc). 

9. All employees are informed of their pension rights and options, whether pensionable or not 
within the statutory deadlines, including ensuring transfer values and pensions sharing on 
divorce/dissolution of Civil Partnerships are dealt within timescales prescribed. 

10. Procedures are administered as laid down in the Employers Guide and the Pensions 
Administration Strategy document. 

11. To provide information to the AA to enable an annual benefit statement to be issued to all 
employees. 

12. To issue relevant promotional information on the pension scheme to all eligible employees and 
to obtain required information and pass it promptly to the AA. 

13. To cooperate with the AA to ensure that members receive essential pension option information 
at induction, mid-life, pre retirement and other ad hoc events as necessary. 

Page 106



14. To ensure that employees are able to obtain estimates of benefits and information on any 
options available them to maximise their benefits including Additional Regular Contributions 
(ARCs), AVCs, purchase of strikes etc. 

15. To ensure required employer policies on discretionary decisions are made and maintained and 
publicised.

16. To ensure that appropriate arrangements are in place to deal with medical decisions required 
under the regulations including: 

! Ill health retirement from active status including terminal illness cases, 
! Review and recovery of overpayments of pension in cases of Tier 3 benefits, and 
! Applications for payment of deferred benefits on ill health grounds 

17. To ensure that arrangements are in place to operate the Internal Dispute resolution procedures 
at stage 1 and stage 2 as required by the Regulations. 

-- ends 

Page 107



Merseyside Pension Fund
Castle Chambers, 43 Castle Street Telephone:  0151 242 1390   
Liverpool, L2 9SH Fax:   0151 236 3520 

Web: mpfmembers.org.uk 
  mpfemployers.org.uk 
E-mail:  mpfadmin@wirral.gov.uk 

Page 108



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

24 JUNE 2013 

 

SUBJECT: OFFICIAL OPENING OF GWYNEDD AD 

PLANT 

WARD/S AFFECTED: NONE 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION?  (Defined in 
paragraph 13.3 of Article 13 
‘Decision Making’ in the Council’s 
Constitution.) 

NO 

  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report seeks approval for the Chair of Pensions Committee to attend the official 
opening of the Gwynedd Anaerobic Digestion Plant on 2 July 2013. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 In March 2012, Committee was informed of an investment into a fund providing the 
financing for the construction and operation of anaerobic digestion (AD) plants.  The 
plants process food waste and generate biogas reducing landfill requirements.  
Potentially, initial investments were into contracts for AD plants being tendered by a 
number of Welsh local authorities. 

 
2.2 MPF is currently the sole investor in the fund which has successfully won three 

tenders, two of which are in Wales.  Construction of the first plant, “Prosiect GwyriAD” 
is completing.   The facility will treat 11,000 tonnes of food waste from local 
households and businesses, all of which could otherwise be sent to landfill.  The plant 
is fully licensed and regulated by he Environment Agency and will generate 3,500 
MWh per annum of renewable electricity and a biofertiliser for use on local farmland.  
It is the first AD plant to be commissioned by the Welsh Assembly and to be 
completed.  In recognition of this, a formal opening ceremony has been organised by 
Gwynedd Council and, as funder of the project, MPF has been invited. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 None 
 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

Agenda Item 10

Page 109



5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising out of this report. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 The cost of attendance will be travel which can be met from the existing Pension Fund 
budget. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
  

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 The project will generate 3,500 megawatt hours per year of renewable electricity for 
the national grid. 

 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That Committee approves attendance at this ceremony of the Chair of Pensions 
Committee, accompanied by an officer. 

 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 
13.1 To provide recognition and support for this environmental and sustainable initiative. 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Peter Wallach 
  Head of Pension Fund 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1309 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

NONE 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

NONE 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Page 110



Council Meeting  Date 

Pensions Committee March 2012 

 

Page 111



 

Page 112



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

24 JUNE 2013 

 

SUBJECT: COMPLIANCE MANUAL - SECTION 6 PERSONAL 

CONDUCT ARRANGEMENTS 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR TRANSFORMATION AND 

RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION? NO 
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Members approval of a revised Compliance 
Manual Section 6, Personal Conduct Arrangements. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The Compliance Manual sets out the powers, duties and responsibilities of 
officers in respect of the financial services legislative and regulatory regimes 
relevant to MPF. Although the Pension Fund is not regulated by the Financial 
Conduct Authority (FCA) the manual incorporates, where appropriate, best 
practice as set out by the FCA and the codes of other professional bodies.  

 
2.2 The existing Compliance Manual was approved by Pensions Committee on 20 

March 2012. 
 
2.3 At Pensions Committee 20 November 2012, Members were provided with a report on 

gifts and hospitality.  Members requested the arrangements agreed to be reflected in a 
revised Compliance Manual and brought to Pensions Committee for approval. 

 
2.4 Following approval at Employment and Appointments Committee 14 February 2013, 

Wirral Council has issued revised policies on gifts and hospitality and conflicts of 
interest.  These policies have also been incorporated into the revised personal 
conduct arrangements section of the Compliance Manual. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 The Compliance Manual is concerned mainly with the mitigation of risks. 
 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 There are no other options considered in this report 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 Consultation on revised policies and procedures has taken place with Internal Audit 
and Human Resources. 

Agenda Item 11

Page 113



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That Members approve the revised Section 6, Personal Conduct Arrangements of the 
Compliance Manual. 

 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 The approval of the Compliance Manual for Merseyside Pension Fund by Pensions 
Committee forms part of the governance arrangements of Merseyside Pension Fund. 

 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Donna Smith 
  Group Accountant 
  telephone:  (0151) 2421312 
  email:   donnasmith@wirral.gov.uk  
 
APPENDICES 

Compliance Manual Section 6 Personal Conduct Arrangements. 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

Compliance Manual 
Gifts and Hospitality Policy 
Conflict of Interest Policy 
 

Page 114



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Pensions Committee – Compliance Manual 

 

Audit and Risk Management Committee – Gifts and 

Hospitality 

 

Pensions Committee – Gifts and Hospitality 

 

Employments and Appointments Committee – Gifts 

and Hospitality and Conflict of Interest Policies 

 

20 March 2012 

 

19 September 2012 

 

 

20 November 2012 

 

14 February 2013 

 

Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



SECTION 6 
 
PERSONAL CONDUCT ARRANGEMENTS 
 
6.1 Introduction 
 
6.1.1 The nature of work undertaken by the officers and the requirement to 

ensure that the integrity of officers is not open to question means that  
officers must adhere to certain conditions in their private and work 
dealings.  These include the handling of price sensitive information, 
private conflict of interests, roles on boards, acceptance of gifts and 
hospitality, the handling of shareholder benefits accrued from assets held 
by the Fund and personal dealings in investments. 

 
6.2 Personal dealings 
 
6.2.1 Employees of the Fund must not use confidential information, gained in 

the course of business, for private gain or to reduce a private loss.  
Employees must be cognisant of the Code of Market Conduct and 
Market Abuse and ensure that this is adhered to at all times when 
making personal deals.  Consequently, whenever staff make investment 
decisions for their own personal account they must note: 

 
• Fund orders always take priority. 

 
• No member of staff should gain, or seek to gain, any advantage 

for his own personal investment as a consequence of deals done 
on behalf of the Fund. 

 
• Insider trading is unlawful.  No employee should seek to take 

advantage of inside information or pass such information on to 
other parties.  (Refer section 5.5). 

 
• Anything that may otherwise constitute a market abuse must be 

avoided at all times. 
 
6.3 Personal dealings procedure 
 
6.3.1 Staff must report all personal deals to the Fund Accountant (Compliance) 

in accordance with the procedure below. 
 
6.4 Scope of Reporting Requirements 
 
6.4.1 General presumption 
 
6.4.2 Whenever you wish to conduct a personal deal in Securities (see 6.12), 

you must assume that you need to apply for permission in advance of 
dealing. That presumption can only be overturned in the circumstances 
outlined under the exceptions (see 6.10 and 6.11). 

 

Page 117



6.4.3 The rules on personal dealings apply to employees on their own account 
and are designed to prevent any dealings that could give rise to criticism 
of the Fund. 

 
6.5 Obtaining prior approval  
 
6.5.1 For dealings requiring prior approval, you must always obtain permission 

from the Fund Accountant (Compliance) or his delegate, in accordance 
with the procedure laid down, before dealing. 

 
6.6 What is a personal deal? 
 
6.6.1 Any deal which is: 
 

• executed on your instructions or advice and in which you or any 
member of your close family (see 6.6.2) has a beneficial interest 

• by any company, portfolio, trust, partnership, investment club, or 
other entity which invests on your instructions or advice and in 
which you or your close family has a beneficial interest 

• by you as a trustee of any trust or a personal representative of 
any estate (unless you are relying entirely on the advice of 
another person, such as an outside broker or solicitor) 

• by you for the account of another person (except in your capacity 
as an employee). 

 
6.6.2 Close family is defined as “any individual, joint, close family relative (e.g. 

mother, father, spouse, partner, child or stepchild living with you, or child 
under 18 years of age, irrespective of whether they are physically living 
with you), or business relationship outside the Fund. 

 
6.6.3 The test is whether the officer or employee has influence over that 

person’s judgment as to how to invest his property or exercise any rights 
attached to it. 

 
6.6.4 Dealings conducted by you at home and/or via the internet are of course 

included in the scope of these rules. 
 
6.7 Validity of permission/procedure for declaration 
 
6.7.1 Employees and connected persons are required to seek prior written or 

email approval from the Fund Accountant (Compliance) and a Dealing 
Permission form (see appendix 2) must be completed. If the transaction 
does not take place within ten business days of receiving approval then 
fresh permission must be sought.   

 
6.7.2 On a monthly basis, each individual to whom these rules apply will be 

required to notify the Fund Accountant (Compliance) via HOPF PA of all 
deals over the preceding month. Returns should be submitted within 10 
days of each month end.  Nil returns will be required.  The Returns are 
emailed to all relevant members of staff by the HOPF PA. 

Page 118



 
6.7.3 The HOPF PA will report returned forms and non returned items to the 

Fund Accountant (Compliance) and Group Accountant. 
 
6.7.4 The Fund Accountant (Compliance) and Group Accountant will review 

the returned forms, non returned forms and items which raise concern. 
 
6.7.5 The Group Accountant will report to the HOPF and FOG on a monthly 

basis. A quarterly review of all personal deals will be undertaken by the 
Head of Pension Fund and evidence of this review will be included in 
FOG minutes. A template has been set up for these reviews. 

 
6.7.6 It is recognised that details of individuals’ holdings and dealings are 

confidential and information provided as a consequence of these rules 
will only be accessible to those employees involved in the reporting 
system and audit, unless malpractice is suspected. 

 
6.7.7 The returned personal deal forms will be retained on a central file held by 

HOPF PA 
 
6.8 Holding periods 
 
6.8.1 Employees and connected persons are not permitted to sell any security 

within one month of acquiring it without the prior approval of the Fund 
Accountant (Compliance). 

 
6.9 Conflicts of interest 
 
6.9.1 A conflict of interest can arise if your outside activities, private, personal 

or financial interests influence or interfere with the decisions you make in 
the course of your work for the fund, or appear to or could be perceived 
to influence or interfere with the decisions you make in the course of your 
work for the fund. 

 
6.9.2 If you consider there may be a conflict of interest you should complete 

the conflict of interest declaration form (M15) and submit to your line 
manager and then onto Head of Service for consideration. 

 
6.9.3 It is your responsibility to declare any actual or potential conflicts of 

interest.  If you are in any doubt about whether an actual or potential 
conflict of interest exists, you should consult your manager or Human 
Resources. 

 
6.9.4 Nil returns are required from all officers at Head of Service level and 

above on an annual basis. 
 

6.9.5 You will be notified in writing within 10 working days of any further 
proportionate actions you will be required to undertake regarding your 
conflict of interest. 

 

Page 119



6.9.6 There may be occasions where the conflict declared presents serious 
concerns about the employee’s continued ability to perform the full range 
of their duties.  In such circumstances, a meeting will be arranged to 
discuss the issue in detail with the Head of Pension Fund and the 
employee.  The employee may be accompanied at this meeting. 

 
6.9.7 Once assessed the form (M15) is passed back to the Administration 

Officer by the line manager.  The Head of Administration will maintain a 
register of conflict of interest declarations.  All completed M15 forms will 
be retained on the employee’s personal file held at MPF. 

 
6.9.8 If there are any material changes which affect your declared conflict of 

interest in the interim period, this should be reported immediately to your 
line manager.  This is the responsibility of the employee. 

 
6.9.9 Employees should declare any outside interest of a financial or non-

financial nature that might cause a potential conflict of interest with their 
work for the Fund.  This would include remunerated and non-
remunerated posts such as directorships or employment external to the 
fund.  Care must be taken when considering dealings, as opportunities 
may arise where an individual could be involved in a company, whether 
quoted or not, which the individual knows or ought to know is or has 
been involved in a commercial relationship with the Fund.  

 
6.9.10 For guidance, you should notify dealings (i) in publicly listed companies 

in which you hold or will hold subsequent to dealing at least 1%; and (ii) 
for unquoted companies, a 10% holding which cost you at least £25,000 
originally, or the equivalent in value. 

 
6.9.11 An officer graded H and above (SCP 31+) needs authorisation to 

undertake outside work even if, in your view, the work could not possibly 
conflict with your duty as an employee of the fund.  In such 
circumstances, they should complete the M15 form and submit it to the 
Head of Pension Fund for authorisation.  The Head of Pension Fund may 
consult with Head of Human Resources as appropriate prior to a 
decision being made. 

 
6.10 Exempt dealings 
 
6.10.1 You do not need to report the following transactions to Compliance: 
 

• dealing in gilts 
• accepting a takeover offer 
• taking up a rights issue for securities already held 
• applying to a public offer  
• transferring PEP or ISA securities to a member of your close 

family  
• reinvesting dividends and other distributions under a standing 

election 
• exempt discretionary dealings as stated below 

Page 120



 
6.11 Exempt discretionary dealings 
 
6.11.1 Care is needed in taking a decision not to disclose under this heading, 

because the word ‘discretionary’ has various shades of meaning. For 
instance, some fund managers will act under an advisory discretionary 
relationship, in which case it may be the case that the discretion has 
been influenced to a greater or lesser degree by the client. You must 
therefore disclose any dealings in securities over which you participate to 
any extent, as these cannot be treated as exempt dealings. In cases of 
doubt, you must contact Compliance. The following are the exempt 
dealings. 

 
• dealings in units or shares by a fund manager of a regulated 

collective investment scheme  
• dealings in securities under life and pension policies over which 

you have no control 
• continuing discretionary management of funds held for your 

benefit with third party managers over which you have no control 
 
6.12 Definition of “Security/ies” 
 
6.12.1 Unless an exemption applies, you must report dealings in all the 

following Securities, irrespective of whether the transaction was made in 
the UK or abroad: 

 
• share or stock in the capital of a company 
• debt instruments issued by a company or public sector body 

(bond deals) 
• hybrid deals like permanent interest bearing shares for example 
• futures/options 
• warrants or depositary receipts 
• contracts for difference including spread bets, whether or not 

financially based 
 

 but not investments in collective investment schemes (UTs, OEICs or 
limited partnerships). 

 
6.13 Inducements 
 
6.13.1 Employees must not offer, give, request or accept any benefit which 

could induce: 
 

• another person to introduce investment business to them 
• them to place business with another person 
• or in any way deter them from fulfilling their duties to the Fund. 

 
 
 

Page 121



6.14 CPD and Training Opportunities/Events 
 

The FCA’s handbook provides rules and guidance to Investment 
Managers on what is appropriate for designated investment business to 
provide to clients. 
 

 The Fund has investments with a range of managers, many of whom 
hold annual general meetings and annual investor conferences to which 
existing and potential investors are invited and some of the costs of 
attending are met by the manager.   

 
It is common if an officer is speaking/lecturing at conferences that the 
organiser will reimburse expenditure.   

 
 These situations are not considered to be hospitality but should still be 

declared using a CPD/training declaration form. 
 
 Non hospitality should be reported to HOPF PA within 14 days of the 

meeting on the CPD/training declaration form.  Returned forms will be 
reviewed by the Fund Accountant (Compliance) and Group Accountant. 

 
 CPD/training declaration returns will be reviewed by the HOPF and be 

reported to Pensions Committee annually. 
 

The returned non hospitality forms will be retained on a central file held 
by HOPF PA. 

 
6.14.1 Roles on Boards 
 

Employees may not accept roles on boards without prior written 
permission from the Head of Pension Fund (HOPF). The Fund 
Accountant (Compliance) must be informed immediately after permission 
has been granted/refused and evidence of the HOPF’s decision must be 
given to the Fund Accountant (Compliance) at the time of notification. All 
meetings attended must be disclosed to the Fund Accountant 
(Compliance) in advance of the meeting and all non-hospitality, travel 
and accommodation expenses, reimbursed out of pocket expenses and 
any salary must be declared to the Fund Accountant (Compliance) via 
HOPF PA on the CPD/training declaration form within 14 days of the 
meeting taking place. 
 
CPD/training declaration forms will be reviewed by the HOPF and be 
reported to Pensions Committee annually. 

 
The returned CPD/training declaration forms will be retained on a central 
file held by HOPF PA. 

 
 
 
 

Page 122



6.15 Gifts & Hospitality 
 
6.15.1 The Council’s policy in respect of gifts and hospitality is set out in full on 

the intranet and must be adhered to, along with the following guidance.  
For Fund employees, no employee or connected person may accept 
from any person any gift/hospitality or other benefit unless it is 
abundantly clear that, taking into account: 

 
• the value of the gift/hospitality, and the circumstances in which it 

was given, 
• there could be no suspicion in any one’s mind that the recipient 

might be tempted to favour the giver to the prejudice of the Fund’s 
interest. 

 
  In deciding whether or not it is appropriate to accept any gift or hospitality 

the following guidelines should be taken into account; 
 
  (a) There should be no cause for concern where an offer of hospitality is 

made by another non-commercial public body or one of its officers.  
 
  (b) Normal business courtesies, for example lunch and dinner invitations 

may be accepted where these follow or form part of a business meeting. 
 
  (c) Small gifts of modest value such as diaries and calendars may be 

accepted. 
 
  Hospitality/Entertainment is sometimes offered to senior officers as 

official representatives of the Fund and may be accepted in the following 
circumstances: 

 
  (a) If the Head of Pension Fund can justify acceptance in the context of 

fulfilling duties as a representatives of the Fund e.g. representing the 
Fund at business meetings. 

 
  (b) If the extent of the hospitality/entertainment is reasonable and is likely 

to be regarded as a normal part of the courtesies of public life e.g. a 
lunch or dinner invitation or social event offered at a conference or 
similar event to participants generally. 

 
  (c) If details of the hospitality/entertainment are recorded as soon as 

practicable (within 14 days), in a register to be maintained by the Head of 
Pension Fund PA, reviewed by the Fund Accountant (Compliance). 

 
  Regarding hospitality, where an invitation is to an event involving a 

number of clients, there is unlikely to be an issue as organisations 
regulated by the FCA must, themselves, comply with the criteria issued 
by the FCA.  Where an invitation is personal, greater discretion should 
be exercised.  In all cases, where an organisation is seeking work or is 
likely to be tendering for a contract within six months, or there is a risk of 
a conflict of interest (actual or perceived), acceptance should be avoided. 

Page 123



 
  When an unacceptable gift is received without warning, this should 

immediately be reported to the Fund Accountant (Compliance) who will 
decide whether the gift should be returned. 

 
  In some circumstances, individuals may consider a donation to the 

Mayor’s Fund to be appropriate and, in attendance, should also evaluate 
the split between work and personal time. 

 
6.16   Procedure for declaration 
 
 Prior approval must be sought from the Head of Pension Fund prior to 

acceptance of any hospitality. 
 

Gifts and hospitality must be reported to Compliance on the appropriate 
form if they are above the monetary limits for reporting or if there are 
circumstances which a reasonable person might conclude would require 
reporting to Compliance. 

 
 The description of the gift/hospitality needs to be sufficient to allow a 

third party to assess accurately what the gift/hospitality is and to attribute 
a fair market value to it where this is not immediately obvious.  It should 
also be recorded on the form whether events are group or individual 
events. 

 
 Compliance will not normally consider it necessary to report a gift or 

hospitality unless it exceeds £25 in value or, in aggregate, gifts or 
hospitality received from the same party over 6 months, exceeds £50 in 
value. 

 
 All employees must ensure that gifts and hospitality offered, as well as 

received, are declared using the M17 form.  Employees are required to 
make a return within 14 days.  Forms (see appendix 5) are available at 
Gifts-Hospitality notification form. 

 
 Returns should be submitted to the Head of Pension Fund PA and 

reviewed by the Fund Accountant (Compliance) and Group Accountant. 
They must include evidence of approval.  

 
 Signed copies of all M17 forms are sent to the Administration officer to 

be retained on the employee’s personal file held at MPF. 
 

The HOPF PA will maintain a register (M21) for the fund.  The register 
will consist of a full record of all offers of gifts and hospitality offered and 
received, irrespective of whether they were accepted.  This register is 
reviewed by the HOPF every month. 

 
 The register will be reviewed by Department Management Team on a 

quarterly basis.  
  

Page 124



 Nil returns and notification of hospitality offers received and declined are 
required. 

 
 Any breach of this policy is likely to be considered under the disciplinary 

policy and this could, in some circumstances, lead to dismissal. 
 
6.17 Whistleblowing 
 
 In accordance with Council policy, the Fund is serious about tackling all 

forms of serious malpractice and abuse and needs the support of all 
employees to help take action by whistleblowing before real damage is 
done. 

 
 It is an individual’s responsibility to whistleblow if there are genuine 

concerns about the mistreatment of people; financial malpractice; 
dangers to health and safety; and cover-ups. 

 
 Full details of the Council’s policy on whistleblowing can be found in The 

Confidential Reporting (Whistleblowing) Policy. 
 
6.18 Confidentiality 
 
6.18.1 Employees 
 
 (a) must not disclose information given to him in confidence by anyone, 

without the consent of a person authorised to give it, or unless he is 
required by law to do so and 

 (b) must not prevent another person from gaining access to information 
to which that person is entitled by law.  

 
6.19 Home Working 

 
The Council’s policy is set out in full on the intranet.  Some of the 
principles governing working from home are set out below. 
 
Working at home in MPF Investments arises in two different types of 
situation: 
 
(a) regular – as part of the normal working week under a formal 

arrangement and subject to a detailed agreement; 
(b) specific – where there is a particular task to be done (usually with 

some urgency) and the work can be done with less distraction at 
home. 

 
In setting up a regular arrangement, a detailed discussion with 
management is required to appraise how service needs might be 
affected and how access to the required resources is obtained.  The 
formal process includes consideration of equipment requirements as well 
as a health and safety check of the home premises.  In practice each 

Page 125



arrangement requires to be considered on its attributes and costs kept to 
a minimum. 
 
In all circumstances, there needs to be a clear performance expectation 
and an understanding of the consequences if such is not delivered.  A 
diary record is to be maintained of home working assignments, and the 
employee is required to be available for contact between 9 a.m. and 5 
p.m. on a nominated landline and mobile phone.  A form also needs to 
be completed confirming that expectations were met.  Forms are 
retained in a central file by HOPF PA. 
 
Agreement to home working is at management’s discretion and, in the 
absence of an approved regular arrangement, must always be sought in 
advance with the appropriate Section Head or the Head of Pension 
Fund.  Unauthorised absence may be considered as an act of 
indiscipline warranting formal action. There must always be adequate 
cover in the office and the efficient functioning of the Fund is an over-
riding consideration. 

 

Page 126



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

24 JUNE 2013 

 

SUBJECT: TUNSGATE SQUARE – ROOFING TENDER 

WARD/S AFFECTED: NONE 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION?   NO 
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to request that Members note the outcome of the recent 
tendering exercise in respect of a replacement patio roof at the Tunsgare shopping 
centre in Guildford. 

 
1.2 The appendix to the report (report from CBRE on the tender process) contains exempt 

information. This is by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, i.e. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information). 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The Tunsgare Square shopping centre is owned by MPF as part of the direct property 
investment portfolio. The consisted of replacing the patio roof covering for the flats 
which form part of the shopping centre. 

 
2.2 The tender process was managed by CBRE in accordance with Wirral’s financial 

guidelines.  Full details of the tenders are set out in the appendix. 
 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising out of this report. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

Agenda Item 13

Page 127



7.1 The financial implications are set out in the appendix.  There are no other resource 
implications. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
  
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That Members note acceptance of the most economically advantageous tender by the 
Interim Director of Resources. 

 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 As set out in the appendix, there were a number of issues with the tenders submitted 
and the reasons for CBRE’s recommendation are detailed. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Paddy Dowdall 
  Investment Manager 
  telephone:  0151 2421310 
  paddydowdall@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 

Exempt Appendix 1  
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

NONE 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

  

 

Page 128



 

Page 129



Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

24 JUNE 2013 

 

SUBJECT: CASTLE CHAMBERS 4TH FLOOR 

REFURBISHMENT 

WARD/S AFFECTED: NONE 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION?   NO 
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to request that Members note the outcome of the recent 
tendering exercise in respect of refurbishing two offices on the 4th floor of Castle 
Chambers. 

 
1.2 The appendix to the report (report from CBRE on the tender process) contains exempt 

information. This is by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, i.e. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information). 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 Castle Chambers is owned by MPF as part of the direct property investment portfolio. 
The refurbishment work consisted of stripping out partitions, constructing a new 
entrance for one office, repairing and replacing suspended ceiling tiles, new carpets, 
redecoration and new lighting installation throughout. 

 
2.2 The tender process was managed by CBRE in accordance with Wirral’s financial 

guidelines.  Full details of the tenders are set out in the appendix. 
 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising out of this report. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

Agenda Item 15

Page 131



7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 The financial implications are set out in the appendix.  There are no other resource 
implications.  

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
  
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That Members note acceptance of the lowest cost tender by the Interim Director of 
Resources. 

 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 The appendix sets out full details of the tenders and the reasons for CBRE’s 
recommendation. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Paddy Dowdall 
  Investment Manager 
  telephone:  0151 2421310 
  paddydowdall@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 

Exempt Appendix 1  
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

NONE 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

  

 

Page 132



 

Page 133



Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 19

Page 135

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 21

Page 139

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Merseyside Pension Fund - External Audit Plan 2012-13.
	4 LGPS UPDATE
	Apendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	5 ANNUAL INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE
	6 TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT
	7 BUDGET FINANCIAL YEAR 2013/2014, BUDGET OUT TURN 2012/13 and ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13.
	8 LGC INVESTMENT SUMMIT
	9 PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY STATEMENT
	Appendix 1

	10 OFFICIAL OPENING OF GWYNEDD AD PLANT.
	11 COMPLIANCE MANUAL - SECTION 6 PERSONAL CONDUCT ARRANGEMENTS.
	Appendix 1

	13 TUNSGATE SQUARE - ROOFING TENDER
	15 CASTLE CHAMBERS 4TH FLOOR REFURBISHMENT.
	19 TUNSGATE SQUARE - ROOFING TENDER EXEMPT APPENDIX.
	21 CASTLE CHAMBERS 4TH FLOOR REFURBISHMENT.

